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BUT WHAT DOES CARING HAVE TO DO WITH BUSINESS?

EVERYTHING.




CARING isabout COMMITMENT.

It's being there for customers. It's meeting
our financial obligations, as we have

for more than 125 years. It's doing what
we say we will do because it’s the right

thing to do.

CARING isabout CHOICE. It's
listening to employers. Understanding
their struggle to offer quality benefits
while managing costs. Responding, as
a single-source provider, with a broad

range of products and services.

CARING isabout FO CUS. Every day,
we focus on how to enhance and extend
people’s lives. Backed by our depth and
breadth, it’s how we create value for our

customers and our shareholders.

CARING is about promoting QUALITY
O UTCOMES. It's providing the right
set of benefits and services, designed to
be cost-effective and meet the needs of

employee and employer alike.

You see, C ARIN G is the ultimate
competitive advantage. Because CARIN G

makes life better. And that’s what it’s all about.
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TO OUR
SHAREHOLDERS

2002 was a difficult and challenging year for CIGNA. Our
financial results in the aggregate were disappointing, but the
shortfall in results in 2002 does not reflect the strength of our
products, the skills of our people, the quality of our customer

relationships, the range of our capabilities or our ability to
compete effectively.

Despite the difficulties of the past year, we continue
to deliver health care, retirement, investment and group
insurance products and services that make CIGNA a leading
provider of employee benefits. We remain well positioned
as “A Business of Caring” to generate shareholder value by:

o operating our businesses with a commitment to exceed
customer expectations,

o offering our customers a real choice, as reflected in an exten-
sive portfolio of employee benefits plans and programs,

o maintaining a sharp focus on identifying and meeting the
needs of our customers, and

o working closely with providers and producers to help
deliver quality outcomes and services that enhance
customer health and financial well-being.

We are committed to returning this company to the
historical levels of profitability and growth our shareholders
expect from us.

2002 RESULTS
The operational issues we confronted in CIGNA HealthCare
- essentially, shortfalls in service delivery and underwriting
execution - contributed to a decline in our adjusted operat-
ing earnings per share from $7.42 in 2001 to $6.65 in 2002.
(Adjusted operating income and per share amounts exclude
after-tax realized investment results, the results of discontinued
operations, certain items attributable to special circum-
stances and, in 2001, goodwill amortization.)®

Adjusted operating income for our Employee Health Care,
Life and Disability Benefits segment declined to $724 million
from $860 million in 2001. The decrease is attributable
primarily to a decline in margins in the medical indemnity
business and higher HMO expenses. At the same time,
earnings increased significantly in the CIGNA HealthCare

H. Edward Hanway,
Chairman and CEO,
CIGNA Corporation

specialty businesses and our Group disability and life
insurance operations.

Our Employee Retirement Benefits and Investment Services
segment, which operates in the defined contribution and
defined benefit pension markets, achieved an increase
in adjusted operating income to $231 million in 2002
from $224 million in 2001. Assets under management, at
approximately $54 billion, were down slightly from the prior
year, a reflection of declining stock market values. Despite
difficult market conditions, this segment showed solid
earnings growth. It performed well competitively and is a
key contributor to our position as a leading provider of
employee benefits.

The International Life & Employee Benefits-segment, which
primarily serves clients outside the U.S., earned adjusted
operating income of $31 million in 2002, compared with
$8 million the year before, excluding income from life
operations in Japan, which we divested at the end of 2001.
The strong results reflect improved earnings in our expatriate
benefits business and in our life, accident and health
insurance businesses, as well as reduced health care losses in
2002. The international marketplace holds promise, and we
are pursuing opportunities to globalize our expatriate
operations and forge new life and accident insurance
distribution alliances in selected markets.

The Run-off Reinsurance Operations segment, which
includes reinsurance business we exited in 2000, had an
adjusted operating loss of $38 million in 2002 compared
with a loss of $10 million in 2001. We also took after-tax
charges of $1.0 billion related to this business, including the
impact of a program to reduce the adverse effects of potential
future stock market declines on portions of this business and
to strengthen reserves. Though it had a significant impact,
we believe our program to protect against stock market
declines is a prudent approach to manage this exposure. (For
more information, please see page 20 of this annual report.)

While our HealthCare results were disappointing in
2002, the remainder of our ongoing employee benefits
businesses performed well versus the competition, reflecting
good progress in the implementation of our employee
benefits strategy.




{In millians) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
TOTAL REVENUES | $19,348 | 518,607 | $19,526 | $18,270 | 517,292
TOTAL ASSETS $88,950 | $91,589 | $95,088 1

$95,333

MEETING OUR CHALLENGES, IMPROVING
OUR BUSINESS
‘We are firmly focused on returning our health care operations
to competitive levels of growth and profitability and have
initiated an aggressive program that will restore CIGNA
HealthCare to a position of prominence. This program has
five components:
Organizational Realignment — We realigned the CIGNA
HealthCare organization to address more effectively the
needs of our customers and strengthen our competitive
position. Our new structure emphasizes a strong national
account segment, a regional segment focused on the middle
market and our thriving specialty businesses, notably our
behavioral health, dental health, pharmacy, vision care and
health care utilization management operations.
Service Enhancement — We have made substantial invest-
ments in new technology, processes and staffing so that
we can deliver high-quality, competitively superior service.
These investments are bearing fruit. Today, there is faster
resolution of issues when members call us, and our customer
satistaction rates are improving. The vast majority of customers
accessing our new service technology platforms report a high
level of satisfaction with the service they are receiving.
Underwriting — We are strengthening our underwriting
processes and reinforcing our pricing discipline, which
historically have been competitive advantages for us.
Medical Management & Contracting — We continue to
improve medical management and provider contracting
operations to increase efficiency and ensure consistency,
always with the primary focus on the quality of care
delivered to members. These efforts will strengthen our
relationships with providers, as we work together to help
deliver quality outcomes and services for our customers.
Cost Reduction — We are reducing expenses to be more
competitive and better focus on critical needs.

To drive implementation of these initiatives, we appointed
a new HealthCare leadership team, headed by a new
president, Pat Welch, who has a track record of building
profitable growth in insurance and financial businesses.

Together, these actions will make for a stronger CIGNA
HealthCare and contribute to greater shareholder value.

595,890

IN EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, A BUSINESS OF CARING
Despite the challenges of 2002, CIGNA strengthened its
position as “A Business of Caring,” as CIGNA people demon-
strated skill and commitment in meeting the needs of
customers served by all of our employee benefits operations.

At CIGNA HealthCare, we upgraded our technology capa-
bilities to improve service to customers. We also conducted
outreach programs to encourage women to get regular
mammograms, raise public awareness about ovarian cancer
and help expectant mothers maintain prenatal health. In
addition, we expanded Internet access to personal health
benefits information via myCIGNA.com, and introduced for
consumers a shop-by-phone pharmacy program and an
online prescription drug comparison service.

At the same time, employer clients increasingly relied upon
Employee Assistance Programs managed by CIGNA Behavioral
Health - one of our specialty health care businesses — to help
their employees address personal issues that might affect their
ability to work productively. And at Intracorp, the medical care
management arm of CIGNA HealthCare, care management
counselors and nurses helped millions of members nationwide
make informed choices about the health services they receive
and their general health and well-being.

WE HAVE A UNIQUE POSITION AS A SINGLE-
SOURCE PROVIDER OF A FULL RANGE OF
HEALTH CARE, RETIREMENT AND GROUP

INSURANCE PLANS AND PROGRAMS.

Our commitment to service and quality has not gone
unnoticed. All of CIGNA's health plans are accredited by the
National Committee for Quality Assurance. Moreover, in
2002 NCQA rated all CIGNA health plans as “excellent” or
“commendable” - the organization’s top rankings. We are
proud that our efforts to improve the quality of life for those
we serve are being recognized.

At CIGNA Retirement & Investment Services, the value of
what we do has never been more appreciated. In a prestigious




CIGNA STRENGTHENED ITS POSITION AS
“A BUSINESS OF CARING,” AS CIGNA PEOPLE
DEMONSTRATED SKILL AND COMMITMENT

IN MEETING THE NEEDS OF CUSTOMERS.

industry survey of defined contribution plan clients,
Plan Sponsor magazine ranked CIGNA among the top retire-

ment plan providers for participant education, range of
investment options, compliance support, responsiveness and
account expertise.

That ranking is well earned. During the year, we enhanced
our ability to provide retirement planning information via
the Internet, through the “myFinance” web pages of
myCIGNA.com. We also expanded the scope of information
available to participants through Academy by CIGNAS® our
award-winning online retirement education resource.

In addition, Retitement & Investment Services strength-
ened its portfolio of best-in-class investment offerings and
introduced a number of innovative new products and services.
Among them were a workplace-based vehicle to help parents
save for college tuition for their children and programs to pro-
vide employees with personalized financial planning services.

At CIGNA Group Insurance, we also expanded our service
capabilities in 2002. We introduced a web-based claim notifi-
cation capability that enables disabled workers to file claims
via the Internet, cutting claim-filing time substantially. Group
Insurance also unveiled a new suite of services that will enable
employers to better manage their group life and disability
benefits programs and conduct group benefits enrollment, all
online. In each case, the goal is to provide high-quality,
low-cost, hassle-free service to employers and employees.

In the global arena, CIGNA International finalized its
alliance with International SOS - an international medical
management and emergency assistance provider - to launch the
world'’s first online health care network for expatriates on global
assignment. Expatriates and their families now have instant
access to an online global provider directory of full-service
hospitals and primary care physicians. They also have multi-
lingual phone access to a network of physicians, specialists and
health care facilities around the globe. Improving access to
quality health care worldwide helps companies ensure the
health, safety and productivity of their expatriate employees.

CIGNA’s ability to use technology to meet customer
needs was underscored by the industry-leading publication
Business Insurance, which designated myCIGNA.com as “Best
on the Web” in its 2002 ranking of web-based benefits
management portals.

Moreover, the company’s long-standing position as an
“employer of choice” was further affirmed in 2002. The
National Association for Female Executives named CIGNA as
a top employer for executive women, while ComputerWorld —
a leading technology publication - ranked CIGNA as one of
the best places to work for systems professionals. CIGNA also
earned employer of choice recognition during the year from
Working Mother magazine and Latina Style magazine.

QUR COMMITMENT TO SHAREHOLDERS

Clearly, 2002 was a difficult year for our health care operations.
We expect the aggressive actions we have taken - as reflected
in our five-part plan - to drive improved financial results
over time.

In this context, it is important to note that CIGNA is a
strong company with a solid foundation and deep capabilities.
We have a unique position as a single-source provider of a
full range of health care, retirement and group insurance
plans and programs. And we have thousands of talented,
knowledgeable people dedicated to meeting the needs of our
customers and thus improving our financial performance.

Having confronted directly the challenges of 2002, we
remain firmly focused on managing the company’s assets to
deliver long-term value to our shareholders and customers.
We look forward with confidence and enthusiasm to a bright

?/MW

H. Edward Hanway
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

and promising future.

(1) For further information about certain items attributable to special circumstances related to 2002 and 2001, see page 19 of this annual report.

For information on eammings per share, see page 66 of this annual report.
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Caring is about commitment.

We put customers first by creating better ways
to serve them. That's our commitment.

For one of the world’s leading pharmaceu-
tical companies, participation in its 401(k) plan
was low because of “too-busy-to-invest” newer,
younger employees. We developed a targeted
educational campaign — from catchy e-mails
to a CD — that made it easy for new employees
to understand plan benefits and options.
Participation jumped from 64 percent to 82
percent in just four months — an increase
of nearly $4 million in plan assets. From
time-saving enrollment to award-winning,
easy-to-understand quarterly statements, parti-
cipants can make educated financial decisions,
quickly and easily.

Employees have instant, anytime access
to health and financial information, including
personal benefits information, through
myCIGNA.com. This includes everything from

EMPLOYEE SERVICES MAKE IT
EASY FOR EMPLOYERS, TOO, SAVING

TIME, PAPERWORK AND COSTS.

checking the status of a medical claim to
calculating the value of a pension. With our
CIGNA HealthCare 24-Hour Health Information
Line™, members can reach our registered nurses,
toll free, anytime, from anywhere in the U.S.
These employee services make it easy for
employers, too, saving time, paperwork and
costs. For employers, one point of contact and
one bill add to that simplicity.

Convenient online resources help employers
better manage their disability programs and, in
turn, their costs by bringing vital information
to their desktops. For example, our Manager’s
Disability Toolkit is a step-by-step guide for
employers that helps them through each phase
of an employee’s disability. We know that
frequent communication from the employer
during recovery can increase employee loyalty,
enhance disability outcomes and even speed

return-to-work.




Caring is about commitment.
It’s being there for customers.
It’s meeting our financial
obligations, as we have for more
than 125 years. It’s doing

what we say we will do because

it’s the right thing to do.

We're committed to making financial security possible for more people, in more places, with simple
and affordable life, accident and health insurance coverage. In South Korea, for example, we created
catastrophic illness and hospital cash policies that were inexpensive and easy to understand. And by
offering them through innovative direct mail and telemarketing, they were also easy to obtain. As
a result, we filled a gap in South Korea's national health care system, while gaining 706,000 new
policyholders in just 18 months, increasing our customer base in that country by 58 percent.



Caring is about choice.

It’s listening to employers.
Understanding their struggle ‘ o \
to offer quality benefits while
managing costs. Responding,
as a single-source provider,
with a broad range of products

and services.

iy

Companies can better attract and retain the best people with retirement plans tailored to their
needs. Of course, key concerns are affordability and administration. By choosing to off-load any or
all administration to us, companies can better manage their plans and control their costs. That was
the case with one of the world’s largest manufacturers of methacrylates, a key component in resins,
coatings and paints. By outsourcing the administrative portion of their retirement benefits, which
included a defined benefit and 401(k) plan, the company saved more than half a million dollars.
Talk about improving the bottom line!




Caring is about choice.

We believe that no two customers are alike. And
neither are their employees. We offer a choice of
products and services so that every customer and
employee can find what’s right for them. We
believe choice — the right choice — empowers.

With our group life, disability and accident
insurance, we offer employer-paid plans, with
varying amounts of coverage, and employee-
paid plans. We offer one of the broadest arrays
of benefit options of any accident insurance
provider in the industry.

Health care members can choose from one
of the largest networks of independent quality
providers, coupled with a broad range of health
and wellness programs and services that few
can equal. We offer tools, information and
support, when, where and how members want

them. By making informed decisions about their
health care, members can get the right care at
the right time.

Our retirement plan participants can select
“best-in-class” investments across a complete
range of asset classes and investment styles.
They can better understand their plan and
realize its value with a host of resources and
tools that benefit everyone from beginning
investors to those who are experienced. And,
at their own pace, participants can learn online
or on paper, through Academy by CIGNA®
an investment information resource. For those
who want personalized financial advice, there’s
Ayco Financial Planning Center, a toll-free, inde-
pendent financial planning service.

WE OFFER A CHOICE OF PRODUCTS

AND SERVICES SO THAT EVERY

CUSTOMER AND EMPLOYEE CAN

FIND WHAT’S RIGHT FOR THEM.
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Caring is about focus.

Serving our employers and their employees
is what we do. From the fundamental to the
innovative, our focus is on protecting health,
securing retirement and making life easier,
better for everyone.

For our health care members, it means
staying healthier through preventive care,
which can help save lives. In turn, it also saves
benefit dollars. When our members need
medical care, we can help coordinate it through
our disease and case management approach. As
a result, members can get well sooner. This
helps employers protect their most valuable
asset — their employees.

For those living and working outside their
home countries, we focus on accessible care.
Expatriates and their families have access to

WE HELP EMPLOYERS PROTECT

THEIR MOST VALUABLE ASSET —

THEIR EMPLOYEES.

both online physician referrals and on-call
doctors around the world. It’s the first interna-
tional service of its kind. We’'ve opened up
channels of health and well-being so that
expatriates can get the care they need, when
they need it, around the world. That's peace of
mind on a global scale.

As life becomes more complicated, our
focus is to keep it simple. Case in point: Stage of
Life retirement funds. We’ve carefully assembled
funds for each life stage, so it's easy for
participants to choose what’s best for them. We
provide them with tools and information that
make it easy on plan sponsors, too. The value
added? A sound retirement plan for employees
helps build appreciation, increase satisfaction

and boost productivity.




Caring is about focus.
Every day, we focus on
how to enhance and extend
people’s lives. Backed
by our depth and breadth,
it’s how we create value for
our customers and

our shareholders.
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A prime example of our focused approach is the CIGNA HealthCare Healthy Babies® program, which
encourages early prenatal care and routinely refers members who are at risk to one of our registered
nurse case managers. For one member expecting triplets, a complex, high-risk pregnancy became
life-threatening. Highly specialized surgery — only performed at an out-of-state hospital — was
needed, and time was of the essence. Her CIGNA HealthCare nurse case manager worked quickly
to help arrange for the procedure and also coordinated the at-home care that was critical to
preventing pre-term labor. The ending of the story is just the beginning. Our member delivered

three healthy baby boys.
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Caring is about promoting
quality outcomes. It’s providing : -

the right set of benefits
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By taking a thorough and comprehensive approach to disability case management, we ensure access
to quality care and, in turn, promote quality outcomes. In doing so, we prevent short-term
disabilities from becoming long-term, costly ones. Our disability case managers focus on the whole
person — both body and mind — and coordinate care among all those involved. That collaborative
effort, coupled with our holistic perspective, helped an employee with kidney failure, complicated
by diabetes and hypertension, return to work just five months after initial hospitalization.
Cost-effective disability coverage that enhances recovery and return-to-work benefits employees and
brings value to their employers.




We strive to bring quality outcomes to both
employee and employer. It's how we help
people improve their lives and companies grow
their business.

Our health care members can better manage
chronic health conditions, such as diabetes,
asthma, low back pain and heart disease
through our award-winning disease manage-
ment programs. The CIGNA HealthCare Well
Aware Program for Better Health® offers self-care
information, tools and toll-free support to help
keep members healthier. We even remind them
when to go for tests, exams and routine check-
ups. With our Well Aware diabetes program, for
example, we saw a 30 percent increase in mem-
bers who went for an annual test to prevent
potential eye complications due to diabetes. It's
this proactive approach to chronic disease that
can enhance health outcomes and reduce costs.

In our retirement business, we still have our

first client after 75 years. In fact, our retention rate

Caring is about promoting quality cutcomes.

is one of the best in the business. Employers get
the results they want, whether it's employee
participation or investment performance, because
we design our plans to perform for the long
haul. For example, we employ a disciplined, due
diligence process to monitor our investment
fund performance. And we pay great attention to
administrative and regulatory details. It’s these
“checks and balances” that help ensure quality
outcomes over time.

As advocates for the health and financial
well-being of employees on international
assignments all over the world, we offer live,
multilingual, multicultural assistance, 24/7.
That way, expatriates and their families can
access quality care, whenever they need it.

It’s our focus, our commitment and the
choices we offer that bring A Business of Caring®
to life and, ultimately, assist in the delivery
of quality outcomes to the employees and
employers we serve.

OUR PROACTIVE APPROACH
TO CHRONIC DISEASE
ENHANCES HEALTH OUTCOMES

AND REDUCES COSTS.

13




O
0
Z
oS
Z

"
ted
5]
(95}
o
@)
3
<
ted

We are a leading provider of employee
benefits in the United States and also serve

selected international markets.

HEALTH CARE

CIGNA HealthCare offers a broad portfolio of group medical,
dental, behavioral, vision and pharmacy products and services,
as well as a range of funding and plan design options. With
offerings in all 50 states, the District of Columbia and Puerto
Rico, the organization is one of the nation's leading employee
benefits providers.

Lives Covered® (in Millions)

Medical HMO 6.8 Dental HMO 26
Medical Indemnity 6.3 Dental Indemnity 10.5
(PPO 5.3, Other 10) (PPO 7.4, Other 3.1)

Behavioral Care 141 Pharmacy 9.8

GROUP INSURANCE

CIGNA Group Insurance is among the leading providers

of group disability, life and accident coverage in the U.S. The
organization is a leader in disability management and insurance
with solutions that focus on returning employees to a productive
work life as quickly and safely as possible. It also is a leading
provider of group term life and group universal life, and of group
accident insurance, including voluntary accident and business
travel accident insurance. These products are integral parts of
CIGNA's overall employee benefits sirategy.

RETIREMENT

CIGNA Refiremen? & Investiment Services is one

of the nation's leading asset management and refirement
services firms. The organization offers defined benefit, defined
contribution and nonqualified plans, either on a stand-alone
basis or as part of a complete retirement solution customized
to the needs of plan sponsors and tailored to the needs of
plan participants.

INTERNATIONAL

CIGNA Intfernational, with operations in Europe, Asia
Pacific and Latin America, provides health care and medical
care management services fo the workplace and consumer
markets, and life, accident and health insurance to individuals.
The organization also is a leading supplier of specialized
health care and insurance benefits to the expatriate employees
of multinational companies on international assignments.



Products and Services

Medical: HMO, POS, PPO,
open access, health savings
accounts, indemnity plans
Dental: HMO, PPO,
indemnity and blended plans
Behavioral: mental health,

substance abuse, work/life and

employee assistance programs

Pharmacy: tiered benefit
designs with a range of
formulary plans; mail-order
and online pharmacy

Vision: managed care products
Care Management: disease,
disability and transplant
management programs

* Includes employees and dependents under guaranteed cost, retrospectively experience-rated,
administrative services only and minimum premium funding arrangements. Participants in
more than one category are included in each of the appropriate categories shown above,
and medical indemnity, dental indemnity and behavioral care amounts are estimated.

Premivms and Fees (in Millions) $12,624
Premium Equivalents 22,714
Adjusted Premiums and Fees $35,338

Business Misx Adjusted Premiums and Fees
Health Indemnity
Medical & Dental 54%

Managed Medical
& Dental 44%

Life 2%

o

Products and Services

<. Short- and long-term
disability management

t: Return-to-work consulting

o Integration with CIGNA

HealthCare and workers’

compensation

Family and Medical

Leave Act management

= Term life insurance

1 Group universal life
insurance
' Basic accident insurance

5 Voluntary accident

insurance

- Business travel accident

insurance

Premiums and Fees (in Millions)  $1,712
Business Mix Premiums and Fees
Life 53%

Disability 31%
Accident 11%

Other Health 5%

7

Products and Services

Workplace Financial Solutions®
Defined contribution, defined
benefit and nonqualified plans
Best-in-class investments
Comprehensive advisory
services for employers
Targeted education and
communication for employees

** Banking products and
brokerage services

Simple, hassle-free administration

Investment Management
~ U.S. and international fixed

income, U.S. equity real

estate, U.S. small- and mid-cap
equity and U.S. indexed equity
Commercial mortgage
origination and invesfing,
commercial mortgage-backed
securities

Private placement investing
Alternative asset class investing

* Asset-backed securities

Assets Under Management (in Millions)  $82,038

CIGNA Employee
Benefits Portfolios $18,406

Institutional Third Party
Advisory $10,421

Workplace Financial
Solutions® $53,211

-

Products and Services

i Life, accident and health

insurance: group and individual
term life plans; supplemental
health insurance such as cancer,
dread disease and hospital cash
= Expatriate medical, dental and
vision coverages; life insurance;
long-term disability

= Health care: private medical

insurance {PMI) and top-up
PMI; ancillary products such as
dental, pharmacy and vision

Premiums end Fees (in Millions) $811

Business Mix Premiums and Fees

Health Care 56%

Life, Accident,
Health & Other 44%

<
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HIGHLIGHTS

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
REVENUES
Premiums and fees and other revenues $ 16,870 $ 15,940 $ 16,579 $ 15,304 $ 14,044
Net investment income 2,716 2,842 2,940 2,958 3,114
Realized investment gains (losses) (238) (175) 7 8 134
TOTAL REVENUES $ 19,348 $ 18,607 $ 19,526 $ 18,270 $ 17,292
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Operating income (loss):
Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits $ 579 $ 730 $ 756 $ 714 3 590
Employee Retirement Benefits and Investment
Services 231 221 257 265 248
International Life, Health and Employee Benefits 31 95 48 (342) 17
Run-off Reinsurance Operations (1,070) 57 (119) 35 15
Other Operations 74 76 93 104 314
Corporate @7 96) (58) (78) 97)
Total operating income (loss) (242) 1,083 977 698 1,087
Realized investment gains (losses), net of taxes (155) (112) 4 4 88
Income (loss) from continuing operations (397) 971 981 702 1,175
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (@b 18 6 1,163 117
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes — — — @1 —
NET INCOME (LOSS}) S  (398) 3 989 h) 987 $ 1,774 3 1,292
NET INCOME (LOSS) EXCLUDING GOODWILL
AMORTIZATION S (398) $ 1,037 $ 1,035 $ 1,822 $ 1,340
Income (loss) per share from continuing operations:
Basic S (2.83) $ 657 $ 614 $ 361 $  8.57
Diluted S (2.83) $ 647 $ 6.04 $  3.56 $ 5.50
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ (2.83) $ 669 $ 6.18 $ 912 $ 612
Diluted F (2.83) $ 6.59 $ 6.08 5 899 $ 6.05
Common dividends declared per share S 1.32 $ 128 $ 124 $ 120 $ 115
Total assets $ 88,950 $ 91,589 $ 95,088 $ 95,333 $ 95,890
Long-term debt $ 1,500 $ 1,626 $ 1,162 $ 1,357 $ 1,425
Shareholders’ equity 3 3,867 $ 5,055 $ 5,413 $ 6,149 $ 8277
Per share S 27.75 $ 3571 § 3561 $ 3624 $ 4025
Common shares outstanding (in thousands) 139,370 141,553 152,005 169,697 205,650
Shareholders of record 9,945 10,437 10,947 11,716 12,441
Employees 41,200 44,600 43,200 41,900 49,900

Operating income (loss) is defined as net income (loss) excluding: 1) after-tax realized investment results, 2) results of discontinued operations, and 3) in 1999, the
cumulative effect of adopting Statement of Position 97-3, "‘Accounting by Insurance and Other Enterprises for Insurance-Related Assessments.” For more information
regarding the effect of adopting accounting pronouncements, see Note 2(B) in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Operating income (loss) is the measure of
profitability used by CIGNA in evaluating segment results. It excludes the effects of realized gains and losses attributable to CIGNA's investment portfolio to present the
underlying results of operations of CIGNA’s businesses. Operating income (loss) is not determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
and should not be viewed as a substitute for net income determined in accordance with GAAP. Other companies may define operating income (loss) differently than

does CIGNA.

In January 2003, CIGNA sold the operations of Lovelace Health Systems, Inc., an integrated heaith care system and subsidiary of CIGNA. This business has been
reported as discontinued operations. Prior year financial information has been reclassified.

In 1999, CIGNA sold its domestic and international property and casualty business and reported this business as discontinued operations.




Menagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finandal Condition and Resulis of Operations

INDEX CONSOLUIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
18  Consolidated Results of Operations dn millions)
Financial Summary 2002 2001 2000
20 Other Matters Premiums and fees $ 15,737 $ 14,860 § 15,862
. . g Net investment income 2,716 2,842 2,940
27 Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits Other reventies 1,133 1,080 717
29  Employee Retirement Benefits and Investment Services Realized investment
gains (losses) (238) (175) 7
30 International Life, Health and Employee Benefits Total Tevenues 19,348 18,607 19,526
317 Run-offReinsurance Operations Benefits and expenses 19,917 17,138 18,039
Income (loss) from
34 Other Operations continuing operations
y before taxes (benefits) (569) 1,469 1,487
3 Corporate Income taxes (benefits) (172) 498 506
34  Discontinued Operations Income (loss) from
continuing operations 397) 971 981
35 quuldity and Capltal Resources Less realized investment gains
15
38 Investiment Assets (1053('35), 1.‘xet of taxes (155) (112) 4
Operating income (loss) s (242) $ 1,083 $ 977
40 Market Risk of Financial Instruments Income (loss) from
. continuing operations $ (397) § 971 $ 981
42 Cautionary Statement 8 op S
Income (loss) from
discontinued operations (1) 18 6
Net income (loss) (398) 989 987
Adjustment to exclude goodwill
amortization in 2001 and 2000 — 48 48
Net income (loss) excluding
goodwill amortization $ (398 § 1,037 $ 1,035
Net Income (Loss)

Net income (loss) is determined in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and includes both !
income (loss) from continuing operations and from ‘
discontinued operations. The net loss of $398 million in 2002,
compared with net income of $1.0 billion (excluding goodwill
amortization) in 2001, was primarily due to the following

factors:

¢ charges of $1.0 billion after-tax in the run-off reinsurance
operations as more fully described under “Other Matters"”;

o Jower net income in the Employee Health Care, Life and
Disability Benefits segment due in part to an after-tax
charge of $§50 million related to health care provider
litigation;

° lower recognized gains of approximately $100 million after-
tax on sales of businesses;

° the absence of net income of $52 million from the Japanese
life insurance operation, which was fully divested in the
fourth quarter of 2001; and

° higher realized investment losses.

Net income in 2001 was essentially level with 2000, primarily
reflecting higher recognized gains on sales of businesses, offset
by realized investment losses.




Operating Income (Loss)

CIGNA focuses on “operating income (loss)” to evaluate
segment results. Operating income (1oss) is defined as net
income (loss) excluding after-tax realized investment results
and excluding the results of discontinued operations. Since
operating income (loss) excludes the effects of realized gains
and losses attributable to CIGNA's investment portfolio,
management believes it presents the underlying results of
operations of CIGNA’s businesses.

The following table presents operating income (loss), as
defined above, adjusted for certain items that are attributable
to special circumstances (“‘adjusted operating income (loss)”).
These items are identified in the table below and are further
discussed under “Other Matters” beginning on page 20.
Management believes that adjustments for these items present
a clearer picture of underlying results of operations which
management believes will be helpful to the reader. Operating
income (loss) and adjusted operating income (loss) are not
determined in accordance with GAAP and should not be
viewed as a substitute for net income (loss) determined in
accordance with GAAP. Other companies may define these
terms differently than does CIGNA.

2002 2001 2000
$(242) § 1,083 § 977

(In millions)
Operating income (loss)
Losses on specialty life

reinsurance contracts 720 — 84
Charge for Unicover and London

reinsurance matters 317 - —_
Restructuring costs* 95 62 —
Health care provider litigation 50 - —

Accelerated recognition of portion
of deferred gain on sale of life

reinsurance business » (69) —
Gain on sales of interests in Japanese

life insurance operation — (35) —
Charges (credit) for the events of

September 11, 2001 2) 25 —
Charges for the run-off

reinsurance business — — 43
Adjusted operating income 235 1,066 1,104
Adjustment to exclude goodwill

amortization in 2001 and 2000 — 48 48
Adjusted operating income (excluding

goodwill amortization) $ 935 $ 1,114 $ 1,152

* Restructuring costs in 2002 reflect charges of $97 million after-tax
associated with the cost reduction program adopted in the fourth
quarter of 2002, and a reduction of 32 million after-tax in the costs
associated with the fourth quarter 2001 restructuring program.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Adjusted operating income (excluding goodwill amortization
in 2001) decreased 16% in 2002 primarily due to:

° lower earnings in the Employee Health Care, Life and
Disability Benefits segment;

° lower earnings in the International Life, Health and
Employee Benefits segment (because CIGNA sold its interest
in the Japanese life insurance operation in 2001); and

e higher losses in the Run-off Reinsurance Operations
segment.

Adjusted operating income (excluding goodwill amortization
in 2001 and 2000) decreased 3% in 2001 primarily due to lower
results in Corporate, the Employee Retirement Benefits and
Investment Services segment, the Run-off Reinsurance
Operations segment and Other Operations. These declines were
partially offset by increased adjusted operating income in the
Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits segment
and, to a lesser extent, improved results in the International
Life, Health and Employee Benefits segment. Segment results
are discussed in more detail below.

Realized Investment Results

The increase in realized investment losses in 2002 primarily
reflects:

° higher losses on sales of fixed maturities;

° losses on sales of equity securities compared to gains in
2001; and

° higher impairments on equity securities and real estate
investments.

These losses were partially offset by gains on sales of real estate
investments and lower impairments on investments in
collateralized debt obligations, which are secured by pools of
corporate debt obligations. Further information regarding -
collateralized debt obligations is presented on page 39.

The decline in realized investment results in 2001 reflects
higher losses from impairments on fixed maturities. These
losses include $84 million after-tax (3129 million pre-tax) for
investments in collateralized debt obligations. The decline also
reflects losses of $14 million after-tax ($22 million pre-tax) for
investments in securities of Enron Corporation.

For additional information, see Note 9(B) to the Financial
Statements. The weakness in certain sectors of the economy is
likely to cause additional investment losses. Refer to
“Investment Assets” beginning on page 38 for further
information.
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Recent Stock Market Declines

The performance of equity markets can have a significant effect
on CIGNA'’s businesses and recent declines in equity markets
have had an adverse effect on CIGNA. See, for example,

pages 31 through 33 for a discussion of the charge related to
certain specialty life reinsurance contracts, which primarily
resulted from equity market declines. In addition, assets under
management are a determinant of earnings for the retirement
business, and a reduction in asset values reduces asset-based
fees for that business. (See page 30 for further information).

Equity securities also comprise a key portion of the assets of
CIGNA’s pension plans. CIGNA increased its minimum
pension liability in the fourth quarter of 2002, based on the
effect of equity market declines on the value of pension plan
assets and reduced long-term interest rates, resulting in an
after-tax charge to equity of $638 million. See Note 14 to the
Financial Statements for additional information on CIGNA’s
pension plans.

Revenues

Consolidated revenues, excluding realized investment results,
were $19.6 billion in 2002, $18.8 billion in 2001 and

$19.5 billion in 2000. The increase in 2002 primarily reflects
higher Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) and medical
indemnity premiums and fees due to rate increases.

The decline in 2001 consolidated revenues is primarily
attributed to:

® the reduction of revenues in the International Life, Health
and Employee Benefits segment resulting from the
deconsolidation of the Japanese life insurance operation
(see further discussion below in “Other Matters”); and

¢ CIGNA'’s continuing operations exit from all but one
Medicare market in the Employee Health Care, Life and
Disability Benefits segment.

Excluding the effects of these two matters, consolidated
revenues increased 6% in 2001. This increase is primarily due
to growth in the Employee Health Care, Life and Disability
Benefits segment resulting from HMO and medical indemnity
rate increases and membership growth.

Outlock for 2003

Subject to the factors noted in the Cautionary Statement on
page 42, management expects full year adjusted operating
income in 2003 to be lower than 2002 adjusted operating
income of $935 million, which excludes items attributable to
special circumstances (presented in the table on page 19). This
outlook for 2003 primarily reflects expected lower earnings in
the health care operations due to:

e lower expected membership levels; and

e higher expected expenses per member, for customer service
and technology including costs to comply with the
requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (see page 25).

OTHER MATTERS

Charges for the Run-off Reinsurance Operations

In 2002, CIGNA recognized an after-tax charge of $720 million
($1.1 billion pre-tax) to strengthen reserves related to certain
specialty life reinsurance contracts and the adoption of a
program to substantially reduce equity market risks related to
these contracts. CIGNA also recognized an after-tax charge of
$317 million ($408 million pre-tax) in 2002 for Unicover and
other run-off reinsurance exposures, including London
reinsurance business. In 2000, CIGNA recorded an after-tax
charge of $127 million ($195 million pre-tax) principally for
the run-off specialty life and personal accident reinsurance
contracts. See the Run-off Reinsurance Operations segment
beginning on page 31 for further information on these charges.

Restructuring Programs

Fourth quarter 2002 prograve. In the fourth quarter of 2002,
CIGNA adopted a restructuring program primarily to realign
the organizational structure and operations of its health care
business. As a result, CIGNA recognized in operating expenses
an after-tax charge of $97 million ($151 million pre-tax) in the
Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits segment.
The after-tax charge consisted of $74 million of severance costs
($116 million pre-tax), $22 million in real estate costs

(334 million pre-tax) related to vacating certain leased facilities
and $3 million ($4 million pre-tax) of asset impairment
charges. These amounts were partially offset by a reduction in
costs of $2 million after-tax ($3 million pre-tax) for other
postretirement benefits for employees terminated in 2002. This
benefit cost reduction will continue in 2003 as additional
employees are terminated, aggregating approximately

$11 million after-tax ($17 million pre-tax).

The severance charge reflected the expected reduction of
approximately 3,900 employees. As part of the plan, CIGNA
expects to hire approximately 650 employees to support newly
consolidated operations, thereby resulting in a net reduction of
approximately 3,250 employees under this program. As of
December 31, 2002, approximately 700 employees had been
terminated under the program. As of December 31, 2002,
CIGNA had paid $4 million related to severance under this
program.

CIGNA expects this restructuring program to be substantially
completed by year end 2003 and does not expect cash outlays
under this program to have a significant effect on liquidity.
CIGNA expects the program to result in net annual after-tax
savings of approximately $100 million in 2003 and
approximately $130 million beginning in 2004, reflecting the
elimination of salary costs for terminated employees and lower
facility costs.




The table below shows CIGNA's restructuring activity (pre-tax)
related to severance and real estate for this program:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The table below shows CIGNA's restructuring activity (pre-tax)
for this program:

Severamce Severance
No. of Real Total No. of Real Total
(Dollars in millions) Employees Cost Estate Charge (Dollars in millions) Employees  Cost Estate Charge
Fourth quarter 2002 charge 3,890 $ 116 $ 38 $ 154 Fourth quarter 2001 charge 3100 $ 48 § 48 $ 96
Fourth quarter 2002 activity: Fourth quarter 2001 activity:
Employees (713) @) @ Employees (436) 5) 5)
Lease costs — — Lease costs oY) (€Y]
Asset write-downs 4@) @ Asset write-downs (11) (11)
Balance as of Balance as of
December 31, 2002 3,177 $ 112 $ 34 $ 146 December 31, 2001 2,664 43 36 79
2002 activity:
Fourth quarter 2001 program. In the fourth quarter of 2001, Employees (2,366) (36) (36)
CIGNA adopted a restructuring program primatily to Lease costs (2) )
consolidate existing health service centers into regional service Adjustment of
centers. As a result, CIGNA recognized in operating expenses remaining balance (143) 7 (11) @

an after-tax charge of $62 million ($96 million pre-tax) in the
Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits segment.
The after-tax charge consisted of $31 million of severance costs
($48 million pre-tax) and $31 million in real estate costs

($48 million pre-tax) related to vacating certain leased
facilities.

The severance charge reflected the expected reduction of
approximately 3,100 employees. As a result of the
consolidation of health service centers, CIGNA hired
approximately 1,100 employees, thereby resulting in a net
reduction of approximately 2,000 employees under this
program. As of December 31, 2002, approximately 2,800
employees had been terminated under the program (2,366
employees were terminated in 2002). The real estate charges
consisted of $37 million pre-tax related to vacating leased
facilities, which are cash obligations pertaining to non-
cancelable lease obligations and lease termination penalties.
The charge also included $11 million pre-tax of non-cash asset
write-downs. As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had paid

$44 million related to severance and vacating leased facilities
under this program ($38 million was paid in 2002).

This restructuring program was substantially completed in the
fourth quarter of 2002. Cash outlays under this program did
not result in, nor are the remaining cash outlays expected to
have, a significant effect on CIGNA’s liquidity. CIGNA expects
the program to result in net annual after-tax savings of
$45-$55 million, reflecting the elimination of salary costs for
terminated employees and lower facility costs, partially offset
by salary costs for new employees in the regional service
centers and higher expenses associated with technology
improvement initiatives. CIGNA expects savings from the
program to be fully realized beginning in 2003. As a result of
additional technology enhancement expenses and other
expenses associated with the restructuring program, CIGNA
did not achieve significant savings in 2002 from this
restructuring program.

Balance as of

December 31, 2002 15§ $ 14 $ 23 $ 37

During 2002, CIGNA made certain adjustments associated with
this restructuring program, resulting in a net adjustment of
$4 million pre-tax (32 million after-tax).

Acquisitions and Dispositions

Over the long term, CIGNA's priorities for use of capital are
internal growth, acquisitions and share repurchase. Given the
capital needs of CIGNA's principal subsidiary (Connecticut
General Life Insurance Company) primarily resulting from the
charges for the run-off reinsurance operations (see pages 31
through 33), CIGNA intends to retain capital and has
suspended share repurchase. CIGNA conducts regular strategic
and financial reviews of its businesses to ensure that its capital
is used effectively. As a result of these reviews, CIGNA may
from time to time acquire or dispose of assets, subsidiaries or
lines of business. Significant transactions are described below.

Sale of Lovelace Health Systems. In January 2003, CIGNA sold
the operations of Lovelace Health Systems, Inc. (Lovelace), an
integrated health care system located in New Mexico that
includes a multi-specialty physician group practice, a hospital,
family practice clinics and a health plan, for cash proceeds of
approximately $210 million. The sale generated an after-tax
gain of approximately $30 million which will be recognized in
the first quarter of 2003. In the fourth quarter of 2002, CIGNA
began reporting this business as discontinued operations and
prior year financial information has been reclassified.

During 2002, CIGNA increased reserves for a Medicare cost
reporting matter associated with Lovelace (see page 26) by

$9 million after-tax (814 million pre-tax). In the fourth quarter
of 2002, Lovelace entered into a settlement agreement with the
federal government related to this matter. This charge is
included in results of discontinued operations.




Sale of Brazilian health care operations. In January 2003,
CIGNA sold its Brazilian health care operations. CIGNA
expects to record a net gain of approximately $15 million after-
tax in the first quarter of 2003 associated with this sale,
primarily as a result of the disposition of the net liabilities
associated with these operations. The gain will be reported as
part of discontinued operations. Revenues, expenses and
results of operations of the Brazilian health care operations are
not material to CIGNA’s consolidated financial statements.

Sales of interests in Japanese life insurance operation. CIGNA
sold its remaining interest in its Japanese life insurance
operation in 2001. See the International Life, Health and
Employee Benefits section on page 30 for further discussion.

Sale of portions of U.S. life reinsurance business. As of June 1,
2000, CIGNA sold its U.S. individual life, group life and
accidental death reinsurance business for cash proceeds of
approximately $170 million. The sale generated an after-tax
gain of approximately $85 million, but recognition of that gain
was deferred because the sale was structured as an indemnity
reinsurance arrangement.

During 2002 and 2001, the acquirer entered intc agreements
with the reinsured parties, relieving CIGNA of any remaining
obligations to those parties. As a result, CIGNA accelerated the
recognition of $3 million after-tax of the deferred gain in 2002
and $69 million after-tax in 2001. In addition to the
accelerated gain recognition, CIGNA recognized less than

$1 million after-tax of the deferred gain in the Run-off
Reinsurance Operations segment in 2002, compared with

$9 million after-tax in 2001. The remaining deferred gain as of
December 31, 2002, was approximately $1 million after-tax.

CIGNA has placed its remaining reinsurance businesses
(including its accident, domestic health, international life and
health, and specialty life reinsurance businesses) into run-off
and has stopped underwriting new reinsurance business. As
discussed in the Run-off Reinsurance Operations section
beginning on page 31, CIGNA recorded after-tax charges in
2002 and 2000 related to the run-off reinsurance business.

Events of September 11, 2001

As a result of claims arising from the events of September 11,
2001, CIGNA recorded after-tax charges of $25 million in 2001.
These charges, which are net of reinsurance, primarily related
to life, accident and disability claims and, to a lesser extent,
higher utilization of managed behavioral health services. These
charges were reported by segment as follows: Employee Health
Care, Life and Disability Benefits, $20 million; Employee
Retirement Benefits and Investment Services, $3 million; and
Run-off Reinsurance Operations, $2 million. During the fourth
quarter of 2002, CIGNA revised its estimate of liabilities
associated with the events of September 11, 2001, and
recognized an after-tax credit of $2 million in the Run-off
Reinsurance Operations segment.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts and related
disclosures. Management considers an accounting estimate to
be critical if:

e it requires assumptions to be made that were uncertain at
the time the estimate was made; and

¢ changes in the estimate or different estimates that could
have been selected could have a material impact on
CIGNA’s consolidated results of operations or financial
condition.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The table that follows presents information about CIGNA’s most critical accounting estimates, as well as the effects of hypothetical
changes in the material assumptions used to develop each estimate.

Balance Sheet Caption /
Nature of Critical Estimate Item

Assumptions / Approach Used

Effect if
Different Assumptions Used

Future policy benefits —
Variable annuity death benefits

Reserves for these liabilities are estimates
of the present value of net amounts
expected to be paid, less the present
value of net future premiums expected to
be received. The amounts to be paid
represent the excess of the guaranteed
death benefit over the values of
annuitants’ accounts. The death benefits
coverage in force at December 31, 2002
(representing the amount payable if all
annuitants had died as of that date) was
approximately $23.4 billion.

Management estimates these reserves based on
assumptions and other considerations,
including lapse, partial surrender, mortality,
interest rates and volatility. These are based on
CIGNA's experience and future expectations.
CIGNA monitors actual experience to update
these reserve estimates as necessary.

Lapse refers to the full surrender of an annuity
prior to an annuitant’s death.

Partial surrender refers to the fact that most
annuitants have the ability to withdraw
substantially all of their mutual fund
investments while retaining any available death
benefit coverage in effect at the time of the
withdrawal. A very small percentage of
annuitants have elected partial surrenders to
date.

Volatility refers to market volatility that affects
the costs of the program adopted by CIGNA to
reduce equity market risks associated with these
liabilities.

CIGNA recorded a $720 million after-tax charge

($1.1 billion pre-tax) in 2002 in connection
with stock market declines and implementation
of a risk reduction program for these liabilities.
See further discussion beginning on page 32.

If a 10% unfavorable change were to occur for
the following assumptions, the after-tax
decrease in net income would be as follows:

* Mortality - $95 million
e Lapse - $70 million
o Volatility - $55 million

An increase in CIGNA's liabilities for variable
annuity death benefits due to partial surrenders
would depend on many factors, including
financial market conditions prior to surrender
and annuitant behavior.

Management believes the current assumptions
and other considerations used to estimate
reserves for these liabilities are appropriate.
However, if actual experience differs from the
assumptions and other considerations
(including lapse, partial surrender, mortality,
interest rates and volatility) used in estimating
reserves, the resulting change could have a
material adverse effect on CIGNA'’s consolidated
results of operations, and in certain situations,
could have a material adverse effect on CIGNA’s
financial condition.

The amounts would be reflected in the Run-off
Reinsurance Operations segment.

Unpaid claims and claim expenses -
Unpaid claims for guaranteed cost
and retrospectively experience-rated
health care products

Unpaid claims for guaranteed cost and
retrospectively experience-rated health
care products include both reported
claims and estimates for losses incurred
but not yet reported.

Unpaid claims for guaranteed cost and
retrospectively experience-rated health care
products are estimated using actuarial models
based on historical data for payment patterns,
cost trends, product mix, seasonality, utilization
of health care services and other relevant
factors.

Reserves for these liabilities for the year ended
December 31 were as follows:

o 2002 - 3$1.73 billiom
° 2001 - § 1.52 billion
* 2000 - § 1.50 billion

The above amounts reflect that portion of
unpaid claims and claim expenses included in
CIGNA's consolidated balance sheets, which are
attributable to guaranteed cost and
retrospectively experience-rated health care
operations. It excludes amounts for
administrative services only business.

The estimation process for determining
liabilities for unpaid claims for health care
products inherently results in adjustments each
year for claims incurred (but not paid) in
preceding years. During the year ended
December 31, CIGNA’s net income was
increased for such adjustments for prior year
claims, as follows (amounts after-tax):

o 2002 - $44 milliom
* 2001 - $36 million
e 2000 - $57 million

A 1% increase in the assumed cost trend would
reduce net income by $35 million after-tax.

This charge would impact the Employee Health
Care, Life and Disability Benefits segment.




Balance Sheet Caption /
Nature of Critical Estimate Item

Assumptions / Approach Used

Effect if
Different Assumptions Used

Reinsurance recoverables —
Reinsurance recoverables for Run-off
Reinsurance Operations

Collectibility of reinsurance recoverables
requires an assessment of risks that such
amounts will not be collected, including
risks associated with reinsurer default
and disputes with reinsurers regarding
applicable coverage.

The amount of reinsurance recoverable, net of
reserves, represents management’s best estimate
of recoverability, including an assessment of the
financial strength of reinsurers. The ultimate
amounts received are dependent, in certain
cases, on the resolution of disputes with
reinsurers, including the outcome of arbitration
proceedings.

Net reinsurance recoverables for the Run-off
Reinsurance Operations segment for the year
ended December 31, were as follows:

° 2002 - $765 milliom

° 2001 - $938 million
° 2000 - $ 895 million

A 10% reduction of net reinsurance recoverables
at December 31, 2002, would reduce net income
by $59 million after-tax.

This charge would impact the Run-off
Reinsurance Operations segment.

Investments — Fixed maturities

Recognition of losses from “‘other than

temporary” impairnments of public
and private placement fixed
maturities
Losses for “other than temporary”
impairments of fixed maturities must be
recognized in net income based on an
estimate of fair value by management.

Changes in fair value are reflected as an
increase or decrease in shareholders’
equity. A decrease in fair value is
recognized in net income when the
decrease is determined to be “‘other than
temporary.”

Determining whether a decline in value
is “other than temporary” includes an
evaluation of the reasons for and the
significance of the decrease in value of
the security as well as the duration of the
decrease.

Management estimates the amount of “‘other
than temporary” impairment when a decline in
value is expected to persist, using quoted market
prices for public securities with active markets
and the present value of future cash flows for
private placement bonds. Expected future cash
flows are based on historical experience of the
issuer and management’s expectation of future
performance.

CIGNA recognized “other than temporary”
impairments of investments in fixed maturities
as follows (after-tax, excluding policyholder
share*):

° 2002-3 84 milliom

° 2001 - $120 million
° 2000 - $ 32 million

For all fixed maturities with cost in excess of
their fair value, the excess of cost which has not
been recognized in net income as of

December 31, 2002, was $79 million, after-tax,
excluding policyholder share*.

For private placement bonds considered
impaired, a decrease of 10% of all expected
future cash flows for the impaired bonds would
reduce net income by $10 million after-tax,
excluding policyholder share*.

* Investment securities are attributable to CIGNA’s various business segments; amounts noted are presented from a consolidated perspective
and are net of policyholder share (i.e., these amounts exclude the impact of gains and losses on investment assets related to experience-rated

pension policyholders’ contracts because these amounts generally accrue to the policyholders).




Management has discussed the development and selection of
these critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee
of CIGNA's Board of Directors and the Audit Committee has
reviewed the disclosure presented above relating to them.

In addition, there are other accounting estimates within
CIGNA's consolidated financial statements, including reserves
for: unpaid claims and claim expenses and future policy
benefits in CIGNA’s consolidated balance sheets other than
those identified in the preceding table, post-employment and
postretirement benefits, certain compensation accruals, and
income and other tax exposures.

Management believes the current assumptions and other
considerations used to estimate amounts reflected in CIGNA’s
consolidated financial statements are appropriate. However, if
actual experience differs from the assumptions and other
considerations used in estimating amounts reflected in
CIGNA'’s consolidated financial statements, the resulting
changes could have a material adverse effect on CIGNA's
consolidated results of operations, and in certain situations,
could have a material adverse effect on CIGNA’s financial
condition.

See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for further information
on key accounting policies that impact CIGNA.

Regulatory and Industry Developments

CIGNA’s businesses are subject to a changing social, economic,
legal, legislative and regulatory environment. Some current
issues that may affect CIGNA's businesses include:

* initiatives to increase health care regulation;
¢ efforts to expand tort liability of health plans;

® class action lawsuits targeting health care companies,
including CIGNA;

¢ initiatives to restrict insurance pricing and the application
of underwriting standards; and

¢ efforts to revise federal tax laws, including proposals to
change the federal tax treatment of dividends and of
savings vehicles currently offered as employee benefits.

Health care regulation. Federal and state legislatures,
administrative agencies and courts continue efforts to increase
regulation of the health care industry and change its
operational practices. Regulatory and operational changes
could have an adverse effect on CIGNA'’s health care
operations if they reduce marketplace competition and
innovation or result in increased medical or administrative
costs without improving the quality of care. Debate at the
federal level over “managed care reform” and “‘patients’ bill of
rights” legislation, focusing on questions regarding liability, is
expected to continue.

Privacy regulations under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996 cover all aspects of the
health care delivery system, and address the use and disclosure
of individually identifiable health care information.
Compliance with the privacy regulations is required by April
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2003. In addition to the privacy regulations, HIPAA establishes
national electronic transaction standards, which apply to
health insurers, providers and other covered entities. They are
intended to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the
nation’s health care system by encouraging the widespread use
of electronic data interchange. CIGNA must implement these
standards by October 2003.

Regulations issued in February 2003 set standards for the
security of electronic health information, and must be
implemented by CIGNA by April 2005. CIGNA has
implemented certain security measures and planned others in
anticipation of these rules. Other proposed HIPAA regulations
include standards for the assignment of a unique national
identifier for each health plan and provider and requirements
for a unique national identifier for employer groups. CIGNA
has commenced significant systems enhancements, training
and administrative efforts to satisfy these requirements.
Incremental technology and business-related expenses
associated with CIGNA's compliance efforts were
approximately $20 million after-tax in 2002 and are estimated
to be approximately $60 million after-tax in 2003.

Other possible regulatory changes that could have an adverse
effect on CIGNA'’s health care operations include:

e additional mandated benefits or services that increase costs
without improving the quality of care;

° narrowing of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
of 1974 (ERISA) preemption of state laws;

¢ changes in ERISA regulations resulting in increased
administrative burdens and costs;

° additional restrictions on the use of prescription drug
formularies;

° additional privacy legislation and regulations that interfere
with the proper use of medical information for research,
coordination of medical care and disease management;

° additional rules establishing the time periods for payment
of health care provider claims that vary from state to state;
and

e legislation that would exempt independent physicians from
antitrust laws.

The health care industry is under increasing scrutiny by
various state and federal government agencies and could be
subject to government efforts to bring criminal actions in
circumstances that could previously have given rise only to
civil or administrative proceedings.

Litigation and other legal matters. CIGNA and several heaith
care industry competitors were named as defendants in federal
and state purported class action lawsuits. A Florida federal
court has certified a class of health care providers who allege
violations under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt
Organizations Act and ERISA. CIGNA and the other defendants
have appealed that decision. The Florida federal court denied
class certification to health plan subscribers, and the plaintiffs
have not filed an appeal of that decision.
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An Illinois state court certified a class action lawsuit against
CIGNA by health care providers alleging breach of contract
and seeking increased reimbursements. This state claim was
removed to federal court in [llinois, where a settlement
agreement between the parties was filed on November 26,
2002. If approved, the agreement will encompass most of the
claims brought on behalf of health care providers asserted in
other state and federal jurisdictions. On February 21, 2003, the
Judicial Panel for Multidistrict Litigation ordered the Illinois
case to be transferred to the Florida federal court, which will
decide whether the settlement should be approved. In
connection with this matter, CIGNA recognized a charge of
$50 million after-tax ($77 million pre-tax) in the fourth quarter
of 2002, for expected costs associated with health care provider
class action litigation. As this matter has not been resolved,
adjustments to this amount in future periods are possible.

In 2002, CIGNA recognized a charge for the result of an
arbitration ruling related to reinsurance (retrocessional)
coverage of a workers’ compensation reinsurance pool. This
charge also included a review of CIGNA's exposures for the
run-off reinsurance operations, including an assessment of
London market retrocessional disputes and exposures. The
underlying London market retrocessional disputes are not
expected to be resolved for some time. CIGNA's reserve balance
is based on a current assessment of these matters, the outcomes
of which could result in adjustments to CIGNA's reserve. See
also page 33 for further discussion.

The U. S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania is investigating compliance with federal laws in
connection with pharmaceutical companies’ marketing
practices and their impact on prices paid by the government to
pharmaceutical companies for products under federal health
programs. As part of this investigation, CIGNA is responding to
subpoenas concerning contractual relationships between
pharmaceutical companies and CIGNA's health care
operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, several purported class action
lawsuits as well as two shareholder derivative complaints
nominally on behalf of CIGNA were filed in federal court in
the Eastern District of Pennsylvania against CIGNA and certain
of its senior officers and directors alleging securities law
violations and breaches of fiduciary duty. Another purported
class action lawsuit has been filed against CIGNA and certain
officers, also in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, by an
individual who seeks to represent a class of participants in the
CIGNA 401(k) Plan who allegedly suffered losses on
investments in CIGNA stock from May 2, 2001 to the present,
asserting violations of ERISA. In addition, in the fourth quarter

of 2002, the Securities and Exchange Commission notified
CIGNA that it has opened an informal inquiry into matters
relating to CIGNA.

The Department of Justice and Office of Inspector General of
the Department of Health and Human Services investigated a
subsidiary of CIGNA, Lovelace Health Systems, Inc., (Lovelace)
regarding Medicare cost reporting practices for the years 1990
through 1999. In 2002, CIGNA increased reserves for this
matter by $9 million after-tax ($14 million pre-tax). This
matter was resolved in December 2002, by a settlement
agreement between the parties. CIGNA sold its Lovelace
subsidiary on January 15, 2003.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, a Connecticut federal court
certified a class action lawsuit against CIGNA and the CIGNA
Pension Plan. The plaintiffs are participants in the Plan who
earned certain Plan benefits prior to 1998. The plaintiffs allege,
among other things, that the Plan violated ERISA by
impermissibly conditioning certain post-1997 benefit accruals
on the amount of pre-1998 benefit accruals, and that these
conditions are not adequately disclosed to Plan participants.

CIGNA is routinely involved in numerous lawsuits and other
legal matters arising, for the most part, in the ordinary course
of the business of administering and insuring employee benefit
programs. An increasing number of claims are being made for
substantial non-economic, extra-contractual or punitive
damages. The outcome of litigation and other legal matters is
always uncertain, and outcomes that are not justified by the
evidence can occur. CIGNA believes that it has valid defenses
to the legal matters pending against it and is defending itself
vigorously. Nevertheless, it is possible that resolution of one or
more of the legal matters currently pending or threatened
could result in losses material to CIGNA's consolidated results
of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

Summary. The eventual effect on CIGNA of the changing
environment in which it operates remains uncertain. For
additional information on contingencies that could affect
CIGNA'’s results, see Note 21 to the Financial Statements.

Accounting Pronouncements
For information on recent accounting pronouncements, see
Note 2(B) to the Financial Statements.

Segment Reporting Changes

For information regarding changes to CIGNA’s segment
reporting, see Note 19 to the Financial Statements.




EMPLOYEE HEALTH CARE, LIFE AND DISABILITY BENEFITS

(In millions)

Financial Summary 2002 2001 2000
Premiums and fees $14,336  $ 13,459 $ 12,959
Net investment income 558 599 604
Other revenues 9285 686 581
Segment revenues 15,819 14,744 14,144
Benefits and expenses 14,954 13,624 12,976
Income before taxes 865 1,120 1,168
Income taxes 286 390 412
Operating income 579 730 756
Restructuring costs (in 2002—

HMO, $64; Indemnity, $31;

in 2001—HMO, $34;

Indemnity, $28) 95 62 —
Health care provider litigation

(HMO, $26; Indemnity, $24) 50 —_ —_
Charges for the events of

September 11, 2001 (HMO, $§;

Indemnity, $15) — 20 —
Adjusted operating income 724 812 756
Adjustment to exclude goodwill

amortization in 2001 and 2000 — 48 48
Adjusted operating income

{excluding goodwill

amortization) $ 724 $ 860 $ 804
Realized investment gains

(losses), net of taxes $ 84y § 49 $ 6

Adjusted Operating Income

Adjusted operating income (excluding goodwill amortization
in 2001 and 2000) for the Employee Health Care, Life and
Disability Benefits segment decreased 16% in 2002 and
increased 7% in 2001.

CIGNA further separates this segment into HMO and
Indemnity operations. HMO includes medical managed care
and specialty health care operations such as managed
behavioral health, medical cost and utilization management,
managed dental, managed pharmacy programs and
pharmaceutical fulfillment services. Indemnity includes
medical and dental indemnity, and group disability, life and
accident insurance operations.

Adjusted operating income (excluding goodwill amortization
in 2001 and 2000) for the HMO and Indemnity operations was
as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
HMO operations $ 455 $ 467 § 483
Indemnity operations 269 393 321

Total

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

HMO results (excluding goodwill amortization in 2001)
decreased 3% in 2002 primarily due to:

e significantly lower earnings in HMO Administrative
Services Only (ASO) programs, primarily resulting from
higher operating expenses for customer service initiatives;
and

°  to alesser extent, lower Medicare earnings.
These declines were partially offset by:

° significantly improved results in the specialty health care
operations primarily due to business growth; and

¢ increased earnings in the guaranteed cost HMO business
reflecting rate increases.

HMO results (excluding goodwill amortization in 2001 and
2000) decreased 3% in 2001 due to lower earnings in the
guaranteed cost HMO business and in HMO ASO programs, in
part, due to higher operating expenses for technology and
customer service initiatives. The decline in the guaranteed cost
HMO business also reflected higher medical costs primarily due
to increased unit costs for, and higher use of, professional
services, as well as inpatient and outpatient services. These
declines were partially offset by higher earnings in the specialty
health care operations and Medicare business in 2001.

Indemnity results (excluding goodwill amortization in 2001)
decreased 32% in 2002 due to the following factors:

o significantly lower earnings in the experience-rated and
guaranteed cost health care businesses primarily due to
lower margins on new business, poor performance of
certain large new accounts and margin deterioration on
renewal business; and

e higher expenses for the indemnity health care business due
to technology and customer service initiatives.

These declines in indemnity health care operations were
partially offset by increased earnings in the long-term disability
business, primarily due to higher rates and more favorable
claim experience, and increased earnings in the group life
insurance business resulting from lower expenses.

Indemnity results (excluding goodwill amortization in 2001
and 2000) increased 22% in 2001 reflecting improvements in
results for:

¢ the long-term disability business, primarily due to higher
rates and improved claims administration;

e the retrospectively experience-rated health care business,
reflecting rate increases and higher membership;

¢ the guaranteed cost health care business, as a result of
improved claim experience; and

e the ASO business, reflecting fee increases.

These improvements were partially offset by lower earnings in
the group life insurance business in 2001.
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Organizational Realignment and Cost Reduction Initiatives

As a result of significantly lower earnings in its health care
operations in 2002, CIGNA undertook a review of the health
care organizational structure and operations with the
objectives of:

° achieving additional operational efficiencies and improved
accountability within the organization;

¢ strengthening underwriting processes;
g

¢ improving medical management, including network and
provider contracting;

° improving customer service; and
e achieving additional cost reductions.

As a result of this review, CIGNA adopted a restructuring
program in the fourth quarter of 2002, resulting in an after-tax
charge of $97 million in the Employee Health Care, Life and
Disability Benefits segment. See page 20 for further
information about this restructuring program.

Premiums and Fees

Premiums and fees increased 7% in 2002 and 4% in 2001.
Excluding premiums and fees for the Medicare business
(CIGNA’s continuing operations exited all but one Medicare
market effective January 1, 2001), premiums and fees increased
6% in 2002 and 9% in 2001. The increases were primarily due
to HMO and medical indemnity rate increases and, in 2001,
membership growth.

Premium Equivalents

In contrast to many other companies in the health care
industry, a significant portion of CIGNA’s health care business
consists of ASO programs where the customer self-funds all of
their claims and minimum premium programs, where the
customer self-funds a portion of their claims. Under ASO
programs, the customer or plan sponsor, rather than CIGNA,
assumes the risk for claim costs incurred.

Under minimum premium programs, the policyholder assumes
the risk and self-funds claims up to a predetermined aggregate,
maximum amount, and CIGNA bears the risk for claim costs
incurred in excess of that amount.

Premium equivalents generally equal paid claims under ASO
and minimum premium programs. CIGNA would have
recorded the amount of these paid claims as additional
premiums if these programs had been written as guaranteed

cost or retrospectively experience-rated programs. “Adjusted
premiums and fees,” which consists of premiums and fees plus
premium equivalents, is a useful measure of volume in
CIGNA'’s health care operations because premium equivalents
are an indicator of business volume associated with ASO and
minimum premium programs. However, premium equivalents
do not represent premium and fee revenue recognized under
GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
presented by other companies.

Premiums and fees associated with ASO programs were
$1.7 billion in 2002 and 2001 and $1.5 billion in 2000.

Premiums and fees associated with minimum premium
programs were $287 million in 2002, $256 million in 2001 and
$245 million in 2000.

Adjusted premiums and fees for the Employee Health Care, Life
and Disability Benefits segment were as follows for the year
ended December 31:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Premiums and fees $ 14,336 $ 13,459 $ 12,959
Premium equivalents 22,714 20,230 17,782
Adjusted premiums and fees $37,050 3§ 33,689 $ 30,741

Premiums and fees included $295 million for Medicare
operations in 2002, $226 million in 2001 and $807 million in
2000. As indicated above, CIGNA's continuing operations
exited all but one Medicare market effective January 1, 2001.

The increases in premium equivalents in 2002 and 2001 are
primarily due to higher medical costs in HMO and indemnity
ASO and minimum premium programs that, in turn, increase
the amount of paid claims. Membership growth in indemnity
ASO programs also contributed to the overall increase in 2001.

Net Investment Income

Net investment income decreased 7% in 2002 and 1% in 2001
primarily due to lower yields and, in 2002, lower invested
assets.

Other Revenues

Other revenues increased 35% in 2002 and 18% in 2001
primarily due to business growth in the specialty health care
operations (predominantly in pharmaceutical fulfillment
services and medical cost and utilization management
services).




Medical Membership

As of December 31, medical membership from continuing
operations (excluding Medicare members) was as follows for
the HMO and Indemnity operations:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
HMO 6.7 6.8 7.0
Indemnity (estimated) 6.3 6.4 6.1

HMO medical membership in 2002 reflects lower guaranteed
cost HMO program membership, partially offset by growth in
HMO ASO programs. HMO medical membership decreased 3%
in 2001 due to lower membership in HMO ASO programs,
partially offset by increased membership in the guaranteed cost
HMO program. HMO medical membership for Medicare
operations was 43,000 as of December 31, 2002, 35,000 as of
December 31, 2001, and 104,000 as of December 31, 2000.

During 2002, CIGNA estimated the level of indemnity
membership based on a revised factor (specifically, the factor
used to estimate the number of covered lives per subscriber).
The revised estimate reflects updated information resulting
from recent technology enhancements. Prior period
information has been revised using this updated information.
There was no impact on revenues or operating income
resulting from this change (revenues are derived based on the
number of subscribers and the level of fees paid by those
subscribers, rather than the number of members).

Indemnity medical membership decreased 2% in 2002 and
increased 5% in 2001. The decline in 2002 primarily reflects
cancellations in traditional indemnity programs. The increase
in 2001 primarily reflects growth in medical PPO membership,
partially offset by cancellations in traditional indemnity
programs.

Business Mix

Business mix, as measured by adjusted premiums and fees, was
as follows for the year ended December 31:

2002 2001 2000

Medical indemnity and PPO 45% 45% 42%
HMO medical and dental 42% 40% 42%
Dental indemnity and PPO 7% 7% 7%
Life insurance 4% 5% 6%
Long-term disability insurance 1% 2% 2%

Other insurance coverages

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

ENPLOYEE REVIREMENT BENEFITS AND INVESTAMENT SERVICES

(In millions)

Fimancial Summary 2002 2001 2000
Premiums and fees $ 336 $ 322 $ 350
Net investment income 1,649 1,668 1,617
Segment revenues 1,985 1,990 1,967
Benefits and expenses 1,658 1,681 1,607
Income before taxes 327 309 360
Income taxes %96 88 103
Operating income 231 221 257
Charges for the events of

September 11, 2001 — 3 —
Adjusted operating income $ 231 $ 224 $ 257

Realized investment losses,
net of taxes $ (68) $ (61) % 1)

Adjusted Operating Income

Adjusted operating income increased 3% in 2002 in the
Employee Retirement Benefits and Investment Services
segment primarily due to a favorable shift to higher margin
products, business growth and effective expense management,
partially offset by the negative effect of stock market declines.

The decrease in adjusted operating income of 13% in 2001
primarily reflects the negative effect of stock market declines,
lower interest margins and higher operating expenses, partially
offset by a shift to higher margin products.

Revenues
Premiums and fees are principally:

° asset management fees on separate account assets (fees on
general account assets are netted against benefits, losses and
settlement expenses);

¢ administrative charges on general and separate account
assets;

o amounts earned from non-leveraged corporate life
insurance; and

¢ premiums from single premium group annuity business.

Net investment income primarily represents earnings from
general account assets. Most of this net investment income is
credited to customers and included in benefits and expenses.

Premiums and fees increased 4% in 2002 primarily due to
increased premiums from single premium group annuity
business and non-leveraged corporate life insurance, partially
offset by the effect of stock market declines on asset-based fees.
Net investment income in 2002 declined 1% due to lower
yields, partially offset by higher general account assets.
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The 8% decrease of premiums and fees in 2001 primarily
reflects lower asset-based fees due to stock market declines and
decreased single premium group annuity sales, partially offset
by fee growth due to deposits in excess of withdrawals and a
shift to higher margin products. Net investment income
increased 3% primarily due to higher general account assets,
partially offset by lower yields.

Assets Under Management

Assets under management are a determinant of earnings for
this segment because a significant portion of this segment’s
revenues is based on asset values. The following table shows
assets under management and related activity, including
amounts attributable to separate accounts for the year ended
December 31. Assets under management fluctuate because of
changes in the market value of fixed maturities and equity
securities.

(In millions) 2002 2001
Balance—January 1 $ 55,306 $ 55,154
Premiums and deposits 8,797 10,154
Investment income 2,519 2,593
Decrease in fair value of assets (4,207) (3,487)
Customer withdrawals ' (3,595) (3,122)
Other, including participant

withdrawals and benefit payments (5,063) (5,986)
Balance—December 31 $ 53,757 $ 55,306

Changes in assets under management are discussed below.

Premiums and deposits. The decline in deposits in 2002 was
primarily due to several large defined contribution and defined
benefit deposits in 2001. In 2002, approximately 67% of
premiums and deposits were from existing customers, and 33%
were from sales to new customers and new plan sales to
existing customers.

In 2001, approximately 54% of premiums and deposits were
from existing customers, and 46% were from sales to new
customers and new plan sales to existing customers.

Investment income. Investment income decreased 3% in 2002
primarily due to lower yields.

Fair value of assets. The declines in fair value in 2002 and
2001 are primarily attributable to market value depreciation of
equity securities in separate accounts.

Other Matters

Split-dollar life insurance. Recently proposed regulations by
the Internal Revenue Service and statutory changes may result
in withdrawals of assets, policy terminations and fewer sales of
new policies. Approximately $5 million in operating income in
2002 was associated with these policies.

INTERNATIONAL LIFE, HEALTH AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(In millions)

Financial Summany 2002 2001 2000
Premiums and fees $ 811 $ 788 $ 2,042
Net investment income 51 49 148
Other revenues 3 148 4
Segment revenues 865 985 2,194
Benefits and expenses 816 838 2,120
Income before taxes a9 T147 74
Income taxes 18 52 26
Operating income T 31 T 95 48
Gain on sales of interests in Japanese

life insurance operation — 35) —

Adjusted operating income

Realized investment gains
(losses), net of taxes S 4 5 (3

Adjusted Operating Income

Adjusted operating income in the International Life, Health
and Employee Benefits segment declined 48% in 2002 because
the 2001 results include CIGNA's share in the earnings of the
Japanese life insurance operation which was fully divested in
the fourth quarter of 2001. Adjusted operating income for the
Japanese life insurance business (which excludes the gain on
sales) was $52 million in 2001 and $56 million in 2000.

Excluding the operating results of the Japanese life insurance
operation, adjusted operating income was $31 million in 2002,
$8 million in 2001 and a loss of $8 million in 2000. On this
basis, the increases in adjusted operating income were
primarily attributable to:

° improved results for employee benefit products provided to
expatriate employees of multinational companies;

° improved results in the life, accident and health operations
(primarily in Asia); and

° lower health care losses in 2002.

Japanese Life Insurance Operation

In 2001, CIGNA sold portions of its interest in its Japanese life
insurance operation as follows:

Portion of

CIGNA Equity
Equity Ownership  Proceeds Gain on
Ownership Interest from  Sale, after-
Interest Retained Sale (in tax (in
Date of Sale Sold* by CIGNA* millions) millions)
Jan. 2001 21% 40% 3 83 $ 8
Nov. 2001 40% — $ 267 3 27

* Prior to the January 2001 sale, CIGNA owned 61% of the
Japanese life insurance operation.




As a result of the January 2001 sale, CIGNA stopped
consolidating the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of
this operation and, until the November 2001 sale, accounted
for its remaining interest under the equity method of
accounting.

Premiums and Fees
Premiums and fees increased 3% in 2002 reflecting:

° higher premiums and fees for health care and other
employee benefit products for expatriate employees of
multinational companies; and

¢ growth in the life, accident and health operations in Asia.

Premiums and fees decreased 61% in 2001 due to the fact that
CIGNA did not consolidate the Japanese life insurance
operation in 2001, which had premiums and fees of

$1.4 billion in 2000. Excluding premiums and fees for the
Japanese life insurance operation, premiums and fees increased
14% in 2001 due to the same factors as noted above.

Other Revenues

Other revenues in 2001 include CIGNA's share in the earnings
of the Japanese life insurance operation ($80 million pre-tax),
which was accounted for under the equity method of
accounting from January 2001 until its sale in Novemnber 2001.
Other revenues in 2001 also include a pre-tax gain of

$54 million (335 million after-tax) associated with the sales of
CIGNA's interests in this operation.

International Expansion

CIGNA expects to pursue international growth through
acquisitions, joint ventures and other investments. Such
projects inevitably involve start-up costs that could result in
initial losses for those operations.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

RUN-OFF REINSURANCE OPERATIONS

(In millions)

Financial Summary 2002 2001 2000
Premiums and fees $ 138 $ 148 $ 365
Net investment income 44 52 63
Other revenues 21 120 12
Segment revenues 273 320 440
Benefits and expenses 1,831 232 623
Income (loss) before taxes (benefits) (1,558) 88 (183)
Income taxes (benefits) {488) 31 (64)
Operating income (10ss) (1,070 57 (119)
Losses on specialty life

reinsurance contracts 720 — 84
Charge for Unicover and London

reinsurance matters 317 — —

Accelerated recognition of portion

of deferred gain on sale of life

reinsurance business 3 (69) —
Charges (credit) for the events of

September 11, 2001 (see page 22) 03] 2 —
Charges for the run-off

reinsurance business — — 43
Adjusted operating income (loss) $ (38 § (10) § 8
Realized investment losses,

net of taxes $ % § © 3 2)

Adjusted Operating Income (Loss)

Adjusted operating income (loss) in the Run-off Reinsurance
Operations segment deteriorated in 2002 and 2001. The 2002
decline was primarily due to lower amortization of the deferred
gain on sale of the life reinsurance business and reserve
strengthening associated with the workers’ compensation
reinsurance business. Both 2002 and 2001 results were
negatively affected by a decline in premiums and net
investment income.

Premiums and Fees

Premiums and fees in 2002 include 347 million pre-tax of
ceded premium to be returned to CIGNA as a result of the
Unicover arbitration ruling (see further discussion below).
Excluding this amount, premiums and fees decreased 39% in
2002 to $91 million, and decreased 59% in 2001. These
declines reflect the continuing run-off of the reinsurance
business.
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Other Revenues

As discussed further below in 2002, CIGNA implemented a
program to substantially reduce the equity market exposures
for certain specialty life reinsurance contracts by selling
exchange-traded futures contracts. Other revenues in 2002
include an $87 million pre-tax gain from these futures
contracts. A corresponding expense reflecting the increase in
liabilities for the specialty life reinsurance contracts is included
in benefits, losses and settlement expenses. Excluding the gain
on futures contracts, other revenues decreased 97% in 2002
due to the expected reduction in accelerated gain recognition
of portions of the deferred gain on the sale of the life
reinsurance business.

The increase in other revenues in 2001 is primarily due to the
accelerated recognition of $107 million pre-tax ($69 million
after-tax) of portions of the deferred gain on sale of the life
reinsurance business. See page 22 for further discussion of this
sale and the related gain recognition.

Other Matters

Losses on specialty life reinsurance contracts. In 2002,
CIGNA recognized an after-tax charge of $720 million

($1.1 billion pre-tax) to strengthen reserves related to certain
specialty life reinsurance contracts and the adoption of a
program to substantially reduce equity market risks related to
these contracts.

CIGNA'’s reinsurance operations, which were discontinued in
2000 and are now an inactive business in run-off mode,
reinsured a guaranteed minimum death benefit under certain
variable annuities issued by other insurance companies. These
variable annuities are essentially investments in mutual funds
combined with a death benefit. Death benefits under the
annuity contracts reinsured by CIGNA are determined using
various methods.

The majority of CIGNA's exposure arises under annuities that
guarantee that the benefit received at death will be no less than
the highest historical account value of the related mutual fund
investments on an annuitant’s contract anniversary date.
Under this type of death benefit, CIGNA is liable to the extent
the highest historical anniversary account value exceeds the
fair value of the related mutual fund investments at the time of
an annuitant’s death. Other annuity designs that CIGNA
reinsured guarantee that the benefit received at death will be
no less than net deposits paid into the contract accumulated at
a specified rate or net deposits paid into the contract. In
periods of declining equity markets and in periods of flat
equity markets following a decline, CIGNA’s liabilities for these
guaranteed minimum death benefits increase.

As a result of equity market declines and volatility in 2002,
CIGNA evaluated alternatives for addressing the exposures
associated with these reinsurance contracts, considering the
possibility of continued depressed equity market conditions,
the potential effects of further market declines and the impact
on future earnings and capital. As a result of this evaluation,

CIGNA implemented a program to substantially reduce the
equity market exposures of this business by selling exchange-

traded futures contracts and, potentially, other instruments,
which are expected to rise in value as the equity market
declines and decline in value as the equity market rises.

The purpose of this program is to substantially reduce the
adverse effects of potential future stock market declines on
CIGNA's liabilities for certain reinsurance contracts, as
increases in liabilities under the reinsurance contracts from a
declining market will be substantially offset by gains on the
futures contracts. A consequence of this program is that it also
substantially reduces the positive effects of potential future
equity market increases, as reductions in liabilities under these
contracts from improved equity market conditions will be
substantially offset by losses on the futures contracts.

In order to achieve the objective of this program, CIGNA
expects to adjust its futures contract position and possibly
enter into other positions over time to reflect changing equity
market levels and changes in the investment mix of the
underlying variable annuity investments.

The $720 million after-tax charge consists of:

© $620 million after-tax, principally reflecting the reduction
in assumed future equity market returns as a result of
implementing the program and, to a lesser extent, changes
to the policy lapse, mortality, market volatility and interest
rate assumptions used in estimating the liabilities for these
contracts. CIGNA determines liabilities under the
reinsurance contracts using an assumption for expected
future performance of equity markets. A consequence of
implementing the program is, effectively, a reduction in the
assumption for expected future performance of equity
markets, as the futures contracts essentially eliminate the
opportunity to achieve previously expected market returns;
and

¢ $100 million after-tax reflecting deterioration in equity
markets that occurred in the third quarter of 2002 (prior to
implementation of the program).

As noted in Other Revenues above, CIGNA recorded a pre-tax
gain of $87 million in other revenues in 2002 to reflect the
increase in the fair values of futures contracts since the
inception of the program. A corresponding expense reflecting
the increase in liabilities for the specialty life reinsurance
contracts is included in benefits, losses and settlement
expenses.

CIGNA had reserves for these liabilities of approximately
$1.4 billion as of December 31, 2002, and approximately
$300 million as of December 31, 2001.

Management estimates reserves for variable annuity death
benefit exposure based on assumptions and other
considerations, including lapse, partial surrender, mortality,
interest rates and volatility. These are based on CIGNA’s
experience and future expectations. CIGNA monitors actual
experience to update these reserve estimates as necessary.




Lapse refers to the full surrender of an annuity prior to an
annuitant’s death. Volatility refers to market volatility that
affects the costs of the program adopted by CIGNA to reduce
equity market risks associated with these liabilities.

Partial surrender refers to the fact that most annuitants have
the ability to withdraw substantially all of their mutual fund
investments while retaining any available death benefit
coverage in effect at the time of the withdrawal. A very small
percentage of annuitants have elected partial surrenders to
date. An increase in CIGNA's liabilities for variable annuity
death benefits due to partial surrenders would depend on
many factors, including financial market conditions prior to
surrender and annuitant behavior.

The determination of reserves for variable annuity death
benefits requires CIGNA to make critical accounting estimates,
as discussed further on page 23. Management believes the
current assumptions and other considerations used to estimate
reserves for these liabilities are appropriate. However, if actual
experience differs from the assumptions and other
considerations (including lapse, partial surrender, mortality,
interest rates and volatility) used in estimating these reserves,
the resulting change could have a material adverse effect on
CIGNA's consolidated results of operations, and in certain
situations, could have a material adverse effect on CIGNA’s
financial condition.

As of December 31, 2002, the aggregate fair value of the
underlying mutual fund investments was approximately

$50 billion. The death benefit coverage in force as of that date
(representing the amount that CIGNA would have to pay if all
1.5 million annuitants had died on that date) was
approximately $23.4 billion. The death benefit coverage in
force represents the excess of the guaranteed benefit amount
over the fair value of the underlying mutual fund investments.
The notional amount of the futures contract positions held by
CIGNA at December 31, 2002, was $2.2 billion.

CIGNA has also written reinsurance contracts with issuers of
variable annuity contracts that provide annuitants with certain
guarantees related to minimum income benefits. When
annuitants elect to receive these minimum income benefits,
CIGNA may be required to make payments based on changes
in underlying mutual fund values and interest rates. CIGNA
has purchased reinsurance from third parties, which covers
80% of the exposures of these contracts. See page 38 for further
information.

Unicover and other run-off reinsurance. The Run-off
Reinsurance Operations participates in a workers’
compensation reinsurance pool, which ceased accepting new
risks in early 1999. This pool was formerly managed by
Unicover Managers, Inc. Certain disputes over reinsurance
coverage for the pool were resolved by an arbitration ruling
issued in October 2002, which was further clarified in January
2003.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Run-off Reinsurance Operations include other workers’
compensation reinsurance contracts, as well as personal
accident reinsurance contracts, including contracts assumed in
the London market. CIGNA obtained reinsurance coverage in
the London market for a significant portion of the claims
under these contracts. Some of these London market
retrocessionaires have disputed the validity of their contracts
with CIGNA and arbitration over some of these disputes has
commenced.

Based on the outcome of the Unicover arbitration in October
2002, as well as a review of other exposures for the run-off
reinsurance operations, including an assessment of London
market retrocessional disputes and workers’ compensation and
personal accident reinsurance exposures, CIGNA recorded an
after-tax charge of $317 million ($408 million pre-tax) in the
third quarter of 2002.

The London market retrocessional disputes are not expected to
be resolved for some time. In addition, unfavorable claims
experience related to workers’ compensation and personal
accident exposures is possible and could result in future losses,
including losses attributable to the inability to recover
amounts from retrocessionaires (either due to disputes with the
retrocessionaires or their financial condition).

CIGNA'’s reserves for amounts recoverable from
retrocessionaires, as well as for reserves for liabilities associated
with underlying reinsurance exposures assumed by CIGNA, are
considered appropriate as of December 31, 2002, based on
current information. However, it is possible that future
developments regarding these matters could resultin a
material adverse effect on CIGNA's consolidated results of
operations, and, in certain situations, could have a material
adverse effect on CIGNA’s financial condition.

See also Note 21(B) to the Financial Statements for more
information.

2000 Reinsurance charges. During 2000, CIGNA recorded
after-tax charges for the run-off reinsurance business totaling
$127 million as follows:

° acharge of $84 million to strengthen reserves, following a
review of reserve assumptions for specialty life reinsurance
contracts that guarantee certain minimum death benefits
based on unfavorable changes in variable annuity account
values. These values are derived from underlying equity and
bond mutual fund investments as more fully discussed
above;

° acharge of $40 million to strengthen reserves for personal
accident reinsurance contracts; and

e acharge of $3 million for restructuring costs (principally
severarnce).

33



34

OTHER OPERATIONS

(In millions)

Finmancial Summary 2002 2001 2000
Premiums and fees $ 116 $ 143 $ 146
Net investment income 409 450 459
Other revenues 177 190 179
Segment revenues 702 7783 784
Benefits and expenses 591 674 649
Income before taxes 111 ﬁ E
Income taxes 37 33 42
Operating income S 74 $ 76 $ 93

Realized investment gains

(losses), net of taxes $ (1 $ 10 3 1

Other Operations consist of:

e deferred gains recognized from the 1998 sale of the
individual life insurance and annuity business;

° corporate life insurance on which policy loans are
outstanding (leveraged corporate life insurance);

° settlement annuity business; and

© certain investment management services initiatives.

Operating Income

Operating income in Other Operations decreased 3% in 2002
primarily due to the continued run-off of the leveraged
corporate life insurance business and lower amortized gains on
the sale of the individual life insurance business, partially offset
by lower losses in investment management services.

The 18% decline in 2001 operating income primarily reflects
lower earnings from leveraged corporate life insurance and
higher losses from certain investment management services
initiatives.

Premiums and Fees

Premiums and fees decreased 19% in 2002 and 2% in 2001
primarily due to lower premiums from leveraged corporate life
insurance.

Other Revenues

Other revenues declined 7% in 2002 and increased 6% in 2001.
The decline in 2002 primarily reflects lower amortized gains
from the sale of the individual life insurance and annuity
business. The increase in 2001 primarily reflects higher
investment advisory fees.

Other Matters

Tax benefits for corporate life insurance. In 1996, Congress
passed legislation implementing a three-year phase-out period
for tax deductibility of policy loan interest for most leveraged
corporate life insurance products. In 2001, the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) implemented an initiative for leveraged
corporate life insurance plans purchased after June 20, 1986,
that permits policyholders to settle tax disputes related to these
plans. Management expects that some customers will accept
the IRS settlement offer and surrender their policies in 2003. As
a result, management expects revenues and operating income
associated with these products to decline. In 2002, revenues of
$221 million and operating income of $32 million were from
products affected by this legislation.

CORPORATE

(In millions)
Fimamcial Summary 2002 2001 2000
Operating loss $ @7) 3% (96) § (58)

Corporate reflects amounts not allocated to segments, such as
interest expense on corporate debt, net investment income on
unallocated investments, intersegment eliminations and
certain corporate overhead expenses. The lower operating loss
in 2002 primarily reflects a decline in unallocated corporate
overhead expenses.

The increased operating loss in 2001 primarily reflects:

° lower net investment income on unallocated corporate
investments, primarily due to lower interest rates and
higher share repurchase activity;

© higher unallocated corporate overhead expenses; and

° higher interest expenses in 2001.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(In millions)

Finamncial Summary 2002 2001 2000
Revenues $ 567 § 508 § 468
Income before taxes $ 1 §$§ 28 §$ 10
Income taxes 2 10 4

Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (1) $§ 18 § 6

In January 2003, CIGNA sold the operations of Lovelace for
approximately $210 million and will recognize an after-tax
gain of approximately $30 million in the first quarter of 2003.
In the fourth quarter of 2002, CIGNA began reporting this
business as discontinued operations and prior year financial
information has been reclassified.

During 2002, CIGNA increased reserves for a Medicare cost
reporting matter associated with Lovelace (see page 26) by

$9 million after-tax ($14 million pre-tax). In the fourth quarter
of 2002, Lovelace entered into a settlement agreement with the
federal government related to this matter. This charge is
included in results of discontinued operations.




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(In millions)

Financial Summary 2002 2001 2000
Short-term investments $ 86 $ 137 $ 166
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,575 $ 1,918 $ 2,179
Short-term debt $ 130 $ 49 $ 145
Long-term debt $ 1,500 $ 1,626 $ 1,162
Shareholders’ equity $ 3,867 $ 5,055 $ 5,413

Liquidity
CIGNA normally meets its operating requirements by:

¢ maintaining appropriate levels of liquidity in its investment
portfolio;

e using cash flows from operating activities; and

¢ matching investment maturities to the estimated duration
of the related insurance and contractholder liabilities.

CIGNA'’s operations have liquidity requirements that vary
among the principal product lines.

Life insurance and pension plan reserves are primarily longer-
term liabilities. Liquidity requirements are usually stable and
predictable, and are supported primarily by medium-term,
fixed-income investments.

Accident and health reserves, including reserves for long-term
disability insurance, consist of both short-term and long-term
liabilities. The settlement of reported claims is generally stable
and predictable, but usually shorter-term, requiring greater
liquidity.

CIGNA’s insurance and HMO subsidiaries are subject to
regulatory restrictions that limit the amount of dividends or
other distributions (such as loans or cash advances) these
subsidiaries may provide to their shareholders without prior
approval of regulatory authorities. These restrictions may limit
the use of operating cash flows of the insurance and HMO
subsidiaries for CIGNA's general corporate purposes.

Cash flows from continuing operations for the year ended
December 31 were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Operating activities $ 1,378 $ 1,063 $ 1,671
Investing activities $(1,486) $ (2,011) $ (902)
Financing activities $ (238) $ 671 $ (773)

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $343 million in 2002 and
$261 million in 2001.

Cash flows from operating activities consist of operating
income adjusted to reflect the timing of cash receipts and
disbursements for premiums and fees, investment income,
taxes, and benefits, losses and expenses.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Amounts shown for cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities are discussed below:

2002:

° The increase in cash flows from operating activities in 2002
primarily reflects higher cash revenues of approximately
$1 billion (due to price increases and growth in the
Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits
segment). This increase was partially offset by:

— Higher cash expenses of approximately $470 million
(primarily in the Employee Health Care, Life and
Disability Benefits segment) reflecting customer service
and technology initiatives, growth in the specialty lines
of business as well as 2002 cash spending of
approximately $40 million for the 2001 restructuring
charge;

— Higher tax payments of approximately $100 million,
primarily due to taxes paid in 2002 for the 2001 gain on
sales of interests in the Japanese life insurance operation;

- Higher paid claims of approximately $90 million due to
medical cost inflation, partially offset by membership
declines, the absence of Medicare claim payments that
had been made in 2001 due to the exit of certain
Medicare markets and the timing of payment of claims;
and

- Lower collections of net investment income of
approximately $30 million due to declining yields and
the continued run-off of the leveraged corporate life
insurance business.

e Cash used in investing activities consisted of net purchases
of investments of approximately $1.1 billion and net
purchases of property and equipment of $303 million.

° Cash used in financing activities consisted primarily of
payments of dividends on and repurchases of common
stock ($540 million), partially offset by net deposits to
contractholder deposit funds ($282 million).

2001:

© The decrease in cash flows from operating activities in 2001
primarily reflects the absence of operating cash flows
resulting from the deconsolidation of the Japanese life
insurance operation in 2001 (explained on page 31 and in
Note 4 to the Financial Statements) and, to a lesser extent,
higher claims payments during 2001 related to the run-off
reinsurance operations and Medicare market exits.

° Cash used in investing activities increased partially as a
result of a decline in cash of $327 million resulting from
the deconsolidation of the Japanese life insurance operation
as well as higher net investment purchases. These increases
were partially offset by $350 million in proceeds from the
sales of interests in the Japanese life insurance operation.
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e Cash provided by financing activities consisted of net
deposits and interest credited to contractholder deposits
($1.6 billion) and net issuance of debt ($362 million),
partially offset by payment of dividends on and repurchase
of CIGNA’s common stock ($1.3 billion).

Capital Resources

CIGNA'’s capital resources (primarily retained earnings and the
proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt and equity
securities) provide protection for policyholders, furnish the
financial strength to support the business of underwriting
insurance risks and facilitate continued business growth. Over
the long term, CIGNA's priorities for use of capital are internal
growth, acquisitions and share repurchase. Given the capital
needs of CIGNA’s principal subsidiary (Connecticut General
Life Insurance Company, or CG Life) primarily resulting from
the charges for the run-off reinsurance operations (as discussed
on pages 31 through 33), CIGNA intends to retain capital and
has suspended share repurchase.

Senior management and the Board of Directors, guided by
regulatory requirements and rating agency capital guidelines,
determine the amount of capital resources that CIGNA
maintains. Management allocates resources to new long-term
business commitments when returns, considering the risks,
look promising and when the resources available to support
existing business are adequate.

CIGNA issued the following debt securities in 2001:

°  $250 million of 7% notes due in 2011, issued in January;
and

°  $250 million of 6.375% notes due in 2011, issued in
October.

CIGNA has $500 million remaining under an effective shelf
registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, which may be issued as debt securities, equity
securities or both. Management and the Board of Directors will
consider market conditions and internal capital requirements
when deciding whether CIGNA should issue new securities.

In March 2002, CIGNA entered into a syndicated bank letter of
credit agreement of $650 million in support of an internal
reinsurance arrangement associated with obligations of a
subsidiary. This reinsurance arrangement was terminated as of
July 1, 2002, and no letters of credit are currently issued under
this agreement.

As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had available $215 million in
committed lines of credit. These lines are provided by U.S.
banks and typically have terms ranging from one to three
years. Approximately $70 million of CIGNA’s available lines of
credit will expire within the next twelve months.

CIGNA’s long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2002,
was $1.5 billion compared to $1.6 billion as of December 31,
2001. CIGNA's short-term debt (primarily the current portion
of long-term debt) was $130 million as of December 31, 2002,
an increase of $81 million from December 31, 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources OQutlook

The availability of resources for general corporate purposes
(i-e., cash held at the parent/holding company level) is
dependent on dividends from CIGNA's subsidiaries, most of
which are subject to regulatory restrictions and rating agency
capital guidelines. CIGNA expects, based on current
projections for cash activity (including projections for
dividends from subsidiaries), to have sufficient resources to:

o provide for the capital requirements of its subsidiaries;

° meet debt service requirements and pay dividends to
CIGNA shareholders at the current dividend rate; and

e satisfy pension plan funding requirements.
However, the demand for funds could exceed available cash if:
¢ management uses cash for investment opportunities;

© asubstantial insurance or contractholder liability becomes
due before related investment assets mature; or

e regulatory restrictions prevent the insurance and HMO
subsidiaries from distributing cash.

In those cases, CIGNA has the flexibility to satisfy liquidity
needs through short-term borrowings. As stated above, CIGNA
had available $215 million in committed bank lines of credit as
of December 31, 2002. CIGNA has no current plans to issue
additional debt securities in 2003.

The maturities of CIGNA’s contractual cash obligations for
debt and lease obligations as of December 31, 2002, are as
follows:

Less
tham 1-3 4-5 Affter
(In millions) Total 1 year years years § years
Short-term debt § 130 $130 $§ — $ — S —
Long-term debt 1,500 — — 500 1,800
Operating leases 616 141 246 127 102
Total $ 2,246 $ 271 $ 246 $ 627 $ 1,102

As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA also had commitments to
purchase the following investments:

$ 80 milliom
$ 154 milliom

Fixed maturities
Commercial mortgage loans
Real estate joint ventures and security partnerships

(other long-term investments) $ 123 milliom

CIGNA expects to disburse most of these committed amounts
in 2003. CIGNA also expects to provide approximately

$75 million of funding to pension plan assets in 2003. See
Note 14 to the Financial Statements for further information.




Ratings

CIGNA and certain of its insurance subsidiaries are rated by
nationally recognized rating agencies. The significance of
individual ratings varies from agency to agency. However,
companies assigned ratings at the top end of the range have, in
the opinion of the rating agency, the strongest capacity for
repayment of debt or payment of claims, while companies at
the bottom end of the range have the weakest capability.
Ratings are always subject to change and there can be no
assurance that CIGNA's current ratings will continue for any
given period of time.

CIGNA expects the downgrades during 2002 in the financial
strength rating of Connecticut General Life Insurance
Company to have a moderately adverse effect on the
retirement business. Any additional change in rating could
have an impact on CIGNA'’s results, particularly in the
retirement business. A downgrade of CIGNA'’s debt ratings,
depending on the extent, would increase the cost to borrow
funds.

For additional information and a listing of CIGNA’s current
ratings, refer to the Ratings section in CIGNA’s Form 10-K.

Financial Guarantiees

CIGNA, through its subsidiaries, is contingently liable for
various financial guarantees provided in the ordinary course of
business.

Separate account assets are contractholder funds maintained in
accounts with specific investment objectives. CIGNA records
separate account liabilities equal to separate account assets. In
certain cases, CIGNA guarantees a minimum level of benefits
for retirement and insurance contracts written in separate
accounts. CIGNA establishes an additional liability if
management believes that CIGNA will be required to make a
payment under these guarantees, which include the following:

¢ CIGNA guarantees that separate account assets will be
sufficient to pay certain retiree or life benefits. The
sponsoring employers are primarily responsible for
ensuring that assets are sufficient to pay these benefits and
are required to maintain assets that exceed a certain
percentage of benefit obligations. This percentage varies
depending on the asset class within a sponsoring
employer’s portfolio (for example, a bond fund would
require a lower percentage than a riskier equity fund) and
thus will vary as the composition of the portfolio changes.
If employers do not maintain the required levels of separate
account assets, CIGNA has the right to redirect the
management of the related assets to provide for benefit
payments. As of December 31, 2002, employers were
required to maintain assets that exceed 102% to 128% of
benefit obligations. Benefit obligations under these
arrangements were $3.3 billion as of December 31, 2002,
and $2.4 billion as of December 31, 2001. There were no
additional liabilities required for these guarantees as of
December 31, 2002 or 2001.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

° For certain employer-sponsored savings and retirement
plans, CIGNA guarantees that participants will receive the
value of their accounts at the time of withdrawal. These
guarantees could require payment by CIGNA in the event
that a significant number of plan participants withdraw
their accounts when the market value of the related
separate account assets is less than the plan participant
account values at the time of withdrawal. Participant
account values under these arrangements are invested
primarily in fixed income investments and were
$1.7 billion as of December 31, 2002, and $1.8 billion as of
December 31, 2001. There were no additional liabilities
required for these guarantees as of December 31, 2002 or
2001.

° CIGNA guarantees a minimum level of earnings (based on
investment, mortality and retirement experience) for a
certain group annuity contract. If the actual investment
return is less than the minimum guaranteed level, CIGNA is
required to fund the difference. The guaranteed benefit
obligation was $313 million as of December 31, 2002, and
$334 million as of December 31, 2001. CIGNA had
additional liabilities for this guarantee of $15 million as of
December 31, 2002, and $14 million as of December 31,
2001.

CIGNA does not expect that these guarantees will have a
material adverse effect on CIGNA’s consolidated resuits of
operations, liquidity or financial condition.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, CIGNA guaranteed

$106 million of construction loans related to investments in
certain real estate joint ventures. These loans are secured by the
joint ventures’ real estate properties with fair value in excess of
the loan amounts. The loans mature at various dates from 2003
to 2007, including extension options. CIGNA would be
required to repay the construction loans if permanent
financing could not be obtained. CIGNA has recourse to other
owners for 3% of any amounts paid under these guarantees.
There were no liabilities required for these guarantees as of
December 31, 2002 or 2001.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, CIGNA guaranteed

$42 million of principal for industrial revenue bonds that are
payable in 2007 and also guaranteed $8 million of aggregate
interest payable periodically up to maturity. These bonds are
secured by mortgages on properties and other assets held by
real estate partnerships. An event of default under these bonds
will not cause the principal or interest payments to be due
immediately, but instead CIGNA would be required to make
principal or interest payments under the original terms of the
bonds. CIGNA has recourse to partners for 43% of any
amounts paid under these guarantees. There were no liabilities
required for these guarantees as of December 31, 2002 or 2001.

At December 31, 2002, CIGNA guaranteed a shortfall of up to
$49 million in the market value of leased equipment at the end
of the lease. CIGNA had such guarantees for leased equipment
of $21 million at December 31, 2001. Guarantees of

$21 million expire in 2006 and $28 million expire in 2012.
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Specialty Life Reinsurance Contracts. The Run-off
Reinsurance Operations include certain specialty life
reinsurance contracts that guarantee minimum death benefits
based on unfavorable changes in variable annuity account
values. In 2002, CIGNA recognized an after-tax charge of
$720 million ($1.1 billion pre-tax) to strengthen reserves
related to these contracts and the adoption of a program to
substantially reduce equity market risks related to these
contracts. See Note 3 to the Financial Statements for further
information.

CIGNA has also written reinsurance contracts with issuers of
variable annuity contracts that provide annuitants with certain
guarantees related to minimum income benefits. When
annuitants elect to receive these minimum income benefits,
CIGNA may be required to make payments based on changes
in underlying mutual fund values and interest rates. CIGNA
has purchased reinsurance from third parties, which covers
80% of the exposures of these contracts. CIGNA estimnates the
fair value of the assets and liabilities associated with these
contracts using assumptions as to equity market returns,
volatility of the underlying equity and bond mutual fund
investments, interest rates, mortality, annuity election rates
and policy surrenders.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which requires
disclosure of maximum potential undiscounted future
payments for guarantees, even if the likelihood of such
payment is remote. In accordance with this requirement, the
maximum potential undiscounted payments that CIGNA
would make for guarantees related to minimum income
benefits under the following hypothetical assumptions, which
CIGNA believes unlikely to occur:

° no annuitants surrendered their accounts, and
° all annuitants lived to elect their benefit, and

° all annuitants elected to receive their benefit on the first
available date (beginning in 2004 through 2014), and

° all underlying mutual fund investment values remained at
the December 31, 2002, value of $2.7 billion, with no
future returns,

would aggregate $2.7 billion, gross of reinsurance. CIGNA has
reinsurance for 80% of this amount. CIGNA expects the
amount of actual payments to be significantly less than this
hypothetical undiscounted aggregate amournt.

As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had liabilities of $95 million
related to these contracts and amounts recoverable from
reinsurers of $76 million. CIGNA has an additional liability of
$44 million associated with the cost of reinsurance.
Management believes the current assumptions and other
considerations used to estimate reserves for these liabilities are
appropriate. See Note 7(G) to the Financial Statements for
further information.

Share Repurchase

CIGNA’s Board of Directors has authorized a stock repurchase
plan. Decisions to repurchase shares depend on market
conditions and available alternative uses of capital. Share
repurchase activity for the year ended December 31 was as
follows:

(In millions, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000
Shares repurchased 3.5 12.0 19.2
Cost of shares repurchased $ 343 $ 1,139 $ 1,681
Average price per share $98.33 § 94.66 $ 87.32

As a result of the increased capital requirements resulting
primarily from reserve increases for the run-off reinsurance
operations (see page 36), CIGNA has suspended share
repurchase and has not repurchased any shares of its common
stock since July 18, 2002. The total remaining share repurchase
authorization as of February 27, 2003, was $572 million.

INVESTRMENT ASSETS

Information regarding investment assets held by CIGNA as of
December 31 is presented below. CIGNA's investment assets do
not include separate account assets. Additional information
regarding CIGNA’s investment assets and related accounting
policies is included in Notes 2, 7, 8 and 9 to the Financial
Statements and in CIGNA’s Form 10-K.

(In millions)

Fimancial Summazry 2002 2001
Fixed maturities $ 27,803 $ 23,401
Equity securities 295§ 404
Mortgage loans 8,729 9,920
Policy loans 2,405 2,774
Real estate 253 432
Other long-term investments 791 1,193
Short-term investments 86 137
Total investment assets $ 40,362 $ 38,261

A significant portion of CIGNA’s investment assets is
attributable to experience-rated policyholder contracts
associated with the retirement business. The following table
shows, as of December 31, the percentage of certain categories
of investment assets that are held under these policyholder
contracts:

2002 2001
Fixed maturities 48% 45%
Mortgage loans 56% 56%
Real estate 54% 55%
Other long-term investments 46% 53%

Under the experience-rating process, net investment income
and gains and losses on assets related to policyholder contracts
generally accrue to the policyholders. Consequently, write-
downs, changes in valuation reserves and non-accruals on
investments attributable to policyholder contracts do not affect
CIGNA's net income except under unusual circumstances.




Fixed Maturities

Investments in fixed maturities (bonds) include publicly traded
and privately placed debt securities, mortgage and other asset-
backed securities and redeemable preferred stocks.

The fair value of investments in fixed maturities as of
December 31 was as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Federal government and agency $ 1,197 § 499
State and local government 1,761 1,596
Foreign government 825 610
Corporate 17,796 15,211
Federal agency mortgage-backed 1,669 627
Other mortgage-backed 2,265 2,344
Other asset-backed 2,290 2,514
Total $27,803 § 23,401

Additional information regarding fixed maturities follows.

Quality ratings. As of December 31, 2002, $26.4 billion, or
95%, of the fixed maturities in CIGNA's investment portfolio
were investment grade (Baa and above, or equivalent), and the
remaining $1.4 billion were below investment grade, Most of
the bonds that are below investment grade are rated at the
higher end of the non-investment grade spectrum.
Approximately 33% of CIGNA's below investment grade
portfolio is attributable to policyholder contracts.

Private placement investments are generally less marketable
than public bonds, but yields on these investments tend to be
higher than yields on publicly offered debt with comparable
credit risk. The fair value of private placement investments was
$11.0 billion as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. CIGNA has
several controls on its participation in private placement
investments. In particular, CIGNA performs a credit analysis of
each issuer, diversifies investments by industry and issuer and
requires financial and other covenants that allow CIGNA to
monitor issuers for deteriorating financial strength so CIGNA
can take remedial actions, if warranted.

Because of the higher yields and the inherent risk associated
with privately placed investments and below investment grade
securities, gains or losses from such investments could
significantly affect future results of operations. However,
management does not expect such gains or losses to be
material to CIGNA’s liquidity or financial condition.

Asset-backed securities are debt obligations secured by pools of
federal agency mortgage-backed securities, other mortgage-
backed securities, corporate debt obligations (collateralized
debt obligations) or consumer loans.

CIGNA's investment in collateralized debt obligations, which
are secured by pools of corporate debt obligations, was

$228 million at December 31, 2002, and $321 million at
December 31, 2001, excluding policyholder share. CIGNA
recorded after-tax losses of $16 million ($25 million pre-tax) in
2002 compared to $84 million (3129 million pre-tax) in 2001
reflecting a lower level of defaults in the underlying pools of
corporate debt obligations.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CIGNA's investment in asset-backed securities includes
collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) of $28 million at
December 31, 2002, and $64 million at December 31, 2001,
excluding policyholder share. These CMO investments were
carried at fair value, with an amortized cost of $29 million at
December 31, 2002, and $62 million at December 31, 2001.

Certain of the CMOs that CIGNA holds are backed by Aaa/
AAA-rated federal agencies. Most of the remaining CMOs have
high quality ratings because of credit enhancements provided
by subordinated securities, or mortgage insurance from Aaa/
AAA-rated insurance companies.

CIGNA’s CMO holdings are concentrated in securities with
limited prepayment, extension and default risk.

Review of Declines in Fair Value

Management estimates the amount of “other than temporary”’
impairment when a decline in the value of fixed maturities or
equity securities is expected to persist. Management reviews
fixed maturities and equity securities for impairment based on
criteria that include for any decline in fair value from cost, the
length of time of that decline, the financial health and specific
near term prospects of the issuer and changes in the regulatory,
economic or general market environment of the issuer’s
industry or geographic region. As of December 31, 2002, fixed
maturities and equity securities (excluding policyholder share)
with a decline in fair value from cost, including the length of
time of such decline, were as follows:

Amortized  Unrealized
(In millions) Fair Value Cost Loss
Fixed maturities
One year or less:
Investment grade $ 1,470 $ 1,486 $ 16
Below investment
grade $ 224 $ 256 $ 32
More than one year:
Investment grade $ 381 $ 415 $ 34
Below investment
grade $ 337 $ 376 3 39
Equity securities
One year or less $ 157 $ 179 $ 22
More than one year S 20 $ 28 $ 8

Mortgage Loans

CIGNA's mortgage loans are diversified by property type,
location and borrower to reduce exposure to potential losses.
CIGNA routinely monitors and evaluates the status of its
mortgage loans by reviewing loan and property-related
information, including cash flows, expiring leases, financial
health of the borrower and major tenants, loan payment
history, occupancy and room rates for hotels and, for
commercial properties, significant new competition. CIGNA
evaluates this information in light of current economic
conditions as well as geographic and property type
considerations.
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Problem and Potential Problem Bonds and Mortgage Loans

‘“Problem”” bonds and mortgage loans are delinquent or have
been restructured as to terms (interest rate or maturity date).
‘“Potential problem” bonds and mortgage loans are fully
current, but management believes they have certain
characteristics that increase the likelihood that they will
become “problems.” CIGNA also considers mortgage loans to
be potential problems if the borrower has requested
restructuring, or principal or interest payments are past due by
more than 30 but fewer than 60 days.

CIGNA recognizes interest income on ““problem” bonds and
mortgage loans only when payment is actually received
because of the risk profile of the underlying investment.

The following table shows problem and potential problem
bonds and mortgage loans, net of valuation reserves and write-
downs, as of December 31, including amounts attributable to
policyholder contracts:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Problem bonds $ 182 $ 224
Potential problem bonds $ 243 $ 137
Problem mortgage loans $ 48 § 111
Potential problem mortgage loans $ 191 § 78

The decrease in problem bonds and problem mortgage loans
since December 31, 2001, primarily reflects sales and payoff
activity. The increase in potential problem bonds and potential
problem mortgage loans since December 31, 2001, is primarily
due to continued weak economic conditions.

Real Estate

Investment real estate includes both real estate held and used
and real estate held for sale. Most of the real estate held for sale
in 2002 and 2001 was office buildings and retail facilities that
were acquired as a result of foreclosure of mortgage loans. As of
December 31, investment real estate (including amounts
attributable to policyholder contracts) and related cumulative
write-downs and valuation reserves were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Real estate held for sale $ 47 $ 330
Less cumulative write-downs 8 37
Less valuation reserves 21 45

18 248
Real estate held and used %@ _22_7
Less cumulative write-downs 68 43

235 184
Investment real estate $ 253 $ 432

CIGNA reclassified $119 million of real estate held for sale to
real estate held and used as of January 1, 2002, when CIGNA
adopted SFAS No. 144, ““Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” See Note 2 to the Financial
Statements for further information.

At December 31, 2002, 45% of the carrying value of the
properties acquired through foreclosure was attributable to
policyholder contracts, compared with 54% at December 31,
2001.

Summary

The effect of investment asset write-downs and changes in
valuation reserves on CIGNA’s net income and on amounts
attributable to policyholder contracts was as follows:

(n millions) 2002 2001 2000
CIGNA $ 180 § 139 $ 46
Policyholder contracts $ 199 $ 78 $ 43

CIGNA’s portion of these losses is a component of realized
investment results, which are discussed on page 19.

The effect of non-accruals (“problem” investments) resulted in
lower net income in 2002 ($14 million after-tax) and in 2001
($12 million after-tax) than would have been recorded if
interest on non-accrual investments had been recognized in
accordance with the original terms of these investments. The
effect of non-accruals was not material to CIGNA’s
consolidated results of operations in 2000.

The weakness in certain sectors of the economy is likely to
cause additional investment losses. These investment losses
could materially affect future results of operations, although
CIGNA does not currently expect them to have a material
effect on CIGNA’s liquidity or financial condition, or to result
in a significant decline in the aggregate carrying value of its
assets.

WARIET RISK OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CIGNA’s Market Risks

CIGNA's assets and liabilities include financial instruments
subject to the risk of potential losses from adverse changes in
market rates and prices. CIGNA’s primary market risk
exposures are:

o [Inmterest-rate risk on fixed-rate, domestic, medium-term
instruments. Changes in market interest rates affect the
value of instruments that promise a fixed return.

° Foreign currency exchange rate risk of the U.S. dollar to the
British pound, South Korean won, Taiwan dollar, Chilean
peso, Hong Kong dollar, Japanese yen, Canadian dollar, and
Euro. An unfavorable change in exchange rates reduces the
carrying value of net assets denominated in foreign
currencies.

e Equity price risk for stocks and for specialty life reinsurance
contracts that guarantee death or minimum income
benefits resulting from unfavorable changes in variable
annuity account values based on underlying mutual fund
investments. CIGNA’s investment in domestic equity
securities (which are primarily managed to mirror the
S&P 500) was $261 million at December 31, 2002, and
$366 million at December 31, 2001. CIGNA held
$34 million in international equities at December 31, 2002,
and $38 million at December 31, 2001. Substantially all of
CIGNA’s international equities were issued by entities based
in developed countries.




CIGNA’s Management of Market Risks

CIGNA predominantly relies on three techniques to manage its
exposure to market risk:

* Investment/liability matching. CIGNA generally selects
investment assets with characteristics (such as duration,
yield, currency and liquidity) that correspond to the
underlying characteristics of its related insurance and
contractholder liabilities so that CIGNA can match the
investments to its obligations. Shorter-term investments
support generally shorter-term life and health liabilities.
Medium-term, fixed-rate investments support interest-
sensitive, experience-rated and health liabilities. Longer-
term investments generally support longer-term, fully
guaranteed products like annuities and longer-term life and
health (principally long-term disability) liabilities.

¢ Use of local currencies for foreign operations. CIGNA
generally conducts its international business through
foreign operating entities that maintain assets and liabilities
in local currencies. This substantially limits exchange rate
risk to net assets denominated in foreign currencies.

e Use of derivatives. CIGNA generally uses derivative
financial instruments to minimize certain market risks. In
addition, CIGNA has written reinsurance contracts with
issuers of variable annuity contracts that provide
annuitants with certain guarantees related to minimum
income benefits.

See Notes 2(C) and 7(G) to the Financial Statements for
additional information about financial instruments, including
derivative financial instruments.

Effect of Market Fluctuations on CIGNA

The examples shown in the table that follows illustrate the
effect of hypothetical changes in market rates or prices on the
fair value of certain financial instruments. Actual results could
differ materially because the examples were developed using
estimates and assumptions. Certain financial instruments, such
as separate account assets and liabilities, are excluded from
these hypothetical calculations because gains and losses in
separate accounts generally accrue to policyholders. Insurance
contract liabilities (48% of CIGNA’s non-separate account
liabilities at December 31, 2002 and 2001) and reinsurance
recoverables on unpaid losses (11% of CIGNA’s non-separate
account assets at December 31, 2002 and 12% at December 31,
2001) are also excluded. In addition, the effect of a
hypothetical change in equity indices on fair values of futures
contracts used in a program for certain specialty life
reinsurance contracts is excluded from this table and discussed
separately below.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Subject to these exclusions, the effects of hypothetical changes
in market rates or prices on the fair values of certain of
CIGNA'’s financial instruments would have been as follows as
of December 31:

Market scenario for certain
noninsuramce fimamcial instruments Leoss in fair value

(In millions) 2002 2001
100 basis point increase in

interest rates $1,110 $ 790
10% strengthening in U.S. dollar

to foreign currencies $ 90 $ 80
10% decrease in market prices for

equity exposures $ 50 $ 70

The effect of a hypothetical increase in interest rates on the fair
values of certain of CIGNA'’s financial instruments increased in
2002 due to increased fixed maturities to support insurance
liabilities. The effect of a hypothetical increase in interest rates
was determined by estimating the present value of future cash
flows using various models, primarily duration modeling. The
effect of a hypothetical strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative
to the foreign currencies held by CIGNA was estimated to be
10% of the U.S. dollar equivalent fair value. The effect of a
hypothetical decrease in the market prices of equity securities
was estimated to be 10% of their fair value.

As discussed on pages 32 and 33, CIGNA began using futures
contracts in 2002 as part of a program to substantially reduce
the effect of equity market changes on certain specialty life
reinsurance contracts that guarantee minimum death benefits
based on unfavorable changes in variable annuity account
values. The effect of a hypothetical 10% increase in the

S&P 500, Russell 2000 and NASDAQ equity indices would have
been a decrease of approximately $210 million in the fair value
of the futures contracts outstanding under this program as of
December 31, 2002. A corresponding decrease in liabilities for
these specialty life reinsurance contracts would result from the
hypothetical 10% increase in the S&P 500, Russell 2000 and
NASDAQ equity indices. See Note 3 to the Financial Statements
for further discussion of this program and related specialty life
reinsurance contracts.

See also page 20 for a discussion of the effects of recent stock
market declines on CIGNA.
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CAUTIONARY STATERENT FOR PURPOSES OF THE ““SAFE HARBOR' PROVISIONS OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM
ACT OF 1995

CIGNA and its representatives may from time to time make written and oral forward-looking statements, including statements
contained in press releases, in CIGNA'’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, in its reports to shareholders and in
meetings with analysts and investors. Forward-looking statements may contain information about financial prospects, economic
conditions, trends and other uncertainties. CIGNA cautions that actual results could differ materially from those that management
expects, depending on the outcome of certain factors. Some factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the
forward-looking statements include:

1.

increases in medical costs that are higher than anticipated in establishing premium rates in CIGNA’s health care operations,
including increased use and costs of medical services;

. increased medical, administrative, technology or other costs resulting from legislative and regulatory challenges to, and new

regulatory requirements imposed on, CIGNA's health care business (see Health care regulation on page 25 for more
information);

. difficulties in implementing the realignment of health care operations initiated in the second half of 2002 and achievement of

the intended customer service improvements, operational efficiencies and cost savings;

. the risks associated with pending and potential state and federal health care class action lawsuits, purported securities class

action lawsuits, disputes regarding reinsurance arrangements, other litigation challenging CIGNA's businesses and the outcome
of pending government proceedings;

. heightened competition, particularly price competition, which could reduce product margins and constrain growth in CIGNA's

businesses;

. significant reductions in customer retention;

7. significant changes in interest rates;

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

. downgrades in the financial strength ratings of CIGNA’s insurance subsidiaries, which could, among other things, adversely

affect new sales and retention of current business, particularly the retirement business;

. inability of the program adopted by CIGNA to substantially reduce equity market risks for reinsurance contracts that guarantee

minimum death benefits under certain variable annuities (including possible market difficulties in entering into appropriate
futures contracts and in matching such contracts to the underlying equity risk);

adjustments to the reserve assumptions and other considerations (including lapse, partial surrender, mortality, interest rates,
and volatility) used in estimating CIGNA'’s liabilities for reinsurance contracts that guarantee minimum death benefits under
certain variable annuities;

adjustments to the reserve assumptions and other considerations used in estimating CIGNA’s liabilities for reinsurance
contracts that guarantee minimum income benefits under certain variable annuities;

significant stock market declines, which could, among other things, reduce results in CIGNA’s retirement business and result in
increased pension expenses in CIGNA’s pension plan in future periods and the recognition of additional pension obligations;

unfavorable claims experience related to workers’ compensation and personal accident exposures of the run-off reinsurance
business, including losses attributable to the inability to recover claims from retrocessionaires;

significant deterioration in economic conditions, which could have an adverse effect on CIGNA’s operations and investments;
and

changes in federal income tax laws.

This list of important factors is not intended to be exhaustive. There may be other risk factors that would preclude CIGNA from
realizing the forward-looking statements. While CIGNA may periodically update this discussion of risk factors, CIGNA does not
undertake to update any forward-looking statement that may be made by or on behalf of CIGNA prior to its next required filing
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Conselidated Statements of Income

(In millions, except per share amounts)

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
Revenves
Premiums and fees $ 15,737 $ 14,860 $ 15,862
Net investment income 2,716 2,842 2,940
Other revenues 1,133 1,080 717
Realized investment gains (losses) (238) (175) 7

Total revenues 19,348 18,607 19,526
Benefits, Losses and Expenses
Benefits, losses and settlement expenses 14,314 11,976 13,059
Policy acquisition expenses 246 237 268
Other operating expenses 5,357 4,925 4,712

Total benefits, losses and expenses 19,917 17,138 18,039
Income {Loss) from Continuing Operations belore income Taxes (Benefits) (569) 1,469 1,487
Income taxes (benefits):

Current (131) 293 575
Deferred 41) 205 69)

Total taxes (benefits) (172) 498 506
Income (Loss) from Continuing Cperalions 397) 971 981
Income {Loss) from Discontinved Operations (1) 18 6
Ke? Income (Loss) $ (398) $ 989 $ 987
Net Income (Loss) Excluding Geodwill Amertization in 2007 and 2000 {Nete 2) (398) § 1,037 $ 1,035
Basic Earnings (Less) Per Share
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (2.83) $ 657 $ 6.14
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — 0.12 0.04
Net income (loss) $ (2.83) 6.69 $ 6.18
Net income (loss) excluding goodwill amortization in 2001 and 2000 (Note 2) $ (2.83) 7.01 6.48
Dilvted Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (2.83) $ 647 $ 6.04
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — 0.12 0.04
Net income (loss) $ (2.83) 6.59 6.08
Net income (loss) excluding goodwill amortization in 2001 and 2000 (Note 2) $ (2.83) 6.91 6.38

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Comsolidated Belance Sheets

(In millions, except per share amounts)

As of December 31, 2002 2001
Assets
Investments:
Fixed maturities, at fair value (amortized cost, $25,948; $22,672) $ 27,803 $ 23,401
Equity securities, at fair value (cost, $239; $310) 295 404
Mortgage loans 8,729 9,920
Policy loans 2,405 2,774
Real estate 253 432
Other long-term investments 791 1,193
Short-term investments 86 137
Total investments 40,362 38,261
Cash and cash equivalents 1,575 1,918
Accrued investment income 504 522
Premiums, accounts and notes receivable 3,206 2,798
Reinsurance recoverables 6,775 6,983
Deferred policy acquisition costs 424 448
Property and equipment 1,078 986
Deferred income taxes 1,257 1,033
Goodwill 1,620 1,632
Other assets, including other intangibles 624 566
Separate account assets 31,255 36,263
Assets of discontinued operations 200 179
Total assets $ 88,950 $ 91,589
Liuhilities
Contractholder deposit funds $ 29,374 3 28,961
Unpaid claims and claim expenses 4,535 3,950
Future policy benefits 11,848 10,523
Unearned premiums 243 237
Total insurance and contractholder liabilities 46,000 43,671
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,123 4,863
Short-term debt 130 49
Long-term debt 1,500 1,626
Separate account liabilities 31,255 36,263
Liabilities of discontinued operations 75 62
Total liabilities 85,083 86,534
Contingendies = Note 21
Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock (shares issued, 273; 271) 68 68
Additional paid-in capital 3,212 3,093
Net unrealized appreciation, fixed maturities $ 512 $ 189
Net unrealized appreciation, equity securities 26 NY)
Net unrealized appreciation, derivatives 6 10
Net translation of foreign currencies (32) (26)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (718 _{76)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (202) 147
Retained earnings 2,299 9,882
Less treasury stock, at cost (8,510) (8,135)
Total shareholders’ equity 3,867 5,055
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 88,950 $ 91,589
Sharehelders” Equity Per Share $ 27.75 $ 3571

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.




Conselidated Statements of Comprehensive Inceme and Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(In millions, except per share amounts)

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
Compre- Share- Compre- Share- Compre- Share-
hemsive holders’ hensive holders’ hensive holders’
Imcome Equity Income Equity Income Equity
Common Steck, beginning of year $ 68 $ 67 $ 67
Issuance of common stock for employee
benefit plans — 1 —
Common Stock, end of year 68 68 67
Additional Paid-In Capital,
beginmning of year 3,093 2,966 2,825
Issuance of common stock for employee benefit plans 119 127 141
Additional Paid-In Capital, end of year 3,212 3,093 2,966
Accumulated Other Comprehemnsive
Income, beginning of year 147 221 166
Net unrealized appreciation,
fixed maturities $ 323 323 $ 26 26 $ 199 199
Net unrealized depreciation,
equity securities (24) (24) (80) (80) (54) (54)
Net unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) on securities 299 54) 145
Net unrealized appreciation
(depreciation), derivatives 4) 4 10 10 — —
Net translation of foreign currencies (®) ®) (30) (30) (14) (14)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (638) (638) — — (76) 76)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (349) (74) 55
Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss), end of year (202) 147 221
Retained Earnings, beginning of year 9,882 9,081 8,290
Net income (loss) (398) (398) 989 989 987 987
Common dividends declared
(per share: $1.32; $1.28; $1.24) (185) (188) (196)
Retained Earnings, end of year 9,299 9,882 9,081
Treasury Stock, beginning of year (8,135) (6,922) (5,199)
Repurchase of common stock (343) (1,139) (1,681)
Other treasury stock transactions, net (32} 74) (42)
Treasury Stock, end of year (8,510) (8,135) (6,922)
Total Comprehensive Income
{Loss) and Shareholders” Equity $ (747) $ 3,867 $ 915 § 5,055 $ 1,042 $ 5413

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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4%

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions)

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (397 $§ 971 $ 981
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from continuing operations to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Insurance liabilities 1,797 (264) 1,295
Reinsurance recoverables 161 33) (453)
Deferred policy acquisition costs (39) 51 (164)
Premiums, accounts and notes receivable (261) (22) (329)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 288 93 358
Current income taxes (417) 198 86
Deferred income taxes 41) 205 (69)
Realized investment (gains) losses 238 175 )
Depreciation and amortization 221 235 221
Gains on sales of businesses (excluding discontinued operations) (75) (255) (99)
Other, net ©@7) (189) (149)
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 1,378 1,063 1,671
Cush Flows from lnvesting Adivities
Proceeds from investments sold:
Fixed maturities 4,348 2,496 2,951
Equity securities 123 200 168
Mortgage loans 1,324 629 350
Other (primarily short-term investments) 5,459 2,425 2,399
Investment maturities and repayments:
Fixed maturities 2,059 2,288 2,160
Mortgage loans 928 592 968
Investments purchased:
Fixed maturities (9,788) (6,169) (6,120)
Equity securities az7n (196) (247)
Mortgage loans (1,056} (1,489) (1,499)
Other (primarily short-term investments) (4,418) (2,431) (1,702)
Proceeds on sales of businesses, net — 350 45
Deconsolidation of Japanese life insurance operation — (327) —
Property and equipment, net (303) 366) (313)
Other, net (35) (13) (62)
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations (1,486) (2,011) (902)
Cash Flows from Financag Adivities
Deposits and interest credited to contractholder deposit funds 8,535 8,565 8,765
Withdrawals and benefit payments from contractholder deposit funds (8,253) (6,965) (7,613)
Net change in short-term debt (€2) 13 —
Issuance of long-term debt — 493 —
Repayment of long-term debt (36) (144) (101)
Repurchase of common stock (355) 1,139 (1,696)
Issuance of common stock 68 38 72
Common dividends paid (185) (190) (200)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of continuing operations (235) 671 (773)
Effect of foreign currency rate changes on cash and cash equivalents — 1 (30)
Net cash from discontinued operations — 17 1
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (343) (261) (33)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,918 2,179 2,212
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,575 $ 1,918 $ 2,179
Supplememntal Disclosure of Cash Informatiomn:
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $ 218 $ 121 § 457
Interest paid $ 120 $ 109 $ 105

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.




Notes to fhe Finandal Stetements

Note 1 = Description of Business

CIGNA Corporation’s subsidiaries provide employee benefits
offered through the workplace, including health care products
and services, group life, accident and disability insurance,
retirement products and services and investment management.
CIGNA operates throughout the United States and in selected
international locations.

Note 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
CIGNA Corporation and all significant subsidiaries, which are
referred to collectively as “CIGNA.” Intercompany transactions
and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

These consolidated financial statements were prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States. Amounts recorded in the financial
statements reflect management’s estimates and assumptions
about medical costs, investment valuation, interest rates and
other factors. Significant estimates are discussed throughout
these Notes; however, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Results of operations of Lovelace Health Systems, Inc.
(Lovelace), an integrated health care system and subsidiary of
CIGNA, are reported as discontinued operations because
CIGNA sold that business in January 2003 (see Note 4 (A)).
Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in these Notes exclude
the effects of discontinued operations. Certain reclassifications
have also been made to prior years’ amounts to conform to the
2002 presentation.

B. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Consolidation. In January 2003, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46,
““Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” that provides
criteria for consolidating certain entities based on majority
ownership of expected losses or residual returns and must be
implemented by July 1, 2003. CIGNA is currently evaluating
the potential effects on its consolidated financial statements of
implementing this guidance. It is possible that CIGNA could
record additional assets and liabilities of up to the following
approximate amounts: real estate joint venture assets and
liabilities of $500 million each, including $400 million of
liabilities for which there is no recourse to CIGNA; investment
partnership assets and nonrecourse liabilities of $35 million
each; and separate trust arrangement assets and nonrecourse
liabilities of $170 million each. In the unlikely event that all of
the underlying assets of these entities had no value and all
other owners failed to meet their obligations, CIGNA estimates
that its maximum exposure to loss would approximate

$350 million, primarily representing the net carrying value of
CIGNA'’s investments in these entities at December 31, 2002.
However, CIGNA expects to recover the recorded amounts of
investments in these entities.

Goodwill and other intangible assets. As of January 1, 2002,
CIGNA adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”” SFAS
No. 142 eliminates the practice of amortizing goodwill through
periodic charges to earnings and establishes a new
methodology for reporting and measuring goodwill and other
intangible assets.

In accordance with the standard, CIGNA ceased goodwill
amortization on January 1, 2002. Although goodwill is no
longer amortized, SFAS No. 142 requires goodwill to be
evaluated for impairment at least annually, and written down
through earnings when impaired. At implementation, CIGNA’s
evaluation of its goodwill, based on discounted cash flow
analyses, resulted in no impairment loss. CIGNA’s annual
evaluation of its goodwill during 2002 also resulted in no
impairment loss.

For comparative purposes, the following table adjusts net
income (loss) and basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, as if goodwill
amortization had ceased at the beginning of 2000. Goodwill
amortization is attributable to the Employee Health Care, Life
and Disability Benefits segment.

(In millions,
except per share amounts)

Reported net income (loss)
Adjustment for goodwill
amortization, after-tax — 48 48

2002 2001 2000
$ (398) §$ 989 $ 987

Adjusted net income (loss) $ (398) §$ 1,037 $ 1,035
Reported basic earnings
(loss) per share $(2.83 § 6.69 $ 6.18

Adjustment for goodwill
amortization, after-tax — 0.32 0.30

Adjusted basic earnings
(loss) per share

$(283) § 7.01 $ 648

Reported diluted earnings
(loss) per share

Adjustment for goodwill
amortization, after-tax — 0.32 0.30

Adjusted diluted earnings
(loss) per share

$(2.83) §$ 6.59 $ 6.08

$(2.83) 3§ 691 $ 638

Impairment of long-lived assets. As of January 1, 2002,
CIGNA adopted SFAS No. 144, ““Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”” and reclassified
real estate of $119 million to “held and used” from ‘‘held for
sale.” Adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have a material effect
on CIGNA’s consolidated financial statements. See Note 2(D)
for further information regarding the accounting treatment of
CIGNA’s real estate investments.
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Derivative instruments and hedging activities. As of
January 1, 2001, CIGNA implemented SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” At implementation, SFAS No. 133 had an
immaterial effect on CIGNA’s consolidated financial
statements. Additional information regarding SFAS No. 133
and the nature and accounting treatment of CIGNA’s
derivative financial instruments is included in Note 7(G).

C. Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, CIGNA enters into
transactions involving various types of financial instruments.
These financial instruments include:

¢ various investments (such as fixed maturities and equity
securities);

¢ short- and long-term debt; and

e off-balance-sheet instruments (such as investment and
certain loan commitments and financial guarantees).

These instruments may change in value due to interest rate and
market fluctuations, and most also have credit risk. CIGNA
evaluates and monitors each financial instrument individually
and, when management considers it appropriate, uses a
derivative instrument or obtains collateral or another form of
security to minimize risk of loss.

Most financial instruments that are subject to fair value
disclosure requirements (such as fixed maturities and equity
securities) are carried in the financial statements at amounts
that approximate fair value. The following table shows the fair
values and carrying values of CIGNA’s financial instruments
not carried at fair value, at the end of 2002 and 2001:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Fair Carryimg Fair  Carrying
Value Value Value Value

Mortgage loans $ 9622 $§ 8,722 $ 10,433 § 9,920
Contractholder deposit

funds, excluding

universal life products § 20,906

Long-term debt $ 1,488

$ 20,268 3% 19,897 $ 19,524
$ 1,500 $ 1,689 § 1,626

Fair values of off-balance-sheet financial instruments were not
material.

Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market
prices when available. When market prices are not available,
management estimates fair value based on discounted cash
flow analyses, which use current interest rates for similar
financial instruments with comparable terms and credit
quality. Management estimates the fair value of liabilities for
contractholder deposit funds using the amount payable on
demand and, for those deposit funds not payable on demand,
using discounted cash flow analyses. In many cases, the
estimated fair value of a financial instrument may differ
significantly from the amount that could be realized if the
instrument were sold immediately.

D. Imvestments

CIGNA's accounting policies for investment assets are
discussed below.

Fixed maturities and mortgage loans. Investments in fixed
maturities include bonds, mortgage- and other asset-backed
securities and redeemable preferred stocks. These investments
are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value.
Fixed maturities are considered impaired, and amortized cost is
written down to fair value through earnings, when
management expects a decline in value to persist (i.e., the
decline is “other than temporary”’).

Mortgage loans are carried at unpaid principal balances.
Impaired loans are carried at the lower of unpaid principal or
fair value of the underlying collateral. CIGNA estimates the fair
value of the underlying collateral primarily using internal
appraisals. Mortgage loans are considered impaired when it is
probable that CIGNA will not collect amounts due according
to the terms of the loan agreement.

When an investment is current, CIGNA recognizes interest
income when it is earned. CIGNA stops recognizing interest
income on fixed maturities and mortgage loans when they are
delinquent or have been restructured as to terms (interest rate
or maturity date). Net investment income on these
investments is only recognized when interest payments are
actually received.

Real estate. Investment real estate can be “held and used” or
“held for sale”” and is typically obtained through the
foreclosure of mortgage loans. As of January 1, 2002, CIGNA
adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” and accounts for real estate as
follows:

¢ Real estate “"held and used” is expected to be held longer
than one year and includes real estate acquired through the
foreclosure of mortgage loans. CIGNA carries real estate
held and used at depreciated cost less any write-downs to
fair value due to impairment and assesses impairment when
cash flows indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Depreciation is generally calculated using the
straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of
the particular real estate asset.

© Real estate is ““held for sale” when a buyer’s investigation is
completed, a deposit has been received and the sale is
expected to be completed within the next year. Real estate
held for sale is carried at the lower of carrying value or
current fair value, less estimated costs to sell, and is not
depreciated. Valuation reserves reflect any changes in fair
value.

® CIGNA uses several methods to determine the fair value of
real estate, but relies primarily on discounted cash flow
analyses and, in some cases, third party appraisals.




Real estate acquired through the foreclosure of mortgage loans
prior to implementation of SFAS No. 144 was generally
classified as “held for sale.”

At the time of foreclosure, properties are reclassified from
mortgage loans to real estate. CIGNA rehabilitates, re-leases
and sells foreclosed properties. This process usually takes from
two to four years unless management considers a near-term
sale preferable.

Equity securities and short-term investinents. CIGNA
classifies equity securities and short-term investments as
available for sale and carries them at fair value, which for
short-term investments approximates cost. Equity securities
include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks. Equity
securities are considered impaired, and the cost basis is written
down to fair value through earnings, when management
expects a decline in value to persist.

Policy loans. Policy loans are carried at unpaid principal
balances.

Other long-term investments. Other long-term investments
include assets in the separate accounts in excess of separate
account liabilities (see Note 2(K)). These assets are carried at fair
value. Investments in unconsolidated entities in which CIGNA
has significant influence are carried at cost plus CIGNA’s
ownership percentage of reported income or loss. These
entities include partnerships and limited liability companies
holding real estate and securities.

Investment gains and losses. Realized investment gains and
losses result from sales, investment asset write-downs and
changes in valuation reserves, and are based on specifically
identified assets. CIGNA’s net income does not include gains
and losses on investment assets related to experience-rated
pension policyholders’ contracts (policyholder share) because
these amounts generally accrue to the policyholders.

Unrealized gains and losses on investments carried at fair value
are included in accumulated other comprehensive income, net
of policyholder share and deferred income taxes.

Derivative financial instrumerits. Note 7(G) discusses
CIGNA's accounting policies for derivative financial
instruments.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of short-term investments that will
mature in three months or less from the time of purchase.

F. Reinsurance Recoverables

Reinsurance recoverables are estimates of amounts that CIGNA
will receive from reinsurers and are recorded net of amounts
management believes will not be received.

Notes to the Financial Statements

G. Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs consist of incentive payments, commissions,
premium taxes and other costs that CIGNA incurs to acquire
new business. Depending on the product line they relate to,
CIGNA records acquisition costs in different ways. Acquisition
costs for:

o Contractholder deposit funds and universal life products
are deferred and amortized in proportion to the present
value of total estimated gross profits over the expected lives
of the contracts.

¢ Annuity and other individual life insurance (primarily
international) and group health indemnity products are
deferred and amortized, generally in proportion to the ratio
of periodic revenue to the estimated total revenues over the
contract periods.

° Other products are expensed as incurred.

Management estimates the present value of future revenues
less expected payments on products that carry deferred policy
acquisition costs. If that estimate is less than the deferred costs,
CIGNA reduces deferred policy acquisition costs and records an
expense.

H. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation. When applicable, cost includes interest, real
estate taxes and other costs incurred during construction. Also
included in this category is internal-use software that is
acquired, developed or modified, solely to meet CIGNA’s
internal needs, with no plan to market externally. Costs
directly related to obtaining, developing or upgrading internal-
use software are capitalized. Unamortized internal-use software
costs were $500 million at December 31, 2002, and

$375 million at December 31, 2001.

Most of the unamortized internal-use software costs relate to
CIGNA's health care business, which is currently engaged in a
multi-year project to convert to newly designed systems and
processes to support business growth and service to customers.
CIGNA has incurred total costs for this project of
approximately $960 million from 1999 through 2002, of which
$415 million has been capitalized and $545 million has been
expensed as incurred. Accumulated amortization of capitalized
amounts for this project was $15 million at December 31,

2002.

Capitalized costs for this multi-year project are amortized over
a 7.5 year period. The amounts of amortization will increase as
additional members are migrated to the new systems.

For other capitalized costs, CIGNA calculates depreciation and
amortization principally using the straight-line method based
on the estimated useful life of each asset.

Accumulated depreciation and amortization was $1.1 billion at
December 31, 2002 and $1.0 billion at December 31, 2001.
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I. Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of businesses
acquired over the fair value of their net assets. CIGNA adopted
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” and
ceased goodwill amortization as of January 1, 2002. CIGNA
evaluates goodwill for impairment annually based on
discounted cash flow analyses and writes it down through
earnings when impaired.

J. Other Assets, including Other Intangibles

Other assets consist primarily of various insurance-related
assets. CIGNA's other intangible assets are primarily purchased
customer lists and provider contracts. CIGNA amortizes other
intangibles on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from
six to eleven years. Management revises amortization periods if
it believes there has been a change in the length of time that
an intangible will continue to have value. The gross carrying
value of CIGNA’s other intangible assets was $247 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001. The accumulated amortization
was $113 million at December 31, 2002 and $91 million at
December 31, 2001.

K. Separate Accounts

Separate account assets and liabilities are contractholder funds
maintained in accounts with specific investment objectives,
including assets and liabilities of separate trust arrangements
for the benefit of purchasers of certain investment products.
The assets of these accounts are legally segregated and are not
subject to claims that arise out of any of CIGNA's other
businesses. These accounts are carried at fair value. The
investment income, gains and losses of these accounts
generally accrue to the contractholders and are not included in
CIGNA's revenues and expenses, except for fees earned for
asset management services that are reported in premiums and
fees.

L. Contractholder Deposit Funds

Liabilities for contractholder deposit funds include deposits
received from customers for investment-related and universal
life products and investment earnings on their fund balances.
These liabilities are adjusted to reflect administrative charges,
policyholder share of unrealized appreciation or depreciation
on investment assets and, for universal life fund balances,
mortality charges.

M. Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses

Liabilities for unpaid claims and claim expenses are estimates
of payments to be made under health coverages for reported
claims and for losses incurred but not yet reported.
Management develops these estimates using actuarial methods
based upon historical data for payment patterns, cost trends,
product mix, seasonality, utilization of health care services and
other relevant factors. When estimates change, CIGNA records
the adjustment in benefits, losses and settlement expenses in
the period in which the change in estimate is identified.

N. Future Policy Benefits

Future policy benefits are liabilities for estimated future
obligations under traditional life and health policies and
annuity products currently in force. These obligations are
estimated using actuarial methods and primarily consist of
reserves for life and disability insurance benefits, group annuity
contracts and certain specialty life reinsurance contracts.

Obligations for life and disability insurance policies represent
benefits to be paid to policyholders, net of future premiums to
be received. Obligations for guaranteed cost annuities represent
fixed monthly benefits to be paid to a group of individuals over
their remaining lives. These obligations are estimated based on
assumptions as to premiums, interest rates, mortality,
morbidity and surrenders, allowing for adverse deviation.
Mortality, morbidity and surrender assumptions are based on
either CIGNA’s own experience or actuarial tables. Interest rate
assumptions are based on management’s judgement
considering CIGNA'’s experience and future expectations, and
range from 2% to 10%, generally declining over the first

20 years.

Certain specialty life reinsurance contracts guarantee a
minimum death benefit under variable annuities issued by
other insurance companies. These obligations represent the
guaranteed death benefit in excess of the annuitant’s account
values (based on underlying equity and bond mutual fund
investments.) These obligations are estimated based on
assumptions and other considerations for lapse, partial
surrenders, mortality, interest rates, market volatility and
investment returns and premiums, consistent with the
requirements of generally accepted accounting principles when
a premium deficiency exists. Lapse, partial surrenders,
mortality, interest rates and volatility are based on
management’s judgement considering CIGNA’s experience and
future expectations. The results of futures contracts are
reflected in the liability calculation as a component of
investment returns.

See Note 3 for additional information.

0. Unearned Premiums

Premiums for group life, accident and health insurance are
recognized as revenue on a pro rata basis over the contract
period. The unrecognized portion of these premiums is
recorded as unearned premiums.

P. Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist principally of postretirement and
postemployment benefits and various insurance-related
liabilities, including amounts related to reinsurance contracts
and insurance-related assessments that management can
reasonably estimate. Other liabilities also include the loss
position of certain derivatives (see Note 7(G)).




Q. Translation of Foreign Currencies

CIGNA generally conducts its international business through
foreign operating entities that maintain assets and liabilities in
local currencies, which are generally their functional
currencies. CIGNA uses exchange rates as of the balance sheet
date to translate assets and liabilities into U.S. dollars.
Translation gains or losses on functional currencies, net of
applicable taxes, are recorded in accumulated other
comprebensive income. CIGNA uses average exchange rates
during the year to translate revenues and expenses into U.S.
dollars.

R. Premiums and Fees, Revenues and Related Expenses

Premiums for group life, accident and health insurance and
managed care coverages are recognized as revenue on a pro rata
basis over the contract period. Benefits, losses and settlement
expenses are recognized when incurred.

Premiums for individual life insurance and individual and
group annuity products, excluding universal life and
investment-related products, are recognized as revenue when
due. Benefits, losses and settlement expenses are matched with
premiums.

Revenue for investment-related products is recognized as
follows:

¢ Net investment income on assets supporting investment-
related products is recognized as earned.

¢ Contract fees, which are based upon related administrative
expenses, are assessed against the customer’s fund balance
ratably over the contract year.

Benefit expenses for investment-related products consist
primarily of income credited to policyholders in accordance
with contract provisions.

Revenue for universal life products is recognized as follows:

* Net investment income on assets supporting universal life
products is recognized as earned.

* Fees for mortality are recognized ratably over the policy
year.

¢ Administration fees are recognized as services are provided.
¢ Surrender charges are recognized as earned.

Benefit expenses for universal life products consist of benefit
claims in excess of policyholder account balances. Expenses are
recognized when claims are filed, and income is credited in
accordance with contract provisions.

Contract fees and expenses for administrative services only
programs and pharmacy programs and services are recognized
as services are provided.

Notes to the Financiql Statements

S. Participating Business

CIGNA'’s participating life insurance policies entitle
policyholders to earn dividends that represent a portion of the
earnings of CIGNA's life insurance subsidiaries. Participating
insurance accounted for approximately 4% of CIGNA's total
life insurance in force at the end of 2002 and approximately
6% at the end of 2001 and 2000.

T. Income Taxes

CIGNA and its domestic subsidiaries file a consolidated United
States federal income tax return.

CIGNA’s foreign subsidiaries file tax returns in accordance with
applicable foreign law. Tax returns for domestic subsidiaries
owning foreign affiliates include taxable income reported and
credits for taxes paid by those foreign affiliates.

CIGNA generally recognizes deferred income taxes when assets
and liabilities have different values for financial statement and
tax reporting purposes.

Note 13 contains detailed information about CIGNA's income
taxes.

U. Stock Compensation

CIGNA uses the intrinsic value method of accounting for
stock-based compensation. Under this method, no
compensation expense is recorded for stock options because
their exercise price is equal to the market price of CIGNA
common stock on the date of grant. Compensation expense is
recorded for restricted stock grants over their vesting periods
based on fair value, which is equal to the market price of
CIGNA common stock on the date of grant. The following
illustrates the effect on reported net income (loss) and earnings
(loss) per share if CIGNA recorded compensation expense
based on the fair value method of accounting for all stock
awards (using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for stock
options).

(In millions,
except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss), as reported $ (398) $ 989 $ 987

Compensation expense for restricted

stock grants at fair value, net of

taxes, included in net income (loss)

as reported 14 12 10
Total compensation expense for stock

options and restricted stock grants

under fair value method for all

awards, net of taxes 63) (62) (51)
Pro forma net income (loss) 3 (447) $ 939 $ 946
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic—as reported $(2.83) $ 6.69 $ 6.18

Basic—pro forma $(3.18) $ 6.35 $ 592

Diluted—as reported $(2.83) $ 6.59 $ 6.08

Diluted—pro forma 3(3.18) § 6.27 $ 5.85

See also Note 15 for further discussion of CIGNA’s stock plans.
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Note 3 = Charges for the Run-off Reinsurance Operations

A. Losses on Specialty Life Reinsurance Contracts

In 2002, CIGNA recognized an after-tax charge of $720 million
($1.1 billion pre-tax) to strengthen reserves related to certain
specialty life reinsurance contracts and the adoption of a
program to substantially reduce equity market risks related to
these contracts.

CIGNA'’s reinsurance operations, which were discontinued in
2000 and are now an inactive business in run-off mode,
reinsured a guaranteed minimum death benefit under certain
variable annuities issued by other insurance companies. These
variable annuities are essentially investments in mutual funds
combined with a death benefit. Death benefits under the
annuity contracts reinsured by CIGNA are determined using
various methods.

The majority of CIGNA’s exposure arises under annuities that
guarantee that the benefit received at death will be no less than
the highest historical account value of the related mutual fund
investments on an annuitant’s contract anniversary date.
Under this type of death benefit, CIGNA is liable to the extent
the highest historical anniversary account value exceeds the
fair value of the related mutual fund investments at the time of
an annuitant’s death. Other annuity designs that CIGNA
reinsured guarantee that the benefit received at death will be
no less than net deposits paid into the contract accumulated at
a specified rate or net deposits paid into the contract. In
periods of declining equity markets and in periods of flat
equity markets following a decline, CIGNA's liabilities for these
guaranteed minimum death benefits increase.

As a result of equity market declines and volatility in 2002,
CIGNA evaluated alternatives for addressing the exposures
associated with these reinsurance contracts, considering the
possibility of continued depressed equity market conditions,
the potential effects of further market declines and the impact
on future earnings and capital. As a result of this evaluation,
CIGNA implemented a program to substantially reduce the
equity market exposures of this business by selling exchange-
traded futures contracts and, potentially, other instruments,
which are expected to rise in value as the equity market
declines and decline in value as the equity market rises.

The purpose of this program is to substantially reduce the
adverse effects of potential future stock market declines on
CIGNA'’s liabilities for certain reinsurance contracts, as
increases in liabilities under the reinsurance contracts from a
declining market will be substantially offset by gains on the
futures contracts. A consequence of this prograin is that it also
substantially reduces the positive effects of potential future
equity market increases, as reductions in liabilities under these
contracts from improved equity market conditions will be
substantially offset by losses on the futures contracts.

In order to achieve the objective of this program, CIGNA
expects to adjust its futures contract position and possibly
enter into other positions over time to reflect changing equity
market levels and changes in the investment mix of the
underlying variable annuity investments.

The $720 million after-tax charge consists of:

e $620 million after-tax, principally reflecting the reduction
in assumed future equity market returns as a resuit of
implementing the program and, to a lesser extent, changes
to the policy lapse, mortality, market volatility and interest
rate assumptions used in estimating the liabilities for these
contracts. CIGNA determines liabilities under the
reinsurance contracts using an assumption for expected
future performance of equity markets. A consequence of
implementing the program is, effectively, a reduction in the
assumption for expected future performance of equity
markets, as the futures contracts essentially eliminate the
opportunity to achieve previously expected market returns;
and

¢ $100 million after-tax reflecting deterioration in equity
markets that occurred in the third quarter of 2002 (prior to
implementation of the program).

CIGNA recorded a pre-tax gain of $87 million in 2002 in other
revenues to reflect the increase in the fair values of futures
contracts since the inception of the program. A corresponding
expense reflecting the increase in liabilities for the specialty life
reinsurance contracts is included in benefits, losses and
settlement expenses.

CIGNA had reserves for these liabilities of approximately
$1.4 billion as of December 31, 2002, and approximately
$300 million as of December 31, 2001.

Management estimates reserves for variable annuity death
benefit exposure based on assumptions and other
considerations, including lapse, partial surrender, mortality,
interest rates and volatility. These are based on CIGNA’s
experience and future expectations. CIGNA monitors actual
experience to update these reserve estimates as necessary.




Lapse refers to the full surrender of an annuity prior to an
annuitant’s death. Volatility refers to market volatility that
affects the costs of the program adopted by CIGNA to reduce
equity market risks associated with these liabilities.

Partial surrender refers to the fact that most annuitants have
the ability to withdraw substantially all of their mutual fund
investments while retaining any available death benefit
coverage in effect at the time of the withdrawal. A very small
percentage of annuitants have elected partial surrenders to
date. An increase in CIGNA'’s liabilities for variable annuity
death benefits due to partial surrenders would depend on
many factors, including financial market conditions prior to
surrender and annuitant behavior.

The determination of reserves for variable annuity death
benefits requires CIGNA to make critical accounting estimates.
Management believes the current assumptions and other
considerations used to estimate reserves for these liabilities are
appropriate. However, if actual experience differs from the
assumptions and other considerations (including lapse, partial
surrender, mortality, interest rates and volatility) used in
estimating these reserves, the resulting change could have a
material adverse effect on CIGNA’s consolidated results of
operations, and in certain situations, could have a material
adverse effect on CIGNA’s financial condition.

As of December 31, 2002, the aggregate fair value of the
underlying mutual fund investments was approximately

$50 billion. The death benefit coverage in force as of that date
(representing the amount that CIGNA would have to pay if all
1.5 million annuitants had died on that date) was
approximately $23.4 billion. The death benefit coverage in
force represents the excess of the guaranteed benefit amount
over the fair value of the underlying mutual fund investments.
The notional amount of the futures contract positions held by
CIGNA at December 31, 2002, was $2.2 billion.

During 2000, CIGNA recorded after-tax charges for the run-off
reinsurance business totaling $127 million as follows:

¢ acharge of $84 million to strengthen reserves, following a
review of reserve assumptions for specialty life reinsurance
contracts that guarantee certain minimum death benefits
based on unfavorable changes in variable annuity account
values. These values are derived from underlying equity and
bond mutual fund investments as more fully discussed
above;

¢ acharge of $40 million to strengthen reserves for personal
accident reinsurance contracts; and

® acharge of $3 million for restructuring costs (principally
severance).

B. Other Reinsurance Charges

CIGNA also recognized an after-tax charge of $317 million
($408 million pre-tax) in the third quarter of 2002 for Unicover
and other run-off reinsurance exposures, including London
reinsurance business. For further information on these charges,
see Note 17.
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Nete 4 = Acquisitions and Dispositions

Over the long term, CIGNA’s priorities for use of capital are
internal growth, acquisitions and share repurchase. Given the
capital needs of CIGNA's principal subsidiary (Connecticut
General Life Insurance Company) primarily resulting from the
charges for the run-off reinsurance operations (see Note 3),
CIGNA intends to retain capital and has suspended share
repurchase. CIGNA conducts regular strategic and financial
reviews of its businesses to ensure that its capital is used
effectively. As a result of these reviews, CIGNA may from time
to time acquire or dispose of assets, subsidiaries or lines of
business. Significant transactions are described below.

A. Sale of Lovelace Health Systems

In January 2003, CIGNA sold the operations of Lovelace, an
integrated health care system located in New Mexico that
includes a multi-specialty physician group practice, a hospital,
family practice clinics and a health plan, for cash proceeds of
approximately $210 million. The sale generated an after-tax
gain of approximately $30 million which will be recognized in
the first quarter of 2003. In the fourth quarter of 2002, CIGNA
began reporting this business as discontinued operations and
prior year financial information has been reclassified.

During 2002, CIGNA increased reserves for a Medicare cost
reporting matter associated with Lovelace (see page 73) by

$9 million after-tax ($14 million pre-tax). In the fourth quarter
of 2002, Lovelace entered into a settlement agreement with the
federal government related to this matter, This charge is
included in results of discontinued operations.

Summarized financial data for discontinued operations are
outlined below:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Income Statement Data

Revenues $ 567 $ 508 § 468
Income before taxes $ 1 $ 28 §$ 10
Income taxes 2 10 4

Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (1) $ 18 §

(In millions) 2002 2001
Balance Sheet Data

Cash $ 23 8§ 15
Accounts receivable 34 34
Property and equipment 94 91
Goodwill and other assets 49 39
Total assets $200 $ 179
Insurance liabilities $ 47 §$ 37
Accounts payable and other liabilities 28 25
Total liabilities $ 75 § 62




B. Sale of Brazilian Health Care Cperations

In January 2003, CIGNA sold its Brazilian health care
operations. CIGNA expects to record a net gain of
approximately $15 million after-tax in the first quarter of 2003
associated with this sale, primarily as a result of the disposition
of the net liabilities associated with these operations. The gain
will be reported as part of discontinued operations. Revenues,
expenses and results of operations of the Brazilian health care
operations are not material to CIGNA’s consolidated financial
statements.

C. Sales of Interests in Japanese Life Insurance Operation

In 2001, CIGNA sold portions of its interest in its Japanese life
insurance operation as follows:

Portion of

CIGNA Equity
Equity Ownership  Proceeds Gain on
Ownership Interest from Sale, after-
Interest Retained Sale (in tax (in
Date of Sale Sold* by CIGNA* millions) millions)
Jan. 2001 21% 40% $ 83 $ 8
Nov. 2601 40% — $ 267 $ 27

* Prior to the January 2001 sale, CIGNA owned 61% of the
Japanese life insurance operation.

As a result of the January 2001 sale, CIGNA stopped
consolidating the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of
this operation and, until the November 2001 sale, accounted
for its remaining interest under the equity method of
accounting.

D. Sale of Portions of U.S. Life Reinsurance Business

As of June 1, 2000, CIGNA sold its U.S. individual life, group
life and accidental death reinsurance business for cash
proceeds of approximately $170 million. The sale generated an
after-tax gain of approximately $85 million, but recognition of
that gain was deferred because the sale was structured as an
indemnity reinsurance arrangement.

During 2002 and 2001, the acquirer entered into agreements
with the reinsured parties, relieving CIGNA of any remaining
obligations to those parties. As a result, CIGNA accelerated the
recognition of $3 million after-tax of the deferred gain in 2002
and $69 million after-tax in 2001. In addition to the
accelerated gain recognition, CIGNA recognized less than

$1 million after-tax of the deferred gain in the Run-off
Reinsurance Operations segment in 2002, compared with

$9 million after-tax in 2001. The remaining deferred gain as of
December 31, 2002, was approximately $1 million after-tax.
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CIGNA has placed its remaining reinsurance businesses
(including its accident, domestic health, international life and
health, and specialty life reinsurance businesses) into run-off
and has stopped underwriting new reinsurance business. See
also Notes 3 and 17 for further discussions related to the Run-
off Reinsurance Operations segment.

E. Sale of Individual Life Insurance and Annuity Business

In 1998, CIGNA sold its individual life insurance and annuity
business for cash proceeds of $1.4 billion. The sale generated
an after-tax gain of approximately $770 million, the majority
of which was deferred and is recognized at the rate that
earnings from the sold business would have been expected to
emerge (primarily over 15 years on a declining basis). CIGNA
recognized $48 million after-tax of the deferred gain in 2002,
$52 million after-tax in 2001 and $57 million after-tax in 2000.
The remaining deferred gain as of December 31, 2002, was
$283 million after-tax.

Note 5 = Restructuring Programs

A. Fourth Quarter 2002 Program

In the fourth quarter of 2002, CIGNA adopted a restructuring
program primarily to realign the organizational structure and
operations of its health care business. As a result, CIGNA
recognized in operating expenses an after-tax charge of

$97 million ($151 million pre-tax) in the Employee Health
Care, Life and Disability Benefits segment. The after-tax charge
consisted of $74 million of severance costs (3116 million pre-
tax), $22 million in real estate costs ($34 million pre-tax)
related to vacating certain leased facilities and $3 million

($4 million pre-tax) of asset impairment charges. These
amounts were partially offset by a reduction in costs of

$2 million after-tax ($3 million pre-tax) for other
postretirement benefits for employees terminated in 2002. This
benefit cost reduction will continue in 2003 as additional
employees are terminated, aggregating approximately

$11 million after-tax ($17 million pre-tax).

The severance charge reflected the expected reduction of
approximately 3,900 employees. As part of the plan, CIGNA
expects to hire approximately 650 employees to support newly
consolidated operations, thereby resulting in a net reduction of
approximately 3,250 employees under this program. As of
December 31, 2002, approximately 700 employees had been
terminated under the program. As of December 31, 2002,
CIGNA had paid $4 million related to severance under this
program.




CIGNA expects this restructuring program to be substantially
completed by year-end 2003. The table below shows CIGNA’s
restructuring activity (pre-tax) related to severance and real
estate for this program:

Severance
No. of Real Total
(Dollars in millions) Employees Cost [Estate Charge
Fourth quarter 2002 charge 3,890 §$ 116 $ 38 $ 154
Fourth quarter 2002 activity:
Employees (713) 4) @
Lease costs — —
Asset write-downs @) @)
Balance as of
December 31, 2002 3,177 $ 112 $ 34 $ 146

B. Fourth Quarter 2001 Program

In the fourth quarter of 2001, CIGNA adopted a restructuring
program primarily to consolidate existing health service
centers into regional service centers. As a result, CIGNA
recognized in operating expenses an after-tax charge of $62
million ($96 million pre-tax) in the Employee Health Care, Life
and Disability Benefits segment. The after-tax charge consisted
of $31 million of severance costs ($48 million pre-tax) and

$31 million in real estate costs ($48 million pre-tax) related to
vacating certain leased facilities.

The severance charge reflected the expected reduction of
approximately 3,100 employees. As a result of the
consolidation of health service centers, CIGNA hired
approximately 1,100 employees, thereby resulting in a net
reduction of approximately 2,000 employees under this
program. As of December 31, 2002, approximately 2,800
employees had been terminated under the program (2,366
employees were terminated in 2002). The real estate charges
consisted of $37 million pre-tax related to vacating leased
facilities, which are cash obligations pertaining to non-
cancelable lease obligations and lease termination penalties.
The charge also included $11 million pre-tax of non-cash asset
write-downs. As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had paid

$44 million related to severance and vacating leased facilities
under this program ($38 million was paid in 2002).

Notes to the Financial Staterents

This restructuring program was substantially completed in the
fourth quarter of 2002. The table below shows CIGNA's
restructuring activity (pre-tax) for this program:

Severance
No. of Real Total
(Dollars in millions) Employees Cost  Estate Charge
Fourth quarter 2001 charge 3,100 $ 48 § 48 § 96
Fourth quarter 2001 activity:
Employees (436) (5) (5)
Lease costs (1) (1)
Asset write-downs (11) 11)
Balance as of
December 31, 2001 2,664 43 36 79
2002 activity:
Employees (2,366) (36) (36)
Lease costs (2) 2)
Adjustment of
remaining balance (143) 7 (11) (4)
Balance as of
December 31, 2002 155 $ 14 $ 23 $ 37

During 2002, CIGNA made certain adjustments associated with
this restructuring program, resulting in a net adjustment of
$4 million pre-tax ($2 million after-tax).

Note 6 = Evenis of September 11, 2001

As a result of claims arising from the events of September 11,
2001, CIGNA recorded after-tax charges of $25 million in 2001.
These charges, which are net of reinsurance, primarily related
to life, accident and disability claims and, to a lesser extent,
higher utilization of managed behavioral health services. These
charges were reported by segment as follows: Employee Health
Care, Life and Disability Benefits, $20 million; Employee
Retirement Benefits and Investment Services, $3 million; and
Run-off Reinsurance Operations, $2 million. During the fourth
quarter of 2002, CIGNA revised its estimate of liabilities
associated with the events of September 11, 2001, and
recognized an after-tax credit of $2 million in the Run-off
Reinsurance Operations segment.

Mote 7 = lnvestments

CIGNA'’s investments, as recorded on the balance sheet,
include policyholder share. Policyholder share includes the
investment assets related to experience-rated pension
policyholder contracts. See Note 9(B) for discussion on the
investment gains and losses associated with policyholder share.




A, Fixed Maturities

The amortized cost and fair value by confractual maturity
periods for fixed maturities, including policyholder share, were
as follows at December 31, 2002:

Amortized Fatr
(In millions) Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 1,169 $ 1,211
Due after one year through five years 6,508 6,389
Due after five years through ten years 7,473 8,029
Due after ten years 4,712 5,362
Mortgage- and other asset-backed securities 6,089 6,312
Total $ 25,948 $27,803

Actual maturities could differ from contractual maturities
because issuers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations, with or without penalties. Also, in some cases
CIGNA may extend maturity dates.

Gross unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on fixed
maturities, including policyholder share, by type of issuer was
as follows:

Ameortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Appreciation Depreciation Value
(In millions) December 31, 2002
Federal government
and agency $ 956 $ 241 $ —$ 1,197
State and local
government 1,612 151 2) 1,761
Foreign government 751 79 %) 825
Corporate 16,628 1,376 (208) 17,796
Federal agency
mortgage-backed 1,638 31 — 1,669
Other mortgage-
backed 2,158 112 (5) 2,265
Other asset-backed 2,205 132 (47) 2,290
Total $ 25,948 $ 2,122 $ (267) § 27,803

December 31, 2001

Federal government

and agency $ 329 $ 170 $ — 5 499
State and local

government 1,544 62 (10) 1,596
Foreign government 588 35 (13) 610
Corporate 14,733 711 (233) 15,211
Federal agency

mortgage-backed 616 15 4 627
Other mortgage-

backed 2,341 57 (59 2,344
Other asset- backed 2,521 78 (85) 2,514
Total $ 22,672 § 1,128 3 (399 § 23,401

As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had commitments to
purchase $80 million of fixed maturities. Most of these
commitments are to purchase unsecured investment grade
bonds bearing interest at a fixed market rate. These bond
commitments are diversified by issuer and maturity date.
CIGNA expects to disburse all of the committed amounts in
2003.

B. Mortgage Loans, Real Estate and Other
Long-Term Investments

CIGNA’s mortgage loans and real estate investments are
diversified by property type, location and, for mortgage loans,
borrower. Mortgage loans, which are secured by the related
property, are generally made at less than 70% of the property’s
value.

At December 31, the carrying values of mortgage loans and real
estate investments, including policyholder share, were as
follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Mortgage loans 38,729 $ 9,920
Real estate:
Held for sale 18 248
Held and used 235 184
Total real estate 253 432
Total $ 8,982 $ 10,352

At December 31, mortgage loans and real estate investmernts
were distributed among the following property types and
geographic regions:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Property type

Retail facilities $ 2,357 $ 3231
Office buildings 3,845 4,254
Apartment buildings 1,177 1,313
Industrial 789 756
Hotels 597 549
Other 217 249
Total $ 8,982 $ 10,352
Geographic regiom

Central $ 2,315 $ 2,850
Pacific 1,997 2,070
South Atlantic 1,897 1,967
Middle Atlantic 1,383 1,660
Mountain 887 909
Other 503 896
Total $ 8,982 $ 10,352




Mortgage loans. At December 31, 2002, scheduled mortgage
loan maturities were as follows (in billions, unless otherwise
indicated): $800 million in 2003, $1.5 in 2004, $1.1 in 2005,
$1.2in 2006, $1.2 in 2007 and $2.9 thereafter.

Actual maturities could differ from contractual maturities for
several reasons: borrowers may have the right to prepay
obligations, with or without prepayment penalties; the
maturity date may be extended; and loans may be refinanced.

As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had commitments to extend
credit under commercial mortgage loan agreements of

$154 million, most of which were at a fixed market rate of
interest. These loan commitments are diversified by property
type and geographic region. CIGNA expects to disburse all of
the committed amounts in 2003.

At December 31, impaired mortgage loans and valuation
reserves were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Impaired loans with no valuation reserves $204 $ 105
Impaired loans with valuation reserves 46 99
Total impaired loans 250 204
Less valuation reserves 11 15
Net impaired loans $239 § 189

During the year ended December 31, changes in reserves for
impaired mortgage loans, including policyholder share, were as
follows:

(n millions) 2002 2001
Reserve balance—January 1 $ 15 § 37
Transfers to foreclosed real estate —_ (22)
Charge-offs upon sales 27 (5)
Net change in reserves 23 5
Reserve balance—December 31 $ 11 $ 15

Impaired mortgage loans, before valuation reserves, averaged
approximately $257 million in 2002 and $202 million in 2001.
Interest income recorded (cash received) on impaired loans was
approximately $19 million in 2002 and $16 million in 2001.

During 2002, CIGNA refinanced approximately $82 million of
its mortgage loans at then-current market rates for borrowers
unable to obtain alternative financing. There were no such
refinancings in 2001.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Real estate and other long-term investments. During 2002,
non-cash investing activities did not include any real estate
acquired through foreclosure of mortgage loans, compared to
$110 million for 2001 and $86 million for 2000. The total of
valuation reserves and cumulative write-downs related to real
estate, including policyholder share, was $97 million at the
end of 2002 compared to $125 million at the end of 2001. Net
investment income from real estate held for sale (excluding
policyholder share) was $4 million for 2002, $10 million for
2001 and $7 million for 2000. Write-downs upon foreclosure
and changes in valuation reserves (excluding policyholder
share) were $9 million after-tax for 2002, $6 million after-tax
for 2001 and not material in 2000.

As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had commitments to
contribute additional equity (recorded in other long-term
investments) of $53 million to existing real’estate joint
ventures that are diversified by property type and geographic
region, and $70 million to existing security partnerships that
hold securities which are diversified by issuer and maturity
date. CIGNA expects to disburse approximately 95% of the
comimitted amounts in 2003.

C. Short-Term Invesiments and Cash Equivalents

Short-term investments and cash equivalents included
corporate securities of $439 million, federal government
securities of $328 million and money market funds of

$216 million at December 31, 2002. CIGNA’s short-term
investments and cash equivalents at December 31, 2001,
included money market funds of $244 million, other asset-
backed securities of $209 million and corporate securities of
$940 million.

D. Net Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation) on
Investments

Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments carried
at fair value at December 31 was as follows:

(n millions) 2002 2001
Unrealized appreciation:
Fixed maturities $ 2,122 $ 1,128
Equity securities 87 161
2,209 1,289
Unrealized depreciation:
Fixed maturities (267) (399)
Equity securities [€31)) (67)
(298) (466)
1,911 823
Less policyholder-related amounts 1,083 452
Shareholder net unrealized appreciation 828 371
Less deferred income taxes 290 132

Net unrealized appreciation $ 538 § 239
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E. Non-Income Producing Investments

As of December 31, the carrying values of investments,
including policyholder share, that were non-income producing
during the preceding twelve months were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Fixed maturities S 47 § 44
Mortgage loans —_ 1
Real estate 39 122
Other long-term investments 105 91
Total $191 § 258

F. Concentration of Risk

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, CIGNA did not have a
concentration of investments in a single issuer or borrower
exceeding 10% of shareholders’ equity.

G. Derivative Financial Instruments

CIGNA’s investment strategy is to manage the characteristics of
investment assets (such as duration, yield, currency and
liquidity) to meet the varying demands of the related insurance
and contractholder liabilities (such as paying claims,
investment returns and withdrawals). As part of this
investment strategy, CIGNA typically uses derivatives to
minimize interest rate, foreign currency and equity price risks.
CIGNA routinely monitors exposure to credit risk associated
with derivatives and diversifies the portfolio among approved
dealers of high credit quality to minimize credit risk. In
addition, CIGNA has written reinsurance contracts with issuers
of variable annuity contracts that provide annuitants with
certain guarantees related to minimum income benefits.

As of January 1, 2001, CIGNA implemented SFAS No. 133,
““Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.”” At implementation, SFAS No. 133 had an
immaterial effect on CIGNA’s consolidated financial
statements. SFAS No. 133 allows companies to use hedge
accounting when derivatives are designated, qualify and are
highly effective as hedges. Under hedge accounting, the
changes in fair value of the derivative and the hedged risk are
generally recognized together and offset each other when
reported in net income.

Beginning on January 1, 2001, CIGNA accounts for derivative
instruments as follows:

e Derivatives are reported on the balance sheet at fair value
with changes in fair values reported in net income or
accumulated other comprehensive income.

¢ Changes in the fair value of derivatives that hedge market
risk related to future cash flows — and that qualify for hedge
accounting ~ are reported in a separate caption in
accumulated other comprehensive income. These hedges
are referred to as cash flow hedges.

¢ A change in the fair value of a derivative instrument may
not always equal the change in the fair value of the hedged
item; this difference is referred to as hedge ineffectiveness.
Where hedge accounting is used, CIGNA reflects hedge
ineffectiveness in net income (generally as part of realized
investment gains and losses).

° Features of certain investments and obligations are
accounted for as derivatives, such as certain fixed
maturities’ investment returns that are based on the
performance of commercial loan pools. As permitted under
SFAS No. 133, derivative accounting has not been applied
to such features of investments or obligations existing
before January 1, 1999.

In 2002, CIGNA implemented a program to substantially
reduce the equity market exposures for certain specialty life
reinsurance contracts by selling exchange-traded futures
contracts. CIGNA recorded a pre-tax gain of $87 million in
other revenues reflecting the net change in the fair values of
these futures contracts. See Note 3 for further discussion.

In 2002, CIGNA recorded a pre-tax loss of $16 million in other
operating expenses reflecting the net changes in fair value (due
to stock market declines and changes in assumptions used) for
certain other specialty life reinsurance contracts that guarantee
minimum income benefits. See Note 21 for further discussion.

In 2001, CIGNA recorded $10 million pre-tax in other
operating expenses reflecting the decline in fair value of
forward starting swaps used to hedge a mortgage loan
participation held for sale. The increase in fair value of the
participation through the date of sale was $5 million pre-tax,
reported in other revenues. CIGNA also recorded $13 million
pre-tax in realized investment losses in 2001 for embedded
derivatives whose fair value is based on the performance of
underlying commercial loan pools.

The other effects of derivatives were not material to CIGNA’s
consolidated results of operations, liquidity or financial
condition for 2002, 2001 or 2000.




directly to policyholders.
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The table below presents information about the nature and accounting treatment of CIGNA’s primary derivative financial
instruments. Derivatives in CIGNA's separate accounts are not included because associated gains and losses generally accrue

Instrument Risk

Purpose

Cash Flows

Accounting Policy
(Beginning January 1, 2001*)

from unfavorable changes in variable
annuity account values based on
underlying mutual funds. CIGNA
purchased reinsurance contracts to
hedge the market risks assumed.
These contracts are accounted for as
written and purchased options.

changes in account values when
account holders elect to receive
minimum income payments.

Futures Primarily CIGNA sells futures contracts to CIGNA receives (pays) cash daily in Fair value changes are reported in
equity risks reduce the equity market exposures the amount of the change in fair other revenues.

for certain specialty life reinsurance value of the futures contracts.
contracts that guarantee death

benefits resulting from changes in

variable annuity account values based

on underlying mutual funds.

Interest rate risk ~ CIGNA hedges fair value changes of CIGNA receives (pays) cash daily in Using cash flow hedge accounting,
fixed maturity and mortgage loan the amount of the change in fair fair value changes are reported in
investments to be purchased. value of the futures contracts. other comprehensive income and

amortized into net investment
income over the life of the
investments purchased.

Swaps Interest rate CIGNA hedges the interest or foreign CIGNA periodically exchanges cash Using cash flow hedge accounting,
and foreign currency cash flows of fixed maturities flows between variable and fixed fair values are reported in other long-
currency risk to match associated liabilities. interest rates or between two term investments or other liabilities

Currency swaps are primarily euros currencies for both principal and and other comprehensive income.
and extend for periods of up to interest. Net interest cash flows are reported in
19 years. net investment income.
Forward Interest rate risk ~ CIGNA hedges fair value changes of CIGNA periodically exchanges the Fair values are reported in other long-
Swaps fixed maturity and mortgage loan difference between variable and fixed term investments or other liabilities
investments primarily related to rate asset cash flows, to begin at a and in contractholder deposit fund
experience-rated pension designated future date. liabilities, with no effect on net
policyholder contracts. income.
CIGNA hedges fair value changes of CIGNA receives (pays) cash in the Fair values of the forward swaps are
mortgage loan participations to be amount of fair value changes when reported in other assets or liabilities,
sold. the mortgage loan participation is with changes reported in other
sold. revenues or other operating expenses.
Embedded Interest rate CIGNA purchases fixed maturities CIGNA receives cash based on the Fair values of the embedded return
Swaps and credit risk with investment return features that performance of underlying features are reported in fixed
are based on the performance of commercial loan pools. maturities, with changes reported in
underlying commercial loan pools. realized gains and losses.

Written and  Primarily CIGNA has written certain specialty CIGNA periodically receives (pays) Fair values are reported in other

Purchased equity risk life reinsurance contracts to guarantee fees and will pay (receive) cash liabilities and other assets. Changes in

Options minimum income benefits resulting resulting from the unfavorable fair value are reported in other

revenues or other operating expenses.

CIGNA has written certain universal
life insurance contracts that credit
income to policyholders based on the
change in an equity index. CIGNA
purchased options to hedge the effect
of income credited under these
contracts.

Under written options, CIGNA may
be required to make payments to
policyholders at the end of the
contract, depending on the change in
an equity index. Under purchased
options, CIGNA pays an up-front fee
to third parties, and may receive cash
at the end of the contract based on
the change in this equity index.

Fair values of written options are
reported in contractholder deposit
fund liabilities, with changes reported
in benefit expense. Fair values of
purchased options are reported in
other assets or liabilities, with changes
reported in other revenues or other
operating expenses.

* Prior to January 1, 2001, accounting policies differed as follows: the fair value of swaps was reported with fixed maturities; changes in fair value of embedded swaps were
included in other comprehensive income with the fair value of fixed maturities; changes in the fair value of futures were reported with fixed maturities and mortgage loan
investments; and purchased options were reported in benefit expense at amortized cost adjusted for any change in equity indexes.
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Note 8 = Accumulated Other Comprehensive lncome (Loss)

Nete 9 = lnvestment lncome and Galns and Lesses

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

(which exclude policyholder share) were as follows:

A. Net Investment Income

The components of net investment income, including
policyholder share, for the year ended December 31 were as

(Exper}“sg follows:
(In millions) Pre-Tax Benefit After-Tax
2002 (In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Net anrealized Fixed maturities $1,774 $ 1,722 $ 1,757
appreciation, securities: Equity securities 10 10 10
Unrealized appreciation Mortgage loans 707 772 774
on securities held $ 202 S (69) S 133 Policy loans 177 208 204
Losses realized on securities 256 ©D) 166 Real estate 63 94 113
Net unrealized appreciation, securities $ 458  $(159) $ 299 Other long-term investments 34 56 60
Net smrealized Short-term investments and cash 38 73 139
depreciation, derivatives $  (6) $ 2 S @ 2,803 2,935 3,057
- " Less investment expenses 87 93 117
Net translation of foreign Net investment income $ 2,716 $ 2,842 $ 2,940
curremcies $ @& $ 2 $ (6 - - -
Mifﬁm?‘{im P mfnsmn Net investment income attributable to policyholder contracts
liability adjustment SC8D S 343 S (638 (which is included in CIGNA's revenues and is primarily offset
2001 by amounts included in benefits, losses and settlement
Net unrealized N expenses) was approximately $1.3 billion for 2002, $1.5 billion
dep?ecmmm’ .Sef:““tnw for 2001 and $1.4 billion for 2000. Net investment income for
Umeahzed,éemeaanon separate accounts (which is not reflected in CIGNA’s revenues)
onsecuritiesheld 345 3 463 09 yas $790 million for 2002, $1.0 billion for 2001 and
Losses realized on securities 167 (58) 109 $2.0 billion for 2000.
Gains realized on sale of business 92) 32 (60)
Reclassification to establish separate Fixed maturities and mortgage loans on which CIGNA
caption for derivatives 6 2 (@) recognizes interest income only when cash is received (referred
Net unrealized depreciation, securities $ (76) $ 22 3 {54  to as non-accrual investments), including policyholder share,
Net unrealized were as follows at December 31:
appreciation, derivatives:
Reclassification to establish separate (In millions) 2002 2001
caption for derivatives 3 6 5§ @ 3 4 Restructured $ 164 $ 268
Unrealized appreciation on Delinquent 126 76
derivatives held 9 3) 6 Total non-accrual investments $ 290 $ 344
Net unrealized
appreciation, derivatives $ 15 $ (5 § 10 Net investment income was $25 million lower in 2002,
Net transiation of foreign $20 million in 2001 and $9 million in 2000 than it would have
currencies: been if interest on non-accrual investments had been
Net translation on foreign recognized in accordance with the original terms of these
currencies held $ (40) $ 9 $ (31 investments.
Foreign currency translation losses
realized on sale of business 2 o8} 1
Net translation of foreign currencies $ (38) 3 8 $ (30)
2000
Net unrealized
appreciation, securities:
Unrealized appreciation
on securities held $ 216 $ (76) $ 140
Losses realized on securities 7 2) 5
Net unrealized appreciation, securities $ 223 $ (78 § 145
Net tramslation of foreign
currencies $ @1 k) 7 $ (14
Mimigm pemsion
EHability adjustment $ (117) 41 $ (76)




B. Realized Investment Gains and Losses

Realized gains and losses on investments, exciuding
policyholder share, for the year ended December 31 were as
follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Fixed maturities $(193) $ (204) $ (59
Equity securities (63) 37 52
Mortgage loans (1®) 2) (12)
Real estate 24 (12) 22
Other 4 6 4

238 (175 7
Less income taxes (benefits) 83) (63) 3
Net realized investment gains (losses) $(155) $(112) $ 4

Realized investment gains and losses included impairments in
the value of investments, net of recoveries, of $230 million in
2002, $214 million in 2001 and $70 million in 2000.

Based on contractual provisions, gains and losses on assets
related to separate account contracts generally accrue to the
contractholders. Under the experience-rating process, gains
and losses on assets related to policyholder contracts generally
accrue to the contractholders. Realized investment gains and
losses that are therefore not reflected in CIGNA's revenues for
the year ended December 31 were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Separate accounts $(1,925) $ (819) § 1,787
Policyholder contracts $ (432) 3 (16) § (83

Sales of available-for-sale fixed maturities and equity securities,
including policyholder share, for the year ended December 31
were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Proceeds from sales $ 4,471 $ 2,696 $ 3,119
Gross gains on sales $ 136 $ 189 § 121

Gross losses on sales $ 3267 3 (178) $ (109)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Nobe 10 — Debt

Short-term and long-term debt consisted of the following at
December 31:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Short-term
Current maturities of long-term debt

$ 127 $ 36

Short-term notes 3 13

Total short-term debt $ 130 § 49

Long-term

Uncollateralized debt:
7.4% Notes due 2003 $ — $ 100
6*/5% Notes due 2006 100 100
7.4% Notes due 2007 300 300
8/4% Notes due 2067 100 100
7% Notes due 2011 250 250
6.375% Notes due 2011 250 250
7.65% Notes due 2023 100 100
8.3% Notes due 2023 17 17
77/s% Debentures due 2027 300 300
8.3% Step Down Notes due 2033 83 83
Medium-term Notes —_ 26

Total long-term debt $ 1,500 $ 1,626

CIGNA may issue commercial paper primarily to manage
imbalances between operating cash flows and existing
commitments, to meet working capital needs, and to take
advantage of current investment opportunities. Commercial
paper borrowing arrangements are supported by various lines
of credit. There was no commercial paper outstanding as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001.

CIGNA’s medium-term notes have original maturity dates
ranging from approximately seven to ten years, and interest
rates ranging from 6.6% to 8.0%. The weighted average interest
rate on CIGNA’s outstanding medium-term notes was 7.5% at
December 31, 2002, and 7.3% at December 31, 2001.

As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had available $215 million in
committed lines of credit provided by U.S. banks. These lines
of credit typically have terms ranging from one to three years
and are paid for with a combination of fees and bank balances.
Interest that CIGNA incurs for using these lines of credit is
negotiated for each individual transaction. Approximately

$70 million of CIGNA's available lines of credit will expire
within the next twelve months.

CIGNA issued the following debt securities in 2001:

©  $250 million of 7% notes due in 2011, issued in January;
and

© $250 million of 6.375% notes due in 2011, issued in
October.

As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had $500 million remaining
under an effective shelf registration statement filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, which may be issued as
debt securities, equity securities or both.
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In March 2002, CIGNA entered into a syndicated bank letter of
credit agreement of $650 million in support of an internal
reinsurance arrangement associated with obligations of a
subsidiary. This reinsurance arrangement was terminated as of
July 1, 2002, and no letters of credit are currently issued under
this agreement.

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows (in millions): $127
in 2003, none in 2004 and 2005, $100 in 2006, $400 in 2007,
and the remainder in years after 2007.

Interest expense was $121 million in 2002, $118 million in
2001 and $104 million in 2000.

Nofe 11 = Commen and Preferred Stodk

As of December 31, CIGNA had issued the following shares:

(Shares in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Common: Par value $0.25 600,000
shares authorized
Outstanding—January 1 141,553 152,005 169,697
Issued for stock option and
other benefit plans 1,309 1,576 1,557
Repurchase of
common stock (3,492) (12,028) (19,249)
OQutstanding—December 31 139,370 141,553 152,005
Treasury shares 133,317 129,461 116,903
Issued—December 31 272,687 271,014 268,908

In 1997, CIGNA’s Board of Directors adopted a shareholder
rights plan, which will expire on August 4, 2007. The rights
attach to all outstanding shares of common stock, and will
become exercisable if a third party acquires (or announces that
it will acquire) 10% or more of CIGNA’s outstanding common
stock unless CIGNA'’s Board of Directors approves the
acquisition. When exercisable, each right entitles its holder to
purchase CIGNA securities at a substantial discount or, at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, to exchange the rights for
CIGNA common stock on a one-for-one basis. In some cases, a
right also entitles its holder to purchase securities of an
acquirer at a substantial discount. CIGNA’s Board of Directors
may authorize the redemption of the rights for $.0033 each
before a third party acquires 10% or more of CIGNA’s common
stock, and thereafter under certain citrcumstances.

CIGNA has authorized a total of 25 million shares of $1 par
value preferred stock. No shares of preferred stock were
outstanding at December 31, 2002, 2001 or 2000.

Note 12 ~ Shareholders’ Equity and Dividend Restriciens

State insurance departments that regulate certain of CIGNA’s
subsidiaries prescribe accounting practices (which differ in
some respects from generally accepted accounting principles)
to determine statutory net income and surplus. CIGNA’s life
insurance and HMO company subsidiaries are regulated by
such statutory requirements. The statutory net income for the

year ended, and surplus as of, December 31 of CIGNA's life
insurance and HMO subsidiaries were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) $ (526) $ 452 $ 868
Surplus $ 3,178 $ 3,144 $ 3,601

CIGNA’s life insurance and HMO subsidiaries are also subject
to regulatory restrictions that limit the amount of annual
dividends or other distributions (such as loans or cash
advances) insurance companies may extend to their
shareholders without prior approval of regulatory authorities.
The maximum dividend distribution that CIGNA’s life
insurance and HMO subsidiaries may make during 2003
without prior approval is approximately $455 million. The
amount of net assets of CIGNA that could not be distributed
without prior approval as of December 31, 2002, was
approximately $3.2 billion.

Note 13 = Income Taxes

Management believes that CIGNA’s taxable income in future
years will be sufficient to realize CIGNA’s net deferred tax
assets of $1.3 billion as of December 31, 2002, and $1.0 billion
as of December 31, 2001. This determination is based on i
CIGNA'’s earnings history and future expectations.

CIGNA's deferred tax asset is net of valuation allowances of

$149 million as of December 31, 2002, and $91 million as of
December 31, 2001. The $58 million increase during 2002

primarily related to operating losses associated with the run-off
reinsurance operations. The valuation allowance reflects
management’s assessment as to whether certain deferred tax 1
assets will be realizable,

Tax operating loss and capital loss carryforwards in the amount
of $209 million and $151 million were available as of
December 31, 2002. Operating loss carryforwards in the.
amount of $33 million were available as of December 31, 2001.
Subject to statutory limitations, the operating losses are
available to offset taxable income through the year 2022 and
the capital losses are available to offset capital gains through
the year 2007.

Through 1983, a portion of CIGNA's life insurance subsidiaries’
statutory income was not subject to current income taxation,

but was accumulated in a designated policyholders’ surplus .
account. Additions to the account were no longer permitted
beginning in 1984. CIGNA’s existing account balance of

$450 million would result in a $158 million tax liability only if

it were distributed or treated as distributed to shareholders as

defined by the Internal Revenue Code. CIGNA has not

provided taxes on this amount because management believes it

is remote that conditions requiring taxation will be met.

CIGNA'’s federal income tax returns are routinely audited by
the Internal Revenue Service. In management’s opinion,
adequate tax liabilities have been established for all years.




Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31

were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001
Deferred tax assets

Employee and retiree benefit plans $ 908 § 539
Investments, net 343 368
Other insurance and contractholder liabilities 227 245
Deferred gain on sales of businesses 15§ 180
Policy acquisition expenses 120 138
Loss carryforwards 126 11
Bad debt expense 28 23
Other 28

Deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 1,935 1,504
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (149) @n
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 1,786 1,413
Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation and amortization 239 248
Unrealized appreciation on investments 290 132
Total deferred tax liabilities 529 380
Net deferred income tax assets $ 1,257 $ 1,033

As of December 31, 2002, current income taxes receivable was
$219 million and was included in premiums, accounts and
notes receivable in the consolidated balance sheet. Current
income taxes payable was $215 million as of December 31,
2001 and was included in accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

The components of income taxes for the year ended

December 31 were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Current taxes (benefits)
U.S. income S (167) $ 274 $ 543
Foreign income 11 6 8
State income 25 _L3 24
Deferred taxes (benefits) —
U.S. income (38) 206 (63)
Foreign income 5 1 (1)
State income ___E) i) 5)
@n 205 (69)
Total income taxes (benefits) $(172) $ 498 $ 506

Total income taxes (benefits) for the year ended December 31
were different from the arhount computed using the nominal

federal income tax rate of 35% for the following reasons:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Tax expense (benefit) at nominal rate $(199) § 514 $ 520
Tax-exempt interest income (25) (25) 24)
Dividends received deduction (17) (16) 17
Amortization of goodwill —_ 15 15
State income tax (net of federal

income tax benefit) 12 7 12
Change in valuation allowance 58 — (1
Other (L 3 1
Total income taxes (benefits) $ (172) § 498 $ 506

Note 14 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

Notes to the Financial Statements

A. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

CIGNA and certain of its subsidiaries provide pension, health
care and life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees,
spouses and other eligible dependents through various plans.

The following table summarizes the obligations and assets
related to these plans as of, and for the year ended,

December 31:

Other
Postretirement
Pension Benefits Bemnefits
(In millions) 2002 2001 2002 2001
Change in benefit

obligation
Benefit obligation,

January 1 $ 2,932 $ 2,756 S 506 § 524
Service cost 101 91 4 3
Interest cost 235 196 36 36
(Gain) loss from

past experience 437 113 53 (16)
Benefits paid from

plan assets (184) (169) (v (7)
Benefits paid—other (94) (32) (39) (34)
Divestiture — (23) — —
Benefit obligation,

December 31 3,427 2,932 558 506
Chamnge in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets,

January 1 2,500 2,890 37 41
Actual return on plan

assets (284) (208) 2 3
Benefits paid (184) (169) (¢4] (7)
Divestiture — (13) — —
Fair value of plan assets,

December 31 2,032 2,500 37 37
Net benefit obligation 1,395 432 §21 469
Unrecognized net gains

(losses) from past

experience (1,260) (295) 47 102
Unrecognized prior

service cost 8 9 152 171
Net amount recognized

in the balance sheet $ 143 $ 146 $ 720 $ 742
Accrued benefit liability $ 1,241 $ 263 $ 720 $ 742
Accumulated other

comprehensive income

(after-tax $714, $76) (1,098) 117) — —
Net amount recognized

in the balance sheet $ 143 $ 146 $ 720 $ 742

Pensions. CIGNA increased its minimum pension liability in
the fourth quarter of 2002, based on the effect of equity market
declines on the value of pension plan assets and reduced long-
term interest rates, resulting in an after-tax charge to equity of

$638 million.
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As of December 31, 2002, all of CIGNA's pension plans had
accumulated benefits exceeding plan assets as a result of the
effect of equity market declines on the value of pension plan
assets and reduced long-term interest rates. The accumulated
benefit obligation for these plans as of that date was

$3.3 billion, the fair value of plan assets was $2.0 billion and
the projected benefit-obligation was $3.4 billion.

As of December 31, 2001, only certain of CIGNA’s pension
plans had accumulated benefits which exceeded plan assets.
The accumulated benefit obligation for these plans as of that
date was $246 million, the fair value of plan assets was

$5 million and the projected benefit obligation was

$374 million.

CIGNA funds the pernsion plans at least at the minimum
amount required by the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974 (ERISA). Substantially all pension plan assets are
invested in the separate accounts of Connecticut General Life
Insurance Company (CGLIC) and Life Insurance Company of
North America, which are CIGNA subsidiaries, or immediate
participation guaranteed investment contracts issued by
CGLIC. Plan assets also include 292,500 shares of CIGNA
common stock with a fair value of $12 million at December 31,
2002, and $27 million at December 31, 2001.

Components of net pension cost, for the year ended
December 31 were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Service cost $ 101 $ 91 $ 80
Interest cost 235 196 196
Expected return on plan assets (258) (232) (224)
Amortization of:
Net loss from past experience 14 14 4
Prior service cost [0} 1 1
SFAS 87 transition asset —_ 1) )

Net pension cost $ 91 $ 69 § 48

Other postretirement benefits. Unfunded retiree health benefit
plans had accumulated benefit obligations of $416 million at
December 31, 2002, and $368 million at December 31, 2001.
At the end of 2002, retiree life insurance plans with
accumulated benefit obligations of $142 million were partially
funded with plan assets of $37 million, compared with
accumulated benefit obligations of $138 million, partially
funded with plan assets of $37 million, at the end of 2001.
These plan assets were invested in the general account of
CGLIC.

Components of net other postretirement benefit cost, for the
year ended December 31 were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Service cost $ 4 $ 3 $ 3
Interest cost 36 36 39
Expected return on plan assets 2) (2) 3)
Amortization of:

Net gain from past experience €3] 4) 4)

Prior service cost (16) (16) (16)
Net other postretirement benefit cost $ 19 $ 17 $ 19

In 2002, a gain of $2 million after-tax ($3 million pre-tax) was
reported as part of the fourth quarter 2002 restructuring
program to realign the health care business. See also Note 5 for
further discussion.

The estimated rate of future increases in the per capita cost of
health care benefits was 12%, decreasing to 5% over seven
years. This estimate reflects CIGNA’s current claim experience
and management’s estimate that rates of growth will decline in
the future. A 1% increase or decrease in the estimated rate
would change 2002 reported amounts as follows:

(In millions) Imcrease Decrease
Effect on total service and interest cost $ 1 $ (M
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 3 24 $ (22)

Assumptions for pension and other postretirement plans.
Management determined the projected pension benefit
obligation and the accumulated other postretirement benefit
obligation based on the following weighted average
assumptions at December 31:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Discount rate 6.75% 7.25% 7.5%
Expected return on plan assets:

Projected pension benefit obligation 7.5% 9% 9%

Accumulated other postretirement
benefit obligation 7% 7% 7%
Expected rate of compensation increase:

Projected pension benefit obligation 3.6% 5.3% 5.2%
Accumulated other postretirement
benefit obligation 3% 4.5% 4.5%




B. 401(k) Plans

CIGNA sponsors several 401(k) plans in which CIGNA matches
a portion of employees’ pre-tax contributions. Participants may
invest in a fund that invests in CIGNA common stock, several
diversified stock funds, a bond fund and a fixed-income fund.

CIGNA may elect to increase its matching contributions if
CIGNA’s annual performance meets certain targets. A
substantial amount of CIGNA’s matching contributions are
invested in CIGNA common stock. CIGNA’s expense for these
plans was $47 million for 2002, $50 million for 2001 and

$47 million for 2000.

Nete 15 = Employee [ncentive Plons

The People Resources Committee of the Board of Directors
awards stock options and restricted stock to certain employees.
Other authorized types of stock-based awards, which have been
used to a very limited extent, include common stock issued
instead of cash compensation and stock appreciation rights
issued with stock options. Dividend equivalent rights are also
authorized, but have not been issued.

Notes to the Financial Statements

CIGNA had the following number of shares of common stock
available for award at December 31: 13.4 million in 2002,
16.3 million in 2001 and 17.1 million in 2000.

Stock aptions. CIGNA awards options to purchase CIGNA

common stock at the market price of the stock on the grant
date. Options vest over periods ranging from one to five years
and expire no later than 10 years after the grant date.

When senior executives use shares of CIGNA common stock in

lieu of cash to exercise outstanding options, CIGNA issues

replacement options equal to the number of shares used. Like
ordinary options, replacement options are exercisable at the

market price of CIGNA common stock on their grant date.

Replacement options vest six months after the grant date and
expire on the expiration date of the original option.

The table below shows the status of, and changes in, common
stock options during the last three years:

(Options in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Weiglhted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Optioms Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding—January 1 13,089 S 84.98 11,856 $ 7534 10,763 $ 68.37
Granted 4,121 $ 94.30 3,474 $ 107.81 4,890 $ 82.84
Exercised (1,702) $ 70.19 (1,681) 3 64.65 (3,257) $ 63.03
Expired or canceled (1,154) $ 93.67 (560) $ 83.45 (540) $ 78.62
Outstanding—December 31 14,354 $ 88.71 13,089 3 8498 11,856 $ 75.34
Options exercisable at year-end 7,954 $ 88.31 6,041 $ 79.26 4,037 $ 70.42
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The following table summarizes information for outstanding
common stock options at December 31, 2002:

Ramge of Exercise Prices

$ 2081 $ 5000 $ 20.00

to to to

(Options in thousands) $ 49,99 3 89.99 § 130.63

Options outstanding 397 5,740 8,217
Weighted average remaining

contractual life (years) 1.8 5.8 7.1

Weighted average exercise price $44.54 $73.39 $101.54

Options exercisable 397 3,943 3,614

Weighted average exercise price $44.54 $7248 $103.78

The weighted average fair value of options granted under
employee incentive plans was $22.13 for 2002, $22.34 for 2001
and $19.35 for 2000, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model and the following assumptions:

2002 2001 2000
Dividend yield 1.5% 1.2% 1.5%
Expected volatility 29.4% 24.2% 26.2%
Risk-free interest rate 3.6% 5.0% 6.3%
Expected option life 3.5 years 3.0 years 3.0 years

Restricted stock. CIGNA makes restricted stock grants with
vesting periods ranging from three to five years. Recipients are
entitled to receive dividends and to vote during the vesting
period, but forfeit their awards if their employment terminates
before the vesting date. Grants of restricted shares of CIGNA
common stock were as follows:

(Shares in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Shares granted 358 358 405
Weighted average fair

value per share $99.26 § 108.44 § 76.29

At the end of 2002, approximately 2,200 employees held
1.0 million restricted shares.

Note 16 = Earnings {Less) Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (EPS) for income
(loss) from continuing operations are computed as follows for
the year ended December 31:

Effect of
Diflution

(In millions, except per
share amounts)

2002
Loss from continuing
operations $

Basic Diluted

(397) $ — 5 (397)

Shares (in thousands):
Weighted average
Options and restricted
stock grants* — —
Total shares 140,517 —_ 140,517

Loss per share S  (2.83) $ —  $ (2.83)

140,517 — 140,517

2001
Encome from contimuing
operations $ 971

3 — $ 971

Shares (in thousands):
Weighted average
Options and restricted
stock grants
Total shares 147,892
EPS $ 6.57 $
EPS from continuing
operations adjusted
to exclude goodwill
amortization in
2001 (Note 2) 3 6.89 $

147,892 — 147,892

2,144 2,144
2,144 150,036
0.10) 8  6.47

0.10) % 6.79

2000
Income from comtimuinmg
operations 3 981 $ — 8 981
Shares (in thousands):
Weighted average
Options and restricted
stock grants
Total shares 159,810
EPS $ 6.14 $
EPS from contimuing
operations adjusted
to exclude goodwill
amgortization im
2000 (Note 2) $ 6.44 3

159,810 — 159,810

2,575 2,575
2,575 162,385
0.10) $  6.04

0100 § 6.34

* Because of the loss from continuing operations for the year ended
December 31, 2002, the number of shares used to compute loss per
share does not reflect the dilution of approximately 1.4 million
shares caused by stock options and restricted stock grants.




Mote 17 = Relnsurgnce

In the normal course of business, CIGNA's insurance
subsidiaries enter into agreements with other insurance
companies to assume and cede reinsurance. Reinsurance is
ceded primarily to limit losses from large exposures and to
permit recovery of a portion of direct losses. Reinsurance does
not relieve the originating insurer of liability. CIGNA evaluates
the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors their
concentrations of credit risk.

Individual life and annuity reinsurance. CIGNA had a
reinsurance recoverable of $5.6 billion at December 31, 2002
and 2001, from Lincoln National Corporation that arose from
the 1998 sale of CIGNA's individual life insurance and annuity
business to Lincoln through an indemnity reinsurance
arrangement. See Note 4 for information about this sale.

Unicover and other run-off reinsurance. The Run-off
Reinsurance Operations participate in a workers’ compensation
reinsurance pool, which ceased accepting new risks in early
1999. This pool was formerly managed by Unicover Managers,
Inc. Certain disputes over reinsurance coverage for the pool
were resolved by an arbitration ruling issued in October 2002,
which was further clarified in January 2003.

The Run-off Reinsurance Operations include other workers’
compensation reinsurance contracts, as well as personal
accident reinsurance contracts, including contracts assumed in
the London market. CIGNA obtained reinsurance coverage in
the London market for a significant portion of the claims
under these contracts. Some of these London market
retrocessionaires have disputed the validity of their contracts
with CIGNA and arbitration over some of these disputes has
commenced.

Based on the outcome of the Unicover arbitration in October
2002, as well as a review of other exposures for the run-off
reinsurance operations, including an assessment of London
market retrocessional disputes and workers’ compensation and
personal accident exposures, CIGNA recorded an after-tax
charge of $317 million ($408 million pre-tax) in the third
quarter of 2002.

The London market retrocessional disputes are not expected to
be resolved for some time. In addition, unfavorable claims
experience related to workers’ compensation and personal
accident exposures is possible and could result in future losses,
including losses attributable to the inability to recover
amounts from retrocessionaires (either due to disputes with the
retrocessionaires or their financial condition).

Notes to the Financial Statements

CIGNA's reserves for amounts recoverable from
retrocessionaires, as well as for reserves for liabilities associated
with underlying reinsurance exposures assumed by CIGNA, are
considered appropriate as of December 31, 2002, based on
current information. However, it is possible that future
developments regarding these matters could result in a
material adverse effect on CIGNA's consolidated results of
operations, and, in certain situations, could have a material
adverse effect on CIGNA'’s financial condition.

Other reinsurance. CIGNA could have losses if reinsurers fail
to indemnify CIGNA on other reinsurance arrangements,
whether because of reinsurer insolvencies or contract disputes.
However, management does not expect charges for other
unrecoverable reinsurance to have a material adverse effect on
CIGNA’s consolidated results of operations, liquidity or
financial condition.

Effects of reinsurance. In CIGNA’s consolidated income
statements, premiums and fees were net of ceded premiums,
and benefits, losses and settlement expenses were net of
reinsurance recoveries, in the following amounts:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Premiums and fees
Short-duration contracts:

Direct $ 13,995 $ 13,013 $ 12,839
Assumed 135 221 452
Ceded (L1L) (215) (215)
14,019 13,019 13,076
Long-duration contracts:
Direct 1,694 1,815 2,754
Assumed 461 523 721
Ceded:
Individual life insurance and
annuity business sold (364) (386) (461)
Other (73) (111) (228)
1,718 1,841 2,786
Total $ 15,737 $ 14,860 $ 15,862
Reimsurance recoveries
Individual life insurance and
annuity business sold $ 326 3 269 % 308
Other 4 460 261
Total $ 330 $ 729 $ 569

The effects of reinsurance on written premiums and fees for
short-duration contracts were not materially different from the
recognized premium and fee amounts shown in the above
table.
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Note 18 = Leases and Rentals

Rental expenses for operating leases, principally for office
space, amounted to $159 million in 2002, $152 million in
2001 and $132 million in 2000.

As of December 31, 2002, future net minimum rental
payments under non-cancelable operating leases were
approximately $616 million, payable as follows (in millions):
§141 in 2003, $133 in 2004, $113 in 2005, $75 in 2006, $52 in
2007 and $102 thereafter.

Note 19 = Segment Information

Operating segments generally reflect groups of related
products, but the International Life, Health and Employee
Benefits segment is based on geography. CIGNA measures the
financial results of its segments using operating income (which
is defined as net income excluding after-tax realized
investment results and excluding the results of discontinued
operations). CIGNA's operations are not materially dependent
on one or a few customers, brokers or agerts.

CIGNA presents segment information as follows:

Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits, which
combines CIGNA’s health care and group insurance segments,
offers a range of indemnity group health and managed care
products and services through guaranteed cost, experience-
rated, administrative services only and minimum premium
funding arrangements. This segment also offers group life and
disability coverages.

Employee Retirement Benefits and Investment Services
provides investment products and professional services
primarily to sponsors of qualified pension, profit sharing and
retirement savings plans. This segment also provides certain
corporate and variable life insurance products.

International Life, Health and Employee Benefits provides
life, accident, health and employee benefits (group life, health
and pension) coverages and services, primarily outside the
United States.

Rumn-off Reinsurance Operations consists of the sold
reinsurance operations (prior to the date of sale) and the run-
off reinsurance business, which includes accident, domestic
health, international life and health, and specialty life
reinsurance businesses. CIGNA has stopped underwriting new
reinsurance business.

CIGNA also reports results in two other categories.
Other Operations consist of:

¢ deferred gains recognized from the 1998 sale of the
individual life insurance and annuity business;

¢ corporate life insurance on which policy loans are
outstanding (leveraged corporate life insurance);

¢ settlement annuity business; and
¢ certain investment management services initiatives.

Corporate reflects amounts not allocated to segments, such as
interest expense on corporate debt, net investment income on
unallocated corporate investments, intersegment eliminations
and certain corporate overhead expenses.

CIGNA determines operating income (loss) for each segment
consistent with the accounting policies for the consolidated
financial statements, except that amounts included in
Corporate are not allocated to segments. CIGNA allocates other
corporate general, administrative and systems expenses on
systematic bases. Income taxes are generally computed as if
each segment were filing separate income tax returns.

Segment reporting changes. As a result of losses on certain
specialty life reinsurance contracts recognized in 2002 (see
Note 3), CIGNA placed the run-off reinsurance operations
(previously reported in Other Operations) into a separate
reporting segment in accordance with SFAS No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.” Prior periods have been reclassified to conform
to this presentation.




Summarized segment financial information for the year ended

Notes to the Financial Statements

{In millions) 2002 2001 2000
and as of December 31 was as follows:
Other Operations
({n millions) 2002 2001 2000 Premiums and fees and
Employee Health Care, Life other revenues $ 293 § 333 8§ 325
and Disability Benefits Net investment income 409 450 459
Premiums and fees and Segment revenues $ 702 § 783 § 784
other revenues $ 15,261  § 14,145 $ 13,540 Income taxes 3 37 3 33 § 42
Net investment income 558 599 604 Operating income $ 74 S 76 % 93
Segment revenues $ 15,819 $ 14,744 $ 14,144 Assets under management:
Income taxes $ 286 $ 390 $ 412 Invested assets $ 5,106 $ 5,603 $ 5928
Operating income S 579 $ 730 $ 756 Separate account assets 1,320 1,877 1,880
Assets under management: Total $ 6426 $ 7480 § 7,808
Invested assets $ 8,352 $ 8,366 $ 8,350 Cozporate
Separate account assets 1,250 1,840 1,943 Other revenues and eliminations $  (63) $ 64 % (59)
Total $ 9,602 $ 10,206 $ 10,293 Net investment income 5 24 49
Employee Retirement Segment revenues $ ¢G8 s (40 3 Q0
Benefits and Investment Income tax benefits 8 38 3 33y % (16)
Services Operating Joss $ @7 3 %96) $ (58)
Premiums and fees and Invested assets $ 2 3 97 % 2
other revenues $ 236 $ 322 $ 350 Realized Investment
Net investment income 1,649 1,668 1,617 Gains (Losses)
Segment revenues $ 1,985 $ 1,990 § 1,967 Realized investment gains (losses) § (238) $§ (175) § 7
Income taxes $ 96 $ 88 $ 103 Income taxes (benefits) (83) (63) 3
Operating income $ 231 3 221 $ 257 Realized investment gains
Assets under management: (losses), net of taxes $ (us§) $ (112) § 4
Invested assets $ 24,698 $ 22,678 $ 21,246 Total
Separate account assets 28,513 32,399 33,059 Premiums and fees and
Total $ 53,211 $ 55,077 $ 54,305 other revenues $ 16,870 $ 15,940 $ 16,579
International Life, Health Net investment income 2,716 2,842 2,940
and Employee Benefits Realized investment gains (losses) {238) (175) 7
Premiums and fees and Total revenues $ 19,348 $ 18,607 $ 19,526
other revenues $ 814 $ 936 $ 2,046 Income taxes (benefits) $ (@72) S 498 3 506
Net investment income 51 49 148 Operating income (loss) from
Segment revenues $ 865 $ 985 $ 2,194 continuing operations $ (242 $ 1,083 $ 977
Income taxes $ 8 $ 52 $ 26 Realized investment gains
Equity in net income (losses), net of taxes (155) (112) 4
(loss) of investees $ @ 3 79 $ (4) Income (loss) from
Operating income $ 31 $ 95 $ 48 continuing operations S @397y § 971 $ 981
Assets under management: Assets under management
Invested assets $ 848 $ 682 $ 3,644 Invested assets $ 40,362 $ 38,261 $ 39,808
Separate account assets 172 147 134 Separate account assets 31,255 36,263 37,016
Total $ 1,020 $ 829 $ 3,778 Total $71,617 § 74,524 $ 76,824
Run-off Reinsurance
Operations Premiums and fees and other revenues by product type were as
Premiums and fees and follows for the year ended December 31:
other revenues $ 229 $ 268 3 377
Net investment income 44 52 63 (In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Segment revenues $ 273 $ 320 $ 440 Health Maintenance
Income taxes (benefits) $ (488) $ 31 $ (64) Organizations $ 6,992 $ 6,342 $ 6,270
Operating income (loss) $ (L,O7D) $ 57 S (119) Medical and Dental Indemnity 5,400 4,914 4,396
Assets under management: Group Life 1,595 1,717 1,828
Invested assets $ 1,356 $ 835 § 638 Other 2,883 2,967 4,085
Separate account assets — — —_ Total $16,870 § 15940 § 16,579
Total $ 1,356 $ 835 $§ 638
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Note 20 = Foreign Operations

CIGNA provides international life, accident, health and
employee benefits insurance coverages on a direct and
reinsured basis, primarily through the International Life,
Health and Employee Benefits segmert in the Pacific region,
Latin America and Europe.

Premiums and fees and other revenues by geographic region
for the year ended December 31 were as follows:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000
Domestic $16,266 § 15,141  § 14,564
Foreign 604 799 2,015
Total $16,870 $ 15940 § 16,579

CIGNA's aggregate foreign exchange transaction losses and
foreign long-lived assets for the year ended and as of
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were not material.

Note 21 = Contingencies

A. Financial Guarantees

CIGNA, through its subsidiaries, is contingently liable for
various financial guarantees provided in the ordinary course of
business.

Separate account assets are contractholder funds maintained in
accounts with specific investment objectives. CIGNA records
separate account liabilities equal to separate account assets. In
certain cases, CIGNA guarantees a minimum level of benefits
for retirement and insurance contracts written in separate
accounts. CIGNA establishes an additional liability if
management believes that CIGNA will be required to make a
payment under these guarantees, which include the following:

o CIGNA guarantees that separate account assets will be
sufficient to pay certain retiree or life benefits. The
sponsoring employers are primarily responsible for
ensuring that assets are sufficient to pay these benefits and
are required to maintain assets that exceed a certain
percentage of benefit obligations. This percentage varies
depending on the asset class within a sponsoring
employer’s portfolio (for example, a bond fund would
require a lower percentage than a riskier equity fund) and
thus will vary as the composition of the portfolio changes.
If employers do not maintain the required levels of separate
account assets, CIGNA has the right to redirect the
management of the related assets to provide for benefit
payments. As of December 31, 2002, employers were
required to maintain assets that exceed 102% to 128% of
benefit obligations. Benefit obligations under these
arrangements were $3.3 billion as of December 31, 2002
and $2.4 billion as of December 31, 2001. There were no
additional liabilities required for these guarantees as of
December 31, 2002 or 2001.

® For certain employer-sponsored savings and retirement
plans, CIGNA guarantees that participants will receive the
value of their accounts at the time of withdrawal. These
guarantees could require payment by CIGNA in the event
that a significant number of plan participants withdraw
their accounts when the market value of the related
separate account assets is less than the plan participant
account values at the time of withdrawal. Participant
account values under these arrangements are invested
primarily in fixed income investments and were
$1.7 billion as of December 31, 2002, and $1.8 billion as of
December 31, 2001. There were no additional liabilities
required for these guarantees as of December 31, 2002 or
2001.

e CIGNA guarantees a minimum level of earnings (based on
investment, mortality and retirement experience) for a
certain group annuity contract. If the actual investment
return is less than the minimum guaranteed level, CIGNA is
required to fund the difference. The guaranteed benefit
obligation was $313 million as of December 31, 2002, and
$334 million as of December 31, 2001. CIGNA had
additional liabilities for this guarantee of $15 million as of
December 31, 2002, and $14 million as of December 31,
2001.

CIGNA does not expect that these guarantees will have a
material adverse effect on CIGNA’s consolidated results of
operations, liquidity or financial condition.

The management fee that CIGNA charges to separate accounts
includes a guarantee fee. These fees are recognized in income as
earned.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, CIGNA guaranteed

$106 million of construction loans related to investments in
certain real estate joint ventures. These loans are secured by the
joint ventures’ real estate properties with fair value in excess of
the loan amounts. The loans mature at various dates from 2003
to 2007, including extension options. CIGNA would be
required to repay the construction loans if permanent
financing could not be obtained. CIGNA has recourse to other
owners for 3% of any amounts paid under these guarantees.
There were no liabilities required for these guarantees as of
December 31, 2002 or 2001.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, CIGNA guaranteed

$42 million of principal for industrial revenue bonds that are
payable in 2007 and also guaranteed $8 million of aggregate
interest payable periodically up to maturity. These bonds are
secured by mortgages on properties and other assets held by
real estate partnerships. An event of default under these bonds
will not cause the principal or interest payments to be due
immediately, but CIGNA would be required to make principal
or interest payments under the original terms of the bonds.
CIGNA has recourse to partners for 43% of any amounts paid
under these guarantees. There were no liabilities required for
these guarantees as of December 31, 2002 or 2001.




At December 31, 2002, CIGNA guaranteed a shortfall of up to
$49 million in the market value of leased equipment at the end
of the lease. CIGNA had such guarantees for leased equipment
of $21 million at December 31, 2001. Guarantees of

$21 million expire in 2006 and $28 million expire in 2012.

B. Specialty Life Reinsurance Contracts

The Run-off Reinsurance Operations inciude certain specialty
life reinsurance contracts that guarantee minimum death
benefits based on unfavorable changes in variable annuity
account values. In 2002, CIGNA recognized an after-tax charge
of $720 million ($1.1 billion pre-tax) to strengthen reserves
related to these contracts and the adoption of a program to
substantially reduce equity market risks related to these
contracts. See Note 3 for further information.

CIGNA has also written reinsurance contracts with issuers of
variable annuity contracts that provide annuitants with certain
guarantees related to minimum income benefits. When
annuitants elect to receive these minimum income benefits,
CIGNA may be required to make payments based on changes
in underlying mutual fund values and interest rates. CIGNA
has purchased reinsurance from third parties, which covers
80% of the exposures of these contracts. CIGNA estimates the
fair value of the assets and liabilities associated with these
contracts using assumptions as to equity market returns,
volatility of the underlying equity and bond mutual fund
investments, interest rates, mortality, annuity election rates
and policy surrenders.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which requires
disclosure of maximum potential undiscounted future
payments for guarantees, even if the likelihood of such
payment is remote. In accordance with this requirement, the
maximum potential undiscounted payments that CIGNA
would make for guarantees related to minimum income
benefits under the following hypothetical assumptions, which
CIGNA believes unlikely to occur:

° po annuitants surrendered their accounts, and
¢ all annuitants lived to elect their benefit, and

¢ all annuitants elected to receive their benefit on the first
available date (beginning in 2004 through 2014), and

* all underlying mutual fund investment values remained at
the December 31, 2002 value of $2.7 billion, with no future
returns,

would aggregate $2.7 billion, gross of reinsurance. CIGNA has
reinsurance for 80% of this amount. CIGNA expects the
amount of actual payments to be significantly less than this
hypothetical undiscounted aggregate amount.

Notes to the Financial Statements

As of December 31, 2002, CIGNA had liabilities of $95 million
related to these contracts and amounts recoverable from
reinsurers of $76 million. CIGNA has an additional liability of
$44 million associated with the cost of reinsurance.
Management believes the current assumptions and other
considerations used to estimate reserves for these liabilities are
appropriate. See Note 7(G) for further information.

C. Regulatory and Industry Developments

CIGNA’s businesses are subject to a changing social, economic,
legal, legislative and regulatory environment. Some current
issues that may affect CIGNA’s businesses include:

¢ initiatives to increase health care regulation;
e efforts to expand tort liability of health plans;

¢ class action lawsuits targeting health care companies,
including CIGNA;

° initiatives to restrict insurance pricing and the application
of underwriting standards; and

¢ efforts to revise federal tax laws, including proposals to
change the federal tax treatment of dividends and of
savings vehicles currently offered as employee benefits.

Health care regulation. Federal and state legislatures,
administrative agencies and courts continue efforts to increase
regulation of the health care industry and change its
operational practices. Regulatory and operational changes
could have an adverse effect on CIGNA's health care
operations if they reduce marketplace competition and
innovation or result in increased medical or administrative
costs without improving the quality of care. Debate at the
federal level over “managed care reform” and “patients’ bill of
rights”” legislation, focusing on questions regarding liability, is
expected to continue.

Privacy regulations under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996 cover all aspects of the
health care delivery system, and address the use and disclosure
of individually identifiable health care information.
Compliance with the privacy regulations is required by April
2003. In addition to the privacy regulations, HIPAA establishes
national electronic transaction standards, which apply to
health insurers, providers and other covered entities. They are
intended to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the
nation'’s health care system by encouraging the widespread use
of electronic data interchange. CIGNA must implement these
standards by October 2003.
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Regulations issued in February 2003 set standards for the
security of electronic health information, and must be
implemented by CIGNA by April 2005. CIGNA has
implemented certain security measures and planned others in
anticipation of these rules. Other proposed HIPAA regulations
include standards for the assignment of a unique national
identifier for each health plan and provider and requirements
for a unique national identifier for employer groups. CIGNA
has commenced significant systems enhancements, training
and administrative efforts to satisfy these requirements.
Incremental technology and business-related expenses
associated with CIGNA’s compliance efforts were
approximately $20 million after-tax in 2002.

Other possible regulatory changes that could have an adverse
effect on CIGNA’s health care operations include:

e additional mandated benefits or services that increase costs
without improving the quality of care;

¢ narrowing of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
of 1974 (ERISA) preemption of state laws;

¢ changes in ERISA regulations resulting in increased
administrative burdens and costs;

e additional restrictions on the use of prescription drug
formularies;

e additional privacy legislation and regulations that interfere
with the proper use of medical information for research,
coordination of medical care and disease management;

® additional rules establishing the time periods for payment
of health care provider claims that vary from state to state;
and

° legislation that would exempt independent physicians from
antitrust laws.

The health care industry is under increasing scrutiny by
various state and federal government agencies and could be
subject to government efforts to bring criminal actions in
circumstances that could previously have given rise only to
civil or administrative proceedings.

Tax benefits for corporate life insurance. In 1996, Congress
passed legislation implementing a three-year phase-out period
for tax deductibility of policy loan interest for most leveraged
corporate life insurance products. In 2001, the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) implemented an initiative for leveraged
corporate life insurance plans purchased after June 20, 1986,
that permits policyholders to settle tax disputes related to these
plans. Management expects that some customers will accept
the IRS settlement offer and surrender their policies in 2003. As
a result, management expects revenues and operating income
associated with these products to decline. In 2002, revenues of
$221 million and operating income of $32 million were from
products affected by this legislation.

Statutory accounting principles. In 1998, the NAIC adopted
standardized statutory accounting principles. States in which
CIGNA's insurance subsidiaries are domiciled have adopted
these principles, effective as of January 1, 2001. The _
implementation of these principles did not materially impact
the ability of CIGNA'’s insurance companies to make dividend
payments (or other distributions) to CIGNA Corporation or to
meet obligations under insurance policies.

Insurance-related assessments. Many states maintain funds to
pay for the operating expenses of insurance regulatory agencies
and pay the obligations of insolvent insurance companies.
Regulators finance these funds by imposing assessments
against insurance companies operating in the state. In some
states, insurance companies can recover a portion of these
assessments through reduced premium taxes.

CIGNA's insurance and HMO subsidiaries’ have recorded assets
and liabilities for insolvency fund and other insurance-related
assessments that are not material.

D. Litigation and Other Legal Matters

CIGNA and several health care industry competitors were
named as defendants in federal and state purported class action
lawsuits. A Florida federal court has certified a class of health
care providers who allege violations under the Racketeer
Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act and ERISA. CIGNA
and the other defendants have appealed that decision. The
Florida federal court denied class certification to health plan
subscribers, and the plaintiffs have not filed an appeal of that
decision.

An Illinois state court certified a class action lawsuit against
CIGNA by health care providers alleging breach of contract
and seeking increased reimbursements. This state claim was
removed to federal court in Illinois, where a settlement
agreement between the parties was filed on November 26,
2002. If approved, the agreement will encompass most of the
claims brought on behalf of health care providers asserted in
other state and federal jurisdictions. On February 21, 2003, the
Judicial Panel for Multidistrict Litigation ordered the Illinois
case to be transferred to the Florida federal court, which will
decide whether the settlement should be approved. In
connection with this matter, CIGNA recognized a charge of
$50 million after-tax ($77 million pre-tax) in the fourth quarter
of 2002 for expected costs associated with health care provider
class action litigation. As this matter has not been resolved,
adjustments to this amount in future periods are possible.




In 2002, CIGNA recognized a charge for the result of an
arbitration ruling related to reinsurance (retrocessional)
coverage of a workers’ compensation reinsurance pool. This
charge also included a review of CIGNA's exposures for the
run-off reinsurance operations, including an assessment of
London market retrocessional disputes and exposures. The
underlying London market retrocessional disputes are not
expected to be resolved for some time. CIGNA's reserve balance
is based on a current assessment of these matters, the outcomes
of which could result in adjustments to CIGNA’s reserve. See
also page 67 for further discussion.

The U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania is investigating compliance with federal laws in
connection with pharmaceutical companies’ marketing
practices and their impact on prices paid by the government to
pharmaceutical companies for products under federal health
programs. As part of this investigation, CIGNA is responding to
subpoenas concerning contractual relationships between
pharmaceutical companies and CIGNA's health care
operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, several purported class action
lawsuits as well as two shareholder derivative complaints
nominally on behalf of CIGNA were filed in federal court in
the Eastern District of Pennsylvania against CIGNA and certain
of its senior officers and directors alleging securities law
violations and breaches of fiduciary duty. Another purported
class action lawsuit has been filed against CIGNA and certain
officers, also in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, by an
individual who seeks to represent a class of participants in the
CIGNA 401(k) Plan who allegedly suffered losses on
investments in CIGNA stock from May 2, 2001 to the present,
asserting violations of ERISA. In addition, in the fourth quarter
of 2002, the Securities and Exchange Commission notified
CIGNA that it has opened an informal inquiry into matters
relating to CIGNA.

Notes to the Financial Statermnents

The Department of Justice and Office of Inspector General of
the Department of Health and Human Services investigated a
subsidiary of CIGNA, Lovelace Health Systems, Inc., (Lovelace)
regarding Medicare cost reporting practices for the years 1990
through 1999. In 2002, CIGNA increased reserves for this
matter by $9 million after-tax ($14 million pre-tax). This
matter was resolved in December 2002, by a settlement
agreement between the parties. CIGNA sold its Lovelace
subsidiary on January 15, 2003.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, a Connecticut federal court
certified a class action lawsuit against CIGNA and the CIGNA
Pension Plan. The plaintiffs are participants in the Plan who
earned certain Plan benefits prior to 1998. The plaintiffs allege,
among other things, that the Plan violated ERISA by
impermissibly conditioning certain post-1997 benefit accruals
on the amount of pre-1998 benefit accruals, and that these
conditions are not adequately disclosed to Plan participants.

CIGNA is routinely involved in numerous lawsuits and other
legal matters arising, for the most part, in the ordinary course
of the business of administering and insuring employee benefit
programs. An increasing number of claims are being made for
substantial non-economic, extra-contractual or punitive
damages. The outcome of litigation and other legal matters is
always uncertain, and outcomes that are not justified by the
evidence can occur. CIGNA believes that it has valid defenses
to the legal matters pending against it and is defending itself
vigorously. Nevertheless, it is possible that resolution of one or
more of the legal matters currently pending or threatened
could result in losses material to CIGNA's consolidated results
of operations, liquidity or financial condition.
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Repor? of Menagement

CIGNA's management is responsible for the consolidated
financial statements and all other information presented in
this Annual Report. The financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, determined by management to be appropriate, and
include amounts based on management's informed estimates
and judgments. Financial information presented elsewhere in
this Annual Report is consistent with the financial statements.
The appropriateness of data underlying such financial
information is monitored through internal accounting
controls, internal auditors, independent accountants, and the
Board of Directors acting through an Audit Committee.

CIGNA maintains a system of internal accounting controls
designed to reasonably assure the integrity and reliability of
financial reporting and to provide reasonable assurance to
management and the Board of Directors that assets are
safeguarded and that transactions are executed in accordance
with management’s authorization and recorded properly.
CIGNA implements and enforces internal accounting controls
by selecting and training qualified personnel, by appropriately
segregating responsibilities, and by communicating written
policies and procedures broadly throughout the company.

In its corporate policy addressing business ethics, CIGNA states
its intention to achieve the highest level of legal and ethical
standards in the conduct of its business activities. Management
provides employees with a copy of this policy. Signed
statements are obtained annually from officers, certain other
employees and directors attesting to their review of, and
compliance with, CIGNA'’s business ethics policy.

Repert of Independent Accountants

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors reviews and
reports to the full Board on the appropriateness of CIGNA's
accounting policies, the adequacy of CIGNA’s financial
controls and the reliability of financial information reported to
the public. The Committee is composed solely of directors who
are not employees of CIGNA. Ongoing Committee activities
include reviewing reports of management, internal auditors
and the independent accountants regarding accounting
policies and practices, audit results and internal accounting
controls, and assessing CIGNA's relationship with its
independent accountants, including their independence. The
Committee has direct access to the internal auditors and
independent accountants and meets with them without
management in attendance.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
CIGNA'’s independent accountants, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
and have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP's audit included an
evaluation of CIGNA's internal accounting control structure to
the extent necessary to determine the audit procedures
required to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Management reviews recommendations of the internal
auditors and independent accountants concerning the system
of internal accounting controls, and responds to such
recommendations with corrective actions, as appropriate.
Management believes that, as of December 31, 2002, the
system of internal accounting controls is adequate to provide
the reasonable assurances discussed herein and that there are
no material deficiencies in the design or operation of the
system of internal accounting controls.

AND SHAREHOLDERS OF CIGNA CORPORATION PRI CEW.’ERHOUSEGDPERS
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income and changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of CIGNA
Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Company) at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” effective January 1, 2002.

LFA

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 6, 2003




Quarterly Finondal Data (unaudited)

The following unaudited quarterly financial data are presented on a consolidated basis for each of the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001.

Quarterly financial results necessarily rely heavily on estimates. This and certain other factors, such as the seasonal nature of
portions of the insurance business, suggest the need to exercise caution in drawing specific conclusions from quarterly consolidated
results.

(In millions, except per share amounts) Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Consolidated Results
2002
Total revenues $ 4,690 $ 4,827 $ 5,083 $ 4,748
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes (benefits) 331 326 1,279 53
Net income (loss) 218 2149 (877)® 47%
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic 1.54 1.52 (6.27) 34
Diluted 1.52 1.50 (6.27) 33
2001
Total revenues $ 4,611 $ 4,537 $ 4,648 $ 4,811
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes 417 380 400 272
Net income 276 252 2709 1917
Net income per share:
Basic 1.82 1.69 1.83 1.33
Basic—Excluding goodwill amortization 1.90 1.77 1.91 1.41
Diluted ' 1.78 1.66 1.81 1.32
Diluted—Excluding goodwill amortization 1.86 1.74 1.89 1.40
Stock and Dividend Date
2002
Price range of common stock—high $ 101.52 $ 111.00 $ 98.40 $ 74.19
—low $ 87.76 $ 94385 $ 69.20 $ 3415
Dividends declared per common share $ .33 $ .33 $ 33 3 .33
2001
Price range of common stock—high $ 134.95 $ 110.32 $ 102.72 § 9490
—low $ 99.30 $ 8776 $ 75.50 $ 69.86
Dividends declared per common share $ 32 $ 32 h) 32 $ 32

™) The second quarter of 2002 includes a $2 million after-tax accelerated gain recognized on the sale of CIGNA’s life reinsurance business.

@ The third quarter of 2002 includes a $720 million after-tax charge to strengthen reserves for certain specialty life reinsurance contracts as
well as the impact of a program adopted by CIGNA to reduce equity market risks related to these contracts, a $317 million after-tax charge
for Unicover and London reinsurance matters and a 39 million after-tax charge for a Medicare cost reporting matter associated with
Lovelace Health Systems Inc., partially offset by a $1 million after-tax accelerated gain recognized on the sale of CIGNA’s life reinsurance
business.

& The fourth quarter of 2002 includes a net $95 million after-tax restructuring charge, a $50 million after-tax charge related to health care
provider litigation and an after-tax credit of $2 million reflecting the adjustment of liabilities associated with events of September 11, 2001.

“ The first quarter of 2001 includes an $8 million after-tax gain on the sale of a partial interest in the Japanese life insurance operation.
®) The second quarter of 2001 includes a $22 million after-tax accelerated gain recognized on the sale of CIGNA’s life reinsurance business.

© The third quarter of 2001 includes a $33 million after-tax accelerated gain recognized on the sale of CIGNA’s life reinsurance business,
which was partially offset by charges of $25 million after-tax related to the events of September 11, 2001.

@ The fourth quarter of 2001 includes a $62 million after-tax restructuring charge, partially offset by a $27 million after-tax gain on the sale
of CIGNA’s remaining interest in the Japanese life insurance operation and a $14 million after-tax accelerated gain recognized on the sale of
CIGNA'’s life reinsurance business.
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Supplementary Finandel Information

(In millions)

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
Revenues from Continuing Operations
Emplcyee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits
Premiums and fees:
Managed health and dental 3 6,904 $ 6,257 $ 6,195
Medical and dental indemnity 5,072 4,563 4,090
Life 1,587 1,698 1,764
Other 773 941 910
Total premiums and fees 14,336 13,459 12,959
Net investment income 558 599 604
Other revenues 925 686 581
Realized investment gains (losses) (128) (78) 10
Total 15,691 14,666 14,154
Employee Retirement Benefits and Investment Services
Premiums and fees 336 322 350
Net investment income 1,649 1,668 1,617
Realized investment losses (106) (93) 1)
Total 1,879 1,897 1,966
International Life, Health and Employee Benefits
Premiums and fees 811 788 2,042
Net investment income 51 49 148
Other revenues 3 148 4
Realized investment gains (losses) 5 %) —
Total 870 980 2,194
Run-off Reimsurance Operations
Premiums and fees 138 148 365
Net investment income 44 52 63
Other revenues 21 120 12
Realized investment losses ® (14) 4)
Total 265 306 436
Other Operations
Premiums and fees 116 143 146
Net investment income 409 450 459
Other revenues 177 190 179
Realized investment gains (losses) (1) 15 2
Total 701 798 786
Corporate
Net investment income 5 24 49
Other revenues and eliminations ©3) (64) (59)
Total (58) (40) (10)
Total Consclidated Revenues from Continuing Operations
Premiums and fees 15,737 14,860 15,862
Net investment income 2,716 2,842 2,940
Other revenues 1,133 1,080 717
Realized investment gains (losses) (238) (175) 7
Total $ 19,348 $ 18,607 $ 19,526




(In millions)

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
Operating Income (Loss)"”
Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits:
HMO operations $ 365 $ 399 b 454
Indemnity operations 214 331 302
Total Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits 579 730 756
Employee Retirement Benefits and Investment Services 231 221 257
International Life, Health and Employee Benefits 31 95 48
Run-off Reinsurance Operations (1,070) 57 (119)
Other Operations 74 76 93
Corporate B7) 96) (58
Total $  (242) $ 1,083 $ 977
Income {Loss) from Continuing Operations
Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits $ 495 3 681 $ 762
Employee Retirement Benefits and Investment Services 163 160 256
International Life, Health and Employee Benefits 35 92 48
Run-off Reinsurance Operations (1,076) 483 121)
Other Operations 73 86 94
Corporate (87) (96) (58)
Total $ (397 3 971 3 981
Segment Statistics
Employee Health Care, Life and Disability Benefits
Adjusted premiums and fees $ 37,050 $ 33,689 $ 30,741
Covered lives (in thousands):
Managed medical ®,750 6,809 7,072
Managed dental 2,559 2,756 2,833
Medical indemnity (estimated) 6,341 6,441 6,142
Dental indemnity 10,458 10,600 10,246
Behavioral care 14,113 13,346 12,172
Pharmacy® 9,773 9,356 —
Employee Retirement Benefits and Investment Services
Deposits $ 8,772 $ 10,149 $§ 9,942
Assets under management:®
Defined contribution $ 28,062 $ 29,853 $ 30,620
Defined benefit 18,547 18,690 18,370
Corporate life insurance 4,281 3,943 3,725
Other, including guaranteed investment contracts 2,867 2,820 2,439
Total 3 83,757 § 55,306 $ 55,154

@ Operating income (loss) is defined as net income (loss) excluding after-tax realized investment results and excluding the results of
discontinued operations.

@ Not available for 2000.

® Assets under management include investrent advisory accounts.
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CORPORATE [NFORMATION

Annual Meeting

The 2003 annual meeting of
shareholders will be held on
Wednesday, April 23, at 3:30 p.m.,

at the Gregg Conference Center,

American College in Bryn Mawr, Pa.

Proxies and proxy statements are
being mailed to shareholders of
record as of February 28, 2003.

At December 31, 2002, there were
9,945 common shareholders

of record.

Financial Information

CIGNA’s Form 10-K was filed
with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 28, 2003,
and is available on the Internet at
http://www.CIGNA.com.

If you would like a printed copy

of Form 10-K, please contact:

CIGNA Corporation

Shareholder Services Departinent
TL37A

1601 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, PA 19192
215.761.3516

To receive a copy of CIGNA's
quarterly earnings news release,

please access the CIGNA internet

site at http://www.CIGNA.com. If you

would prefer a printed copy of
the news release, please contact
Shareholder Services at the above

address or phone number.

The tentative release dates for

CIGNA'’s 2003 earnings are:
1st Quarter May 2, 2003
2nd Quarter August 1, 2003
3rd Quarter  October 31, 2003

Full Year February 6, 2004

Offices and Principal
Subsidiaries

CIGNA Corporation
One Liberty Place

1650 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19192
215.761.1000

Connecticut General Life
Insurance Company

900 Cottage Grove Road
Hartford, CT 06152
860.226.6000

Life Insurance Company of
North America

Two Liberty Place

1601 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, PA 19192
215.761.1000
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Dividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan

A dividend reinvestment and stock
purchase service is available to
shareholders of CIGNA Corporation.
Shareholders can reinvest their
quarterly dividends automatically
and make optional cash purchases
of additional common shares.

For information on the service,

please contact:

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
Dividend Reinvestment Plans
P.O. Box 43081

Providence, RI 02940-3081
800.317.4445

Internet Account Access

You can access your CIGNA shareholder
account on the Internet through
EquiServe Trust’s Web site. You will
need your account number and
password for access to your account

at http://www.gateway.equiserve.com.

Direct Deposit of Dividends

Direct deposit of dividends provides

a prompt, efficient way to have your
dividends electronically deposited

in your checking or savings account.
It avoids the possibility of lost or
delayed dividend checks. The deposit
is made electronically on the payment
date. For more information and an
enrollment authorization form, contact
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A,, at
800.870.2340.

Stock Listing
CIGNA’s common shares are listed on

the New York, Pacific and Philadelphia

stock exchanges. The ticker symbol is CL.

Transfer Agent

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
Shareholder Relations

P.O. Box 43069

Providence, RI 02940-3069
800.317.4445

Hearing Impaired TDD: 800.952.9245
Web site: http://www.equiserve.com

E-mail: At Web site, click on Contact Us

CIGNA Onlinte

To access information about
CIGNA and our products and
services, visit our Web site at

http://www.CIGNA.com.

Annual Report Audio Tape

An audio tape summarizing key
elements of this report is available
for those with sight disabilities

and can be obtained by contacting:

CIGNA Corporation
Corporate Relations
Two Liberty Place

1601 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, PA 19192
215.761.4756

As used in this annual report, “CIGNA" may refer to CIGNA Corporation itself, one or more of its subsidiaries, or
CIGNA Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. CIGNA Corporation is a holding company. Products and
services are provided exclusively by subsidiaries and not by CIGNA Corporation. Most employees are employed by

subsidiaries of CIGNA Corporation.

“CIGNA” and "'A Business of Caring”’ are registered service marks.

CIGNA Corporation and its subsidiaries constitute one of the largest investor-owned employee benefits
organizations in the United States. Its subsidiaries are major providers of employee benefits offered through the
workplace, including health care products and services; group life, accident and disability insurance; retirement

products and services; and investment management.

@ This annual report is printed on recycled paper.




We intend to be the best at
helping our customers enhance
and extend their lives and
protect their financial security.
Satisfying customers is the key to
meeting employee needs and
shareholder expectations, and will
enable CIGNA to build on its
reputation as a financially strong

and highly respected company.




CIGNA
A Business of Caring.

One Liberty Place ¢ Philadelphia, PA 19192-1550

Visit CIGNA online at
www.CIGNA.com




